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Results

Continuing operations

Revenue (HK$'000)

Gross profit (HK$'000)

Gross profit margin

(Loss) profit for the year
attributable to owners of the
Company (HK$'000)

Discontinued operation

Revenue (HK$'000)

Profit for the year attributable
to owners of the Company
(HK$°000)

Continuing and discontinued
operations

Basic (loss) earnings per share
(HK$)

Diluted (loss) earnings per share
(HK$)

Assets and Liabilities

Total assets (HK$'000)

Total liabilities (HK$'000)

Net asset value (HK$'000)

Net asset value per share (HK$)
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For the year ended 31 March

B ZE3A31ALEE
2024 2023
20245 20234
227114 86,762
58,076 58,985
25.6% 68.0%
(254,739) 10,905
= 15,912
1,504 2,375
(3.50) 0.18
(4.20) 0.18

2024
20245

8,739,039
4,136,948
4,602,091

62.2

As at 31 March
M3A318

2023
20234

9,188,964
4,196,579
4,992,385

675

161.8%
(1.5)%
(42.4)%

N/A

NiE R

(100)%

(36.7)%

N/A
N iE
N/A
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Dear Shareholders,

Easyknit International Holdings Limited (the “Company”, together
with its subsidiaries, collectively the “Group”) is committed
to strategically investing in and developing quality properties,
continuing to pursue new long-term growth opportunities
to strengthen its income base and delivering attractive and
sustainable returns to its shareholders.

For the year ended 31 March 2024 (the “Year”), the Group's
revenue from continuing operations amounted to approximately
HK$227,114,000 as compared with the year ended 31 March 2023
(the “Previous Year") of approximately HK$86,762,000, which
represented an increase of approximately HK$140,352,000. For the
Year, the Group's revenue from discontinued operation amounted
to HK$nil as compared with the Previous Year of approximately
HK$15,912,000, which represented a decrease of approximately
HK$15,912,000. For the Year, the Group’s consolidated loss
attributable to shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”)
was approximately HK$253,235,000 as compared with the
Previous Year of a profit of HK$13,280,000. The consolidated
loss from continuing operations for the Year was approximately
HK$414,214,000 as compared with profit of approximately
HK$25,341,000 in Previous Year. The loss was mainly attributable
to, among other things, (i) the write-down on properties held for
sale, (ii) the write-down on properties held for development for
sale, (iii) loss on change in fair value of investment properties
and (iv) increase in finance costs. The consolidated profit from
discontinued operation was approximately HK$5,655,000, as
compared with a profit of approximately HK$4,602,000 for the
Previous Year.

The basic and diluted loss per share from continuing and
discontinued operations amounted to HK$3.50 and HK$4.20
respectively for the Year, as compared with an earning per share of
HK$0.18 and HK$0.18 respectively for the Previous Year.
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During the Year, the property market in Hong Kong has been under
pressure due to the sustained high interest rates and the slow
post-pandemic recovery in the economy. Following the adoption of
Government policies favourable to property transactions and the
revival of inbound tourism favourable to the local market, together
with the gradual reacceleration in economic growth, these shall
bode well for the property sector in Hong Kong.

Property Sales

During the Year, our prestigious residential project “Ayton” located
at Inverness Road, Kowloon Tong, continues for its sales. As at
the date of this annual report, 49 units and 3 carparks released
were sold and the aggregate contracted sales amounted to
approximately HK$862,981,000.

The Group has also launched its sales of another prestigious
residential project “Garden Crescent” located at Waterloo Road,
Ho Man Tin, in November 2023. As at the date of this annual
report, 17 units released were sold and the aggregate contracted
sales amounted to approximately HK$208,303,000.

In addition, Project Chatham Road North is expected to be
completed in late 2024 and will be launched when available. This
will contribute to the Group's results and earnings in coming years,
barring any unforeseen circumstances.

Property Investment

As at 31 March 2024, the Group's portfolio of investment
properties comprised of residential, commercial and industrial units
located in Hong Kong and Singapore. During the Year, contribution
from property rental from continuing operations recorded a slight
decrease as compared with the Previous Year. The occupancy
rate of the Group's investment properties remained satisfactory
during the Year, being 100%, 99.2% and 95.0% for residential,
commercial and industrial units respectively as at 31 March
2024. The Group is committed to deliver high-quality property
management services, the income of which will also contribute to
the Group's results.

Land Bank

As at 31 March 2024, the Group's attributable land bank in Hong
Kong with gross site area amounted to approximately 21,000
square feet. All such land bank is under development and is
expected to be used for sales purpose. The Group will continue to
replenish its land bank when suitable opportunities arise.
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The economy and property market in Hong Kong encountered
headwinds from the geopolitical tensions, sustained high interest
rates, underperforming stock market returns, below-expectation
GDP growth and slow post-pandemic recovery throughout 2023.
In order to enhance the stability which will in turn stimulate growth
of the local property market, the Government has introduced a
number of measures in early 2024, such as immediately lifting all
the relevant restrictions on the sale of properties and suspending
the mortgage stress test and relaxing the loan-to-value ratios of
certain types of properties. Both local and overseas purchasers
are only required to pay the standard stamp duty based on the
property price. A number of new property developments which
were launched for sales after the introduction of the aforesaid
Government measures achieved satisfactory sales performance.
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The Group will continue the sales of the remaining units in “Ayton”
and “Garden Crescent”. The Group will also launch Project
Chatham Road North when available. It is expected by the Group
that the introduction of the aforesaid Government measures can
help boost the demand for properties and stimulate sales of its
own properties. The Group also anticipates that, given the interest
rates in Hong Kong will be gradually eased due to the tightening of
monetary policies by major global economies and the deceleration
of global inflation in 2024, the market confidence towards the
property sector in Hong Kong will gradually restore, which will
support the property sales and cause the property price to stabilise
or even slightly rebound.

As Hong Kong entered into its post-pandemic era, the opening
of borders fueled improvements in the local market. With the
revival of inbound tourism and the introduction of Government'’s
campaigns to boost public morale and consumption, the local
market continued to recover. However, Hong Kong’'s market
is facing increased competition as a destination for tourists,
investment and talent from its neighbouring regions, which creates
new challenges to the local office and retail leasing business
and impacts rental performance on all fronts. The Group has
been coping with the changing market trends and the evolving
operating environment by continuing to optimise the tenants mix.
It is expected that the Group will endeavour to maintain stable
occupancy rate of its investment properties.

Looking ahead, the Group will continue to focus its efforts in its
principal businesses and will exercise prudent capital management
and approach in its operations. The Group will continue to monitor
the market changes closely and strengthen the principal segments
of its businesses while exploring other potential opportunities,
with a view to providing steady and favourable returns and bringing
increased values to the Shareholders.
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Facing a competitive and challenging environment, on behalf
of the board of directors of the Company (the “Board” or the
"Directors”), | would like to take this opportunity to express my
sincere gratitude to all staff members for their dedication, hard
work and efforts in tackling many tough challenges this year, which
help to maintain the Group's effective operations. | would also like
to express my gratitude to the Directors for their guidance and all
the Shareholders and customers of the Group for their continuous
support.

Koon Ho Yan Candy
President
Hong Kong, 27 June 2024
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The Group was principally engaged in property development,
property investment, investment in securities and others and loan
financing businesses, in which property development and property
investment are the core businesses of the Group.

The financial results and positions of Eminence Enterprise Limited
("Eminence”, together with its subsidiaries, collectively the
“Eminence Group"”) (stock code: 616) had been consolidated in
the consolidated financial statements of the Group for the Year.

Upon completion of the Eminence Placing Il (as defined and with details
of which disclosed in the section headed “Very Substantial Disposal —
Deemed disposal of interest in Eminence” below), Eminence’s financial
results and financial positions has no longer be consolidated in the
consolidated financial statements of the Group since 17 April 2024.

For the Year, the Group's revenue from continuing operations
amounted to approximately HK$227,114,000 as compared with the
Previous Year of approximately HK$86,762,000, which represented
an increase of approximately HK$140,352,000 or approximately
161.8%. This year's gross profit margin was approximately 25.6%
(2023: approximately 68.0%). For the Year, the Group's revenue
from discontinued operation amounted to HK$nil as compared
with the Previous Year of approximately HK$15,912,000, which
represented a decrease of approximately HK$15,912,000 or 100%.

For the Year, the Group's consolidated loss attributable to
Shareholders was approximately HK$253,235,000 as compared
with the Previous Year of a profit of HK$13,280,000. The
consolidated loss from continuing operations for the Year was
approximately HK$414,214,000 as compared with profit of
approximately HK$25,341,000 in Previous Year. The loss was
mainly attributable to, among other things, (i) the write-down on
properties held for sale, (ii) the write-down on properties held for
development for sale, (iii) loss on change in fair value of investment
properties and (iv) increase in finance costs. The consolidated profit
from discontinued operation was approximately HK$5,655,000,
as compared with a profit of approximately HK$4,602,000 for the
Previous Year.

AEBEXIZNEDEER DEERE &
ZREMBBRENRERBERL  HEHY
XBRRMIERERAEENRLER -

SUCEXAERAR(EHL ZEREKBA
ARSI EE]) B R 616) 8 8
XELMAERAEEAFE ZHZAEYH
BRAKEAAR -

TRBIUEEFRIK(EERBEHEFBER
BERTXEFEARKEEE —RIELE
K@z s | —80) - 52024547170
SUZHBEERBBERAETBERAE
BEEMBREAGEAAR -

AFEE AEBEREFBELCEEBENE
¥ 58 49 /227114,0008 T M FE L
486,762,000/% JT - I h0 #9140,352,000
BT 4161.8% c AFEMNENEXLHN A
25.6% (20234 : #968.0%) - NFF » K&
JC 0 M _EFE#7515,912,0008 T 0 R A4
15,912,000/ 7T 5100% °

AFE BREEREAEEZABEY
£253,235,0008 o W £ F X & fl A
13,280,000/ 7L - AF[E - REABEKLEHE
B H A A B 1B 4 A414,214,0008 7T 1 £
[ % M 40 525,341,000 T - ZEE X
TN (ERaRE) OMORBEREDE i)
MBRBIELEEEME: (NMREMWEQAF
BE2FHEE: RVBERAEMN - REE
BRI REERHE A R T4 A5,655,000%8
JC M EFE &M% A4,602,000% 7T ©



The basic loss per share and diluted loss per share from continuing
and discontinued operations amounted to HK$3.50 and HK$4.20
respectively for the Year, as compared with an earnings per share
of HK$0.18 and HK$0.18 respectively for the Previous Year.

The basic loss per share and diluted loss per share from continuing
operations amounted to HK$3.52 and HK$4.24 respectively for
the Year, as compared with earnings per share of HK$0.15 and
HK$0.15 respectively for the Previous Year.

The Board does not recommend the payment of final dividend for
the Year (2023: nil).

The review of each business segment of the Group is set out
below.

Property Development

Revenue from continuing operations recognised in this
business segment during the Year amounted to approximately
HK$169,971,000 (2023: HK$28,647,000). Review on existing
major projects of the Group is set out below:

Inverness Road Property — “Ayton”

“Ayton” is a completed residential project located at Nos. 14-20
Inverness Road, Kowloon Tong, Kowloon, Hong Kong developed
and wholly-owned by the Group. It consists of two 8-storey
residential blocks comprising 60 residential units, 29 car parking
spaces and 3 motor parking spaces.

As at the date of this annual report, 49 units and 3 carparks
released were sold and the aggregate contracted sales amounted
to approximately HK$862,981,000. During the Year, 5 units and
1 carpark among the transactions have been completed (2023:
2 units) and a revenue of approximately HK$118,460,000 (2023:
HK$28,647,000) has been recorded for sale of properties.
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Waterloo Road Property — “Garden Crescent”

The Group has launched sales of its new residential project located
at No. 93 Waterloo Road, Ho Man Tin, Kowloon, Hong Kong
namely “Garden Crescent”, in November 2023. Garden Crescent
is located in Ho Man Tin, a prestigious residential area, which is
bound by a vast network of transportation and enjoys an extensive
top education network. Boasting 56 luxurious apartments ranging
from 260 square feet to 2,597 square feet (saleable area), this
20-storey development with 2 levels of basement for carparking
spaces is designed to be an modern and stylish building for those
seeking a bespoke residence. The property offers recreational
facilities, including a fully-equipped gym (The Solace), a children
playroom (The Forest) and a multi-function room with flat roof
(Great Room) for residents to host gatherings with family and
friends and a lounge in purpose.

As at the date of this annual report, 17 units released were sold
and the aggregate contracted sales amounted to approximately
HK$208,303,000. During the Year, 5 units among the transactions
have been completed (2023: nil) and a revenue of approximately
HK$51,511,000 (2023: nil) has been recorded for sale of properties.

Project Chatham Road North

The Group, through its wholly-owned subsidiary, owns the site
located at Nos. 470, 472, 474, 476 and 478 Chatham Road North,
Kowloon, Hong Kong with a total site area of approximately 4,653
square feet.

Project Chatham Road North will be redeveloped into a composite
building with residential and commercial use. The estimated gross
floor area after redevelopment is expected to be approximately
41,747 square feet. The superstructure works are currently
undergoing at the site. This project is expected to be completed in
late 2024.
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Property Investment

As at 31 March 2024, the Group's portfolio of investment
properties comprised of residential, commercial and industrial units
located in Hong Kong and Singapore.

For the Year, the rental income of the Group from continuing
operations was approximately HK$43,101,000 (2023:
approximately HK$43,255,000), representing a decrease of
approximately 0.4%. For the Year, the rental income of the Group
from discontinued operation was HK$nil (2023: approximately
HK$4,602,000). For the Year, the building management income
of the Group from continuing operations was approximately
HK$981,000 (2023: approximately HK$1,636,000). The decrease
in building management income from continuing operations was
primarily since sub-contracted certain building management
services.

As at 31 March 2024, the occupancy rate of residential units,
commercial units and industrial units of the Group's investment
properties were 100.0%, 99.2% and 95.0% (2023: 100.0%,
99.2% and 90.6%) respectively. A loss on changes in fair value
of investment properties of approximately HK$47,333,000
(2023: gain of approximately HK$191,361,000) was recognised
during the Year. The segment reported a loss of approximately
HK$60,725,000 for the Year (2023: gain of approximately
HK$190,515,000), representing a decrease of approximately
HK$251,240,000 compared to the Previous Year.

The Group acts as a principal and is primarily responsible for
providing building management services to property owners
in Hong Kong. To meet the statutory requirements under the
property management licensing regime, which became mandatory
on 1 August 2023, the Group's related residential and commercial
property management companies have obtained the required
licences, reinforcing the Group’'s commitment to delivering
high-quality property management services.
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Disposal of property in Singapore by subsidiary of
Eminence

On 14 April 2023, the purchaser (an independent third party)
accepted and exercised the option granted by Grow Well Profits
Limited ("Grow Well"”) (a wholly-owned subsidiary of Eminence,
as seller) to purchase a residential apartment in Singapore
at a sale price of S$13,009,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$75,323,000). The disposal constitutes a major transaction
for the Company and a very substantial disposal for Eminence
under the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) (the
“Listing Rules”) . The disposal was approved by the Shareholders
pursuant to Rule 14.44 of the Listing Rules and the Eminence
shareholders at a special general meeting held on 31 May 2023.
Details of this transaction were set out in the joint announcement
dated 14 April 2023 and the joint circular dated 8 May 2023
published by the Company and Eminence and the announcement
dated 31 May 2023 published by Eminence.

The completion of the disposal took place on 7 July 2023. A gain
on the disposal of approximately S$1,366,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$7,900,000) was recognised.

Land resumption in the PRC by subsidiary of Eminence

On 5 October 2022, a land resumption agreement was entered
into between the People's Government of Zhili Town, Wuxing
District, Huzhou City, Zhejiang Province, The People’'s Republic
of China (the "PRC") (the "Huzhou Government"”, each of
itself and its ultimate beneficial owners are independent third
parties), and a wholly-owned subsidiary of Eminence, pursuant
to which, among other things, the Huzhou Government shall
resume, and the Eminence subsidiary shall surrender, an
industrial complex in Huzhou City, Zhejiang Province, the PRC
(the "Huzhou Properties”) with the compensation amount of
RMB386,982,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$439,752,000)
(the “"Compensation Amount”). An exemption has been granted
by the Stock Exchange that the entering into the land resumption
agreement does not constitute a transaction for the Company and
Eminence.
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The financial results of the property investment in the PRC
were classified as discontinued operation during the Year (2023:
same). In February 2024, the Compensation Amount has been
received by the Group in full, and the Huzhou Properties have
been resumed by the Huzhou Government, and accordingly, the
Huzhou Properties were no longer accounted for in the financial
statements of the Group as at 31 March 2024.

For further details, please refer to the announcement jointly
published by the Company and Eminence dated 5 October 2022.

Investment in Securities and Others

The Group invested in a diversified portfolio of investments
including listed and unlisted equity securities, equity-linked notes,
bonds and other investment products based on (i) potential return
on investment in terms of capital appreciation and dividend
payment for the targeted holding period; (ii) risks exposure in
comparison with the Group's risk tolerance level at the prevailing
time; and (iii) diversification of the existing investment portfolio.

As at 31 March 2024, the Group's financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss amounted to approximately HK$211,854,000
(2023: approximately HK$191,160,000). There were no
investments held by the Group of which value was more than
5% of the total assets of the Group. The Group recorded a loss
in the securities investment segment from continuing operations
of approximately HK$1,992,000 during the Year (2023: loss of
approximately HK$71,940,000).
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As at 31 March 2024, details of the Group's financial assets are set /2024 3A31H - AEEN S M E EFI1S

out as follows: g N
As at 31 March 2024 For the Year
R20245F38318 KEE
Approximate
percentage to Dividend/
Numberof  Investment Group's total Interest Fair value Realised
Nature of investments shares held Cost Fair value assets income  gain/(loss) loss
HAEE
BAEEN AYE
firt B4 ks/ ki/ = 32}
REng RH%E RERK AYE Bt FERA (B8 i
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
FAT FAT AT FAT FAT
Equity Investments
RERE
Best Food Holding Company Limited
(stock code: 1488) 109,762,000 101,836 109,762 1.3% - 18772 -

BRERERAA (RHKE:1488)
Ping An Insurance (Group) Company of China, Ltd.

(stock code: 2318) 733,460 55,510 24,241 0.3% 1,784 (13,202) -
HETRRE(EBRNERAF

(AR5 : 2318)

Others N/A 29,432 14,158 0.1% 27 (6,333) -
it TER
Investment in limited partnership N/A 34,555 4732 0.5% 1317 (705) -
REERAHLE TEE
Qthers NJ/A 20,961 20,961 0.2% h6 (491) -
i T BA
Total: 247 344 211,804 24% 3,184 (1,959) -
it
Loan Financing BEXmE
The loan financing business of the Group is operated by Planetic  7ZN% B #) B 3} &b & % 7 i Planetic International

International Limited (“Planetic”, a wholly-owned subsidiary of  Limited ([Planetic] - 7K A & &) & & i B A 7))
the Company) and City China International Limited (“City China”, NRFBEEAER AR (HEHFI] Lz 2 EH
a wholly-owned subsidiary of Eminence), which are both licensed BRA])&E » MEH BRIERE AMEH (F
money lenders carrying on business under the Money Lenders & A F163F) ETTEB 2 FRKE A °
Ordinance (Chapter 163 of the Laws of Hong Kong).



For the Year, the Group recorded an interest income from the
loan financing business from continuing operations amounted
to approximately HK$13,061,000 (2023: approximately
HK$13,224,000), while the interest income from the loan
financing from discontinued operation amounted to HKS$nil (2023:
approximately HK$503,000). The decrease in interest income was
primarily due to decrease in loan receivable balance of borrowings
for the Year. Profit derived from loan financing business from
continuing operations was approximately HK$151,000 for the Year
(2023: loss of approximately HK$12,302,000).

The target customer groups of the business are generally
individuals and corporate entities that have short-term funding
needs and can provide collaterals for their borrowings at their best
endeavour. The Group's clientele is primarily acquired through
business referrals and introductions from the Company’s directors,
senior management, business partners or clients. The source of
funds for the loan financing business is funded by the internal
resources of the Group.

As at 31 March 2024, the gross carrying amount of loans receivable
amounting to HK$195,657,000 (2023: HK$300,807,000) of which
53% (2023: 39%) were secured by marketable securities with fair
values of HK$30,000,000 (2023: HK$35,670,000) or properties
with fair values of HK$96,345,000 (2023: HK$98,245,000)). The
Group is not permitted to sell or repledge the collaterals, if any,
in the absence of default by the borrower. In addition, the gross
carrying amount of unsecured loans receivable amounting to
HKS$nil (2023: HK$57,309,000) are with personal guarantees. The
largest borrower of the Group by itself and together with the other
four largest borrowers of the Group accounted for approximately
21% and 67% respectively (2023: 26% and 52% respectively) of
the Group's loans receivable as at 31 March 2024.

During the Year, the range of interest rate on the Group's fixed-rate
loans receivable was 0% (a one-off upfront fee being paid in lump
sum at drawdown date, representing 9% of the loan principal
amount for a term of 3-year) to 14% (2023: 0% to 16%) per annum
and the range of interest rate on the Group’s variable-rate loans
receivable was prime rate less 1% to prime rate (2023: prime rate
less 1% to prime rate) per annum.
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The Group has credit policies, guidelines and procedures in place
which cover key internal controls of a loan transaction including due
diligence, credit appraisal, proper execution of documentations,
continuous monitoring and collection and recovery. The due
diligence procedures included conducting research on the
borrowers’ background, evaluating its current business operations
and financial conditions, market reputation and creditability,
and conducting financial analysis and recoverability analysis. To
minimise credit or investment risks, the Group will seek securities
and/or guarantees, including collaterals with expected realised
value exceeding the loan or investment amount, and/or personal
guarantees and corporate guarantees.

The Group generally provides short-term loans of maturity of not
more than three (3) years. The repayment terms and conditions are
determined by the factors including, among others, the liquidity
needs of the borrowers, the Group’s funding and cash flows
management strategies, and the terms and rates of the prevailing
market.

After drawdown of loan, the loan agreement will be filed with the
loan documents properly. The Group maintains regular contact
with the borrowers and carries out periodical review to assess
the recovery of the loan based on the business development,
financial status, repayment ability of the borrowers such as recent
settlement record of the borrowers and whether there are any
litigations and bankruptcy orders against the borrowers. The Group
will take all necessary legal actions against the relevant clients to
follow up the settlement of the outstanding loans.

The Group performs impairment assessment under expected
credit loss ("ECL") model on loans receivable which are subject
to impairment assessment under Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standard 9 “Financial Instruments”. The amount of ECL is updated
at each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since
initial recognition. In particular, the following information is being
considered when assessing whether credit risk has increased
significantly:

— an actual or expected significant deterioration in the loans
receivable’s external (if available) or internal credit rating;
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— significant deterioration in external market indicators of credit
risk, e.g. a significant increase in the credit spread, the credit
default swap prices for the borrower,

— existing or forecast adverse changes in business, financial
or economic conditions that are expected to cause a
significant decrease in the borrower’s ability to meet its debt
obligations;

— an actual or expected significant deterioration in the operating
results of the borrower;

— an actual or expected significant adverse change in the
regulatory, economic, or technological environments of
the borrower that results in a significant decrease in the
borrower's ability to meet its debt obligations.

During the year ended 31 March 2024, the reversal of impairment
loss recognised in profit or loss amounted to HK$2,675,000 (2023:
impairment loss of HK$11,562,000) in its loan financing business.

Below were the disclosable transactions of the Group on loan
financing business during the Year:

(I) Extensions of financial assistance to an individual
borrower

On 7 December 2023, Planetic as lender entered into a
supplemental agreement with an individual borrower to
extend the repayment date of a loan in the principal amount
of HK$35,400,000 for a further 2 years to 7 December 2025
at an interest rate of 5% per annum. The loan is secured by
a share charge in favour of Planetic in respect of 30,000,000
ordinary issued shares of a company whose shares are listed
on the main board of the Stock Exchange.

The extension of the Loan constitutes a discloseable
transaction under the Listing Rules for the Company, details
of which were set out in the announcement of the Company
dated 7 December 2023.
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Extensions of financial assistance to a corporate
borrower

On 29 December 2023, Planetic (as lender) and a corporate
borrower, (as borrower) entered into a supplemental
agreement pursuant to which the principal amount of a loan
be adjusted to HK$45,800,000 (after repayment of principal
amount of HK$4,200,000) at an interest rate of 14% per
annum and the repayment date be further extended for 1
month to 29 January 2024. The loan is secured by a share
charge over the then entire issued share capital of such
corporate borrower, a first legal charge over all the title, rights
and interest in commercial properties located in Mongkok,
Kowloon, Hong Kong owned by such corporate borrower
and a personal guarantee by the sole director and the sole
shareholder of the wholly-owned beneficial owner of such
corporate borrower. After 29 January 2024, the borrower
repaid HK$10,000,000 to the lender before 31 March 2024
and further repaid HK$12,000,000 as at the date of this
annual report.

The extension of the loan constitutes a discloseable
transaction under the Listing Rules for the Company, details
of which were set out in the announcements of the Company
dated 12 November 2021, 11 May 2022, 30 December 2022
and 29 December 2023 respectively.

Eminence Group is engaged in property development, property
investment comprising the ownership and rental of investment
properties, investment in securities and others and loan financing
businesses. For the Year, the financial results and positions of
Eminence Group had been consolidated in the consolidated
financial statements of the Group.

Investment in Eminence Shares

As at 1 April 2023, the Group held an aggregate of 1,097,157,506
shares of Eminence, representing approximately 51.60% of the
then total issued share capital of Eminence.
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(1)

Eminence capital reorganisation and change in
board lot size

The capital reorganisation of Eminence has become effective
on 19 July 2023 (the "Eminence Capital Reorganisation”)
which involved (i) a consolidation of every forty (40) issued
and unissued existing shares of Eminence of par value of
HK$0.01 each into one (1) consolidated share of Eminence
(the “Eminence Consolidated Share(s)"”) of par value of
HK$0.40 each (the “Eminence Share Consolidation”); (ii)
following the capital reduction of Eminence having become
effective (the "Eminence Capital Reduction”), the par
value of each issued Eminence Consolidated Share would
be reduced from HK$0.40 to HK$0.01 by (a) eliminating any
fraction of a Eminence Consolidated Share in the issued
share capital of Eminence arising from the Eminence Share
Consolidation in order to round down the total number of
the Eminence Consolidated Shares to a whole number; and
(b) cancelling HK$0.39 of the paid-up capital of Eminence
on each issued Eminence Consolidated Share so that each
issued new share of Eminence (the “New Eminence
Share(s)"”) will be treated as one (1) fully paid-up share of
par value of HK$0.01 each in the share capital of Eminence
immediately following the Eminence Capital Reduction and
the credit arising from the Eminence Capital Reduction to be
transferred to the contributed surplus account of Eminence
within the meaning of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda;
and (iii) following the Eminence Share Consolidation and
the Eminence Capital Reduction having become effective,
each authorised but unissued Eminence Consolidated Share
(including those authorised unissued Eminence Consolidated
Shares arising from the Eminence Capital Reduction) has
been subdivided into forty (40) authorised but unissued New
Eminence Shares of par value of HK$0.01 each.

Upon the completion of the Eminence Capital Reorganisation
on 19 July 2023, the board lot size of Eminence shares for
trading on the Stock Exchange has been changed from
20,000 shares to 5,000 shares.

For more details, please refer to Eminence’s announcements
dated 29 May 2023, 16 June 2023, 17 July 2023 and 19 July
2023, and circular dated 23 June 2023 respectively.
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(ll) Major Transaction — Deemed disposal of interest

in Eminence

On 29 May 2023, Eminence entered into a placing agreement
(the “Eminence Placing Agreement |”) with a placing
agent for a placing of a maximum of up to 50,000,000 new
Eminence shares at a placing price of HK$0.50 per placing
share to not less than six allottees who and whose beneficial
owners are independent third parties (the “"Eminence
Placing 1") subject to the Eminence Capital Reorganisation
becoming effective and a specific mandate being granted
by the Eminence shareholders. The Eminence Placing |
constituted a major transaction and a deemed disposal
transaction (the "MT-Deemed Disposal”) of the Company
under the Listing Rules.

The MT-Deemed Disposal and the Eminence Placing
Agreement | and the transactions contemplated thereunder
were approved at the separate special general meetings by
the Shareholders and the Eminence shareholders both held
on 24 July 2023. The completion of the Eminence Placing
| took place on 3 August 2023 in which the shareholding
interest of the Group in Eminence had been diluted from
approximately 51.60% to approximately 26.59%. Eminence'’s
financial results and financial positions remained to be
consolidated in the consolidated financial statements of the
Group.

For more details of the MT-Deemed Disposal, please refer
to Company’s announcements dated 30 May 2023, 14 June
2023, 17 July 2023 and 24 July 2023, and circular dated 27
June 2023 respectively.
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(lll) Very Substantial Disposal — Deemed disposal of

interest in Eminence

On 23 January 2024, Eminence entered into a placing
agreement (the "Eminence Placing Agreement I1")
with a placing agent for a placing of a maximum of up to
235,000,000 new Eminence shares at a placing price of
HK$0.18 per placing share to not less than six allottees
who and whose beneficial owners are independent third
parties (the “Eminence Placing I1”). The Eminence Placing
Il constituted a very substantial disposal and a deemed
disposal transaction (the “VSD-Deemed Disposal”) of the
Company under the Listing Rules.

The VSD-Deemed Disposal and the Eminence Placing
Agreement Il and the transactions contemplated thereunder
were approved at the separate special general meetings
by the Shareholders and the independent Eminence
shareholders both held on 21 March 2024. The completion of
the Eminence Placing Il took place on 17 April 2024 in which
the shareholding interest of the Group in Eminence had been
diluted from approximately 26.59% to approximately 8.11%.
Upon completion of the Eminence Placing Il, Eminence’s
financial results and financial positions has no longer be
consolidated in the consolidated financial statements of the
Group.

For more details of the VSD-Deemed Disposal, please refer
to the Company and Eminence’s joint announcements dated
23 January 2024 and 17 April 2024 and joint circular dated 29
February 2024, and the Company’s announcement dated 21
March 2024.
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(IV) Deed of Amendment to Eminence Convertible

Notes

As at 1 April 2023, the total outstanding principal amount
of Eminence convertible notes held by a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company (the “Holder") is as follow:

Number of
Outstanding conversion
Issue date principal amount shares
RTAH HARBZASE HARGEHE

HK$

BT

2023.02.20 ("2023 CN")

([2023F AR EE)) 209,000,000  1,971,698,113

On 23 January 2024, the Holder entered into a deed of
amendment (the "Deed of Amendment”) with Eminence
to amend the terms of the 2023 CN mainly to (i) change
the conversion price and (ii) alter the early redemption
provision, to give Eminence and the Holder the right to
redeem the 2023 CN at any time, in whole or in part. The
Deed of Amendment and the transactions contemplated
thereunder were approved at a special general meeting by
the independent Eminence shareholders held on 27 March
2024. The total number of conversion shares and conversion
price had been adjusted to 1,161,111,111 conversion shares at
HK$0.18 per conversion share respectively on 17 April 2024
pursuant to the Deed of Amendment subsequent to the
completion of Eminence Placing II.

Details of the Deed of Amendment were set out in the
Company and Eminence’s joint announcements dated 23
January 2024 and 17 April 2024; the circular of Eminence
dated 6 March 2024 and the announcement of Eminence
dated 27 March 2024.
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Performance of Eminence Group during the Year

The financial results of Eminence Group during the Year are

highlighted as below:

Continuing operations
Revenue
Rental income
Building management fee
income
Interest income from loan
financing

Total revenue

Gross profit
(Loss) profit for the Year from
continuing operations

Discontinued operation

Profit for the Year

(Loss) profit attributable to
owners of Eminence

(Loss) earnings per share
From continuing and
discontinued operations
— Basic
— Diluted
From continuing operations
— Basic
— Diluted
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For the year ended 31 March

BZE3A3MBLEE
2024 2023
20245 20234
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FETT
28,751 24,408
12 =2
1,930 2,786
30,693 27,194
27173 24,225
(218,804) 58,970
5,655 4,602
(213,149) 63,572
HK$ HK$
BT BT
(2.47) 1.50
(2.47) 1.37
(2.54) 1.39

(2.54) 1.27
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As at 31 March 2024 and up to the date of this annual report, the
development land portfolio held by Eminence Group as below:

Location Usage
B A%
No. 121 King Lam Street, Kowloon, Hong Kong Industrial
BB BB ME12198 I
No. 11 Matheson Street, Causeway Bay, Hong Kong Commercial
BERWRREENMEGNR [HES
Intended

Location usage
B RERZ
Nos. 646, 648, 648A Castle Peak Road, Kowloon, Hong Kong Industrial
BEANEETILE646 - 648 - 648A% T%
Nos. 1B-1E Davis Street and Nos. 93 and 95 Catchick Street, Residential
Kennedy Town, Hong Kong *=

BEBREHMEZLTEHIBEIETR A K
= % #9357 955k

Approximate
site area
BN BEE
(square feet)

(FHR)

5,483

2,857

Approximate
site area
BAHEEE
(square feet)

(FHR)

9,206

7122

R2024F3A3ME N EEAFHRBEE &L
EEHEENERLTHALSHT:

Year of
completion

BRITFD

May 2024
202445 H

February 2024
202442 A

Anticipated
year of
completion

AFARIEFEH

2026
20264

2026
20264



As at 31 March 2024, Eminence Group’s portfolio of investment
properties comprised of residential, commercial and industrial
units located in Hong Kong and Singapore. During the Year,
Eminence Group recorded rental income from continuing
operations of approximately HK$28,751,000 (2023: approximately
HK$24,408,000) and fair value loss from continuing operations
of approximately HK$9,563,000 (2023: gain of approximately
HK$78,967,000) arising from change in fair value of investment
properties.

For more detailed portfolio of property development and property
investment projects, as well as business and financial performance
of Eminence Group, please refer to its annual report for the year
ended 31 March 2024 dated 27 June 2024.

The Group financed its operations through internally generated
cash flow and bank borrowings. As at 31 March 2024, the Group
had aggregate bank borrowings amounted to approximately
HK$3,671,861,000 (2023: approximately HK$3,529,177,000).
The gearing ratio of the Group, calculated as a ratio of total bank
borrowings to total equity, for the Year was approximately 0.8
(2023: approximately 0.7).

As at 31 March 2024, the Group has net current assets of
approximately HK$3,546,059,000 (2023: approximately
HK$4,404,437,000). Current ratio was approximately 2.3 (2023:
approximately 3.0). The cash and cash equivalents as at 31 March
2024 was approximately HK$307,435,000 (2023: approximately
HK$398,894,000), representing a decrease of approximately
22.9% or approximately HK$91,459,000 compared to 31 March
2023.
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The maturity profile of the Group’s secured bank borrowings is set
out below:

AEEBFEEMRTEE Z DB REHT W0
T

As at 31 March

M3A31H
2024 2023
2024 20234
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FiE T
Carrying amount repayable as follows (based on the scheduled
repayment dates set out in the loan agreements):
EEEZEFEAENTIREBEHINERGRZIEETEERL)
— within a period not exceeding one year 2,323,047 1,615,464
TR 38 — F B B A
— within a period of more than one year but not exceeding two years 1,115,397 884,750
EHE-—FETBEMENKHENR
— within a period of more than two years but not exceeding five years 100,408 876,325
EBMEETBIBAFENRFREA
— within a period of more than five years 133,009 152,638
ERFLAENRREA
3,671,861 3,529,177
Less: Amount due within one year shown under current liabilities (2,323,047) (1,615,464)
BBTRRRBBEZ—FRNIPEHE
Amount due after one year shown under non-current liabilities 1,348,814 1,913,713

BIRNERBABE L - FREYEER

At 31 March 2024, the Group's secured bank borrowings carry
interest ranging from the Hong Kong Inter-Bank Offered Rate
("HIBOR") plus 1.0% to 1.825%, the Secured Overnight Financing
Rate (“SOFR") plus 0.8% to 1.05% (2023: HIBOR plus 1.0% to
1.825%, London Inter-Bank Offered Rate (“LIBOR") plus 0.8% to
1.0%) per annum, with effective interest ranging from 4.375% to
6.785% (2023: 4.21% to 5.86%) per annum.

MR2024F3A31H  AEBBHIFRITEE
CENEEZEBEBEROTAXFE(EBRT
B2FE])IN1.0%E1.825% - BERRBR
BMEMNEX(BERBEBRERNE]) N0.8%
£1.05% (2023%F : & B R 17 R % #F 2 10
1.0% £1.825% * AT RIEFRE (R
BITREFELE]MN0S% E1.0%) it E - &
o 4 R T A F4.375% £6.785% (20234 :
4.21%%5.86%) °



As at 31 March 2024, bank loans of the Group in the aggregate
amount of approximately HK$3,671,861,000 (2023: approximately
HK$3,529,177,000) which were secured by leasehold properties,
investment properties, properties held for development for
sale, properties held for sale, life insurance policies and listed
equity securities in Hong Kong and overseas of the Group
having a net book value of approximately HK$7,341,709,000
(2023: approximately HK$7,851,249,000). In addition, a credit
facility granted by a bank for a property development project
in Hong Kong was secured by pledge of 7,500,000 Eminence
shares (after Eminence Capital Reorganisation) with fair value
of approximately HK$1,643,000 (2023: 300,000,000 Eminence
shares (before Eminence Capital Reorganisation) with fair value of
HK$11,400,000) held by a subsidiary of the Group.

The Group diversifies its source of funds including internal
generated cash flow and interest-bearing bank borrowings during
the Year to generate source of funds for its business operations.
The Group regularly reviews its major funding positions to ensure
that it has adequate financial resources in meeting its financial
obligations.

All bank borrowings are denominated in Hong Kong dollars. The
revenue and payments of the Group, being mostly denominated
in Hong Kong dollars, matches the currency requirements of
the Group's operating expenses. The Group therefore has not
engaged in any hedging activities during the Year under review.
Management of the Group is of the opinion that the Group has
no material foreign exchange exposure in the usual course of the
Group's daily operation.

The Group did not have any significant contingent liabilities as at 31
March 2024 (31 March 2023: nil).
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For the Year, the Group invested approximately HK$1,443,000
(2023: approximately HK$578,000) on the acquisition of property,
plant and equipment, and no additions of investment properties for
the Year and Previous Year.

As at 31 March 2024, the Group had capital commitments
in respect of capital expenditure contracted for but not
provided of approximately HK$4,418,000 (2023: approximately
HK$19,635,000).

Upon completion of the Eminence Placing Il on 17 April 2024,
the Group held an aggregate of 27,428,937 shares of Eminence,
representing approximately 8.11% of the total issued share capital
of Eminence. As a result, Eminence’s financial results and financial
positions shall no longer be consolidated in the consolidated
financial statements of the Group, details of which disclosed in the
section headed “Very Substantial Disposal — Deemed disposal of
interest in Eminence” above.

The geopolitical tensions, sustained high interest rates,
underperforming stock market returns, and below-expectation
GDP growth caused a drag on the economy and property market
in Hong Kong. With a view to stabilising the property market in
Hong Kong, the Financial Secretary of Hong Kong announced in his
Budget Speech at the end of February 2024 that all the restrictions
on the sale of properties which have been implemented for over
a decade are lifted immediately, and at the same time, the Hong
Kong Monetary Authority also announced the suspension of the
mortgage stress test and the relaxation of the loan-to-value ratios
of certain types of properties. Both initiatives were conducive to
the purchase of new and replacement homes for local residents
and encouraged Mainland talents and professionals to work and
buy their own homes in Hong Kong. A number of new property
developments which were launched for sale after the withdrawal
of the restrictions achieved satisfactory sales performance. The
Group anticipates that when the interest rates begin to ease, the
market confidence towards the property sector in Hong Kong will
gradually restore.
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Along with the revival of inbound tourism, Hong Kong's retail
market continued to recover. However, the changes in the
spending patterns of tourists and intense competition from
neighbouring regions create new challenges to the office and retail
leasing business in Hong Kong. Tenants have remained cautious
and delayed their relocation or expansion plans for leases. The
Group has been coping with the changing market trends and the
evolving operating environment by continuing to optimise the
tenants mix.

Looking ahead, the Group will continue to focus its efforts in the
development of its existing principal businesses and will exercise
prudent capital management and approach in its operations. We
will continue to monitor the market changes closely and strengthen
the principal segments of its businesses while exploring other
potential opportunities with a view to providing steady and
favourable returns for the Shareholders and bringing increased
values to the Group's stakeholders.

As at 31 March 2024, the Group had 62 employees (2023: 65).
Staff costs (including Directors’ emoluments) amounted to
approximately HK$73,399,000 for the Year (2023: approximately
HK$71,261,000). The Group remunerates its employees based on
individual performance, experience and prevailing industry practice.
The Group provides a defined contribution to Mandatory Provident
Fund as required under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance (Chapter 485 of the Laws of Hong Kong) for all eligible
employees of the Group in Hong Kong.
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Ms. KOON Ho Yan Candy
President, Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director

Ms. Koon Ho Yan, Candy, aged 39, has been re-designated to
the president and chief executive officer, and the chairman of
the Executive Committee of the Company on 13 August 2020.
She was appointed as an executive Director and authorised
representative and a member of the Executive Committee of the
Company in 2010. She is also a director of various subsidiaries
of the Group. Ms. Koon obtained a Bachelor of Arts degree in
Economics and Politics from the University of Durham, England in
2007. She also received her Bachelor of Laws degree and Legal
Practice Course qualification in 2009 from the University of Law,
England. Ms. Koon is the daughter of Ms. Lui Yuk Chu, the vice
president of the Company.

Ms. LUI Yuk Chu
Vice President and Executive Director

Ms. Lui Yuk Chu, aged 66, is a co-founder of the Group, an
executive Director and vice president and a member of the
Executive Committee of the Company. She is also a director
of various subsidiaries of the Company. Besides, Ms. Lui is an
executive director and deputy chairman, and a member of the
executive committee of Eminence and serves as director of various
subsidiaries of Eminence. Ms. Lui has been involved in the textiles
industry for over 30 years and has extensive experience in design,
manufacturing, marketing and distribution of apparel. Ms. Lui was
appointed to the Board as an executive Director in 1994. In 2006,
Ms. Lui was appointed as vice president of the Company. Ms. Lui
is the wife of Mr. Koon Wing Yee, the co-founder of the Group.
She is also the mother of Ms. Koon Ho Yan Candy, an executive
Director.
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Mr. TSUI Chun Kong
Independent Non-executive Director

Mr. Tsui Chun Kong, aged 73, has been an independent
non-executive Director since 2004. He is also a member and the
chairman of the Audit Committee, a member of the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee of the Company.
He obtained a Master’'s Degree in Business Administration from
the Oklahoma City University in the United States in 1991 and
is a fellow member of both The Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and The Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants. Mr. Tsui has over 40 years of experience in the public
accounting profession and the commercial sector, especially the
travel industry. He has experience in the preparation for the listing
of shares on the Stock Exchange and worked for a few listed
companies. Mr. Tsui is now practising as a public accountant under
his own name.

Mr. JONG Koon Sang
Independent Non-executive Director

Mr. Jong Koon Sang, aged 75, has been an independent
non-executive director since 2005. He is also a member and
chairman of the Remuneration Committee, a member of the Audit
Committee and the Nomination Committee of the Company.
Currently, Mr. Jong is a fellow member of The Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and The Association
of International Accountants, England; a fellow member of the
Chartered Management Institute, England; a fellow member of
The Taxation Institute of Hong Kong; the accountant ambassador
of The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants; and
Honorary Vice President of Accounting Student Society of Hong
Kong University of Science and Technology. Since 2014, he has
been elected as director and council member of the Association of
International Accountants, England. In the years of 2011 and 2012,
Mr. Jong was the President of The Association of International
Accountants, Hong Kong Branch. From 2010 to 2020, he was
a member of the Regional Advisory Committee of the Hong
Kong Hospital Authority. In 2019, Mr. Jong was appointed as the
alternative structured manager of Shek Lei Catholic Primary School
and Nam Wah Catholic Secondary School. Mr. Jong was appointed
by the foregoing schools in May and June 2020 respectively
as School Sponsoring Body Manager of the Incorporated
Management Committee commenced from 1 September 2020
to 31 August 2023. He has also been appointed as a Sponsoring
Body Manager of Shung Tak Catholic English College for his tenure
of office from 1 September 2021 to 31 August 2024. Mr. Jong has
over 40 years of management experience in the financial, industrial
and property business.
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Mr. LAU Chak Hang Charles
Independent Non-executive Director

Mr. Lau Chak Hang Charles, aged 37, has been an independent
non-executive Director, the chairman and a member of the
Nomination Committee, and a member of the Audit committee
and the remuneration committee of the Company since 2020. Mr.
Lau holds a Bachelor's Degree in Engineering from the Chinese
University of Hong Kong. He is currently an executive director at
Frost & Sullivan Limited, a multinational management consulting
firm principally engaged in market research and growth consulting
service, corporate strategic and operational advisory service, etc.
Client coverage of such company spans across different continents
and wide spectrum of industries. Mr. Lau has extensive experience
in the financial industry.
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The Company believes that good corporate governance provides a
framework that is essential for an effective Board, accountability,
sound internal control, appropriate risk-assessment, monitoring
procedures and transparency to all Shareholders and stakeholders.

The Board is committed to maintaining a high standard of
corporate governance practices through the establishment of a
comprehensive and efficient framework of policies, procedures
and systems throughout the Group.

The Board defines and leads the purpose, values and strategy
of the Group. The Group is committed to strategically investing
in and developing quality properties, and to delivering attractive
and sustainable returns to the Shareholders. Despite the dynamic
operating environment, the Group places strong emphasis on
employee relations, workplace safety, and the efficient use of
materials, energy, and other environmental metrics, promoting a
culture of ethical conduct and integrity. A healthy corporate culture
is important to good corporate governance which is crucial for
achieving sustainable long-term success of the Group. The Board
considers that the corporate culture and the purpose, value and
strategy of the Group are aligned.

The Company’s corporate governance practices are based on
the principles and the code provisions as set out in the Corporate
Governance Code (the “CG Code") contained in Appendix C1 to
the Listing Rules. The Company has fully complied with the code
provisions of the CG Code throughout the Year, with the following
exceptions:

Code Provision C.2.1

The roles of president and chief executive officer should be
separate and should not be performed by the same individual

Ms. Koon Ho Yan Candy serves as president as well as chief
executive officer of the Company. The Board considers this
arrangement to be appropriate for the Company as it preserves
the consistent leadership which is conducive to making effective
planning and better execution of long-term strategies consistently.
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The Board is of the view that a balance of power and authority
is adequately ensured by the operations and governance of the
Board which comprises experienced and high caliber individuals,
with half of them being independent non-executive Directors. The
Company will continue to review the existing structure when and
as it becomes appropriate.

Code Provision D.2.5

The issuer should have an internal audit function The Group
does not have an internal audit function.

During the Year, the Board has reviewed the effectiveness of
the internal control system of the Group and considered that
the current risk management and internal control processes are
adequate to meet the needs of the Group in its current business
environment and nothing has come to its attention to cause the
Board to believe the Group’s risk management and internal control
systems are inadequate. The Board was of the view that there is
no immediate need to set up an internal audit function within the
Group, however, shall review the need for one on annual basis.

During the Year, the Board has five (5) Directors comprising two
(2) executive Directors and three (3) independent non-executive
Directors, namely:

Executive Directors

Ms. Koon Ho Yan Candy (President and Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. Lui Yuk Chu (Vice President)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Tsui Chun Kong
Mr. Jong Koon Sang
Mr. Lau Chak Hang Charles

The biographical details of the Directors are set out in the section
headed “Biographical Details of Directors” of this annual report.
Save as disclosed in that section, to the best knowledge of the
Company, there is no other financial, business, family or other
material relationships among the Directors.
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Role and Delegation

The Board is accountable to the Shareholders for the activities and
performance of the Group. The Board meets on a regular basis,
at least four (4) times a year at approximately quarterly intervals,
and on other occasions when a board-level decision on a particular
matter is required. With a view to maintaining an appropriate
balance of authority and responsibility, the Board through various
committee (each as the “Board Committee”) by delegation to
carry out their functions which set out in their respective terms
of reference. Currently, there are four (4) board committees,
namely executive committee (the “Executive Committee”), audit
committee (the “Audit Committee"”), remuneration committee
(the “Remuneration Committee”) and nomination committee
(the "Nomination Committee”) (Details of each of the Board
committees are provided below in this report). The Board is
responsible for formulating of corporate strategies, reviewing and
guiding the business and affairs, monitoring financial and operating
performance and is individual. The Board reserves the authority to
make final decisions for all major matters of the Company covering
internal control and risk management, dividend payout, major
transactions, release of financial information, appointment/removal
of Directors and auditors, and other significant operational and
financial matters.

There is no separation of the role of the president and the chief
executive officer in the Company. Ms. Koon Ho Yan Candy as
the president provides leadership of the Board and as the chief
executive officer has taken up the management of the Group’s
business and overall operation. However, the day-to-day running
of the Company has been delegated to the divisional heads
responsible for the different aspects of the business.

The Board considers that this structure will not impair the balance
of power and authority between the Board and the management
of the business of the Group given that there are a strong
and independent element on the Board and a clear division of
responsibility in running the business of the Group. The Board
believes that the structure outlined above is beneficial to the
Company and its business.
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Attendance of Directors at Various Meetings

Details of the attendance of individual Directors at the Board and
Board Committee meetings held during the Year, annual general
meeting held on 23 August 2023 (“2023 AGM") and special
general meetings held on 24 July 2023, 12 December 2023 and 21
March 2024 (“SGMs") are as follows:

Audit
Board Committee
Exg ENZEE
Executive Directors HITEE
Koon Ho Yan Candy BEAM 4/4 —
Lui Yuk Chu EI% 4/4 —
Independent non-executive BYEHITES
Directors
Tsui Chun Kong GRES 4/4 2/2
Jong Koon Sang [ 4/4 2/2
Lau Chak Hang Charles el 4/4 2/2

Appointment and Re-election of Directors

The appointment of a new Director is made on the
recommendation of the Nomination Committee and the Board and
by the Shareholders in a general meeting.

In accordance with the bye-laws of the Company (the “Bye-laws”),
Directors who are appointed by the Board to fill casual vacancies
or as an addition to the existing Board shall hold office until the
next following annual general meeting of the Company and shall
be eligible for re-election at the meeting after their appointments.
All Directors, including those appointed for a specific term, are
subject to retirement by rotation and eligible to offer themselves
for re-election at the annual general meeting no later than the third
annual general meeting since the last election or re-election.
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Induction and Continuous Professional
Development of Directors

An induction package would be provided to each newly appointed
Director to ensure that each Director is familiar with the role of the
Board, the responsibilities and obligations of Director under the
Listing Rules and relevant statutory requirements.

According to the code provision C.1.4 of the CG Code, all Directors
should participate in continuous professional development to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills to ensure that
their contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant.
Training materials or briefings in respect of the updates on, among
other things, the Listing Rules and other applicable statutory
requirements are regularly circulated to all Directors. The Company
also provides and circulates to the Directors with monthly and
regular updates relating to the Group's business, financial position
and business environment, in which the Group operates.

All Directors have provided a record of training they received during
the Year to the Company, which includes attending seminars,
reading various materials regarding directors’ responsibilities,
updates on the Listing Rules and corporate governance policy, etc,
and such records have been maintained by the company secretary
of the Company for accurate and comprehensive record keeping.

The Board has established four (4) Board Committees, namely
Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee, Nomination
Committee and Executive Committee to assist in the execution
of the Board's responsibilities and to oversee particular aspect
of the Group's affairs. Each Board Committee is provided with
sufficient resources to discharge its duties and may access to
independent professional advice according to the Company's
policy, if necessary. Each Board Committee holds meetings
in accordance with the Bye-laws, its specific written terms of
reference and, where applicable, the proceedings of the Board
meeting. The written terms of reference of the Board Committees
are reviewed and updated regularly to ensure that they are aligned
with prevailing governance practices. Each committee is required
to report to the Board on its decision and recommendations,
where appropriate. The authority and duties of each of the Board
Committee are set out in its respective terms of reference which
are available on the Company’s and/or the Stock Exchange's
websites.
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During the Year, the Audit Committee comprises three (3)
independent non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Tsui Chun
Kong (the chairman), Mr. Jong Koon Sang and Mr. Lau Chak
Hang Charles. Mr. Tsui Chun Kong and Mr. Jong Koon Sang both
possess the appropriate professional qualifications and accounting
and financial management expertise and in compliance with Rule
3.21 of the Listing Rules.

The principal functions of the Audit Committee are:
° to oversee the relationship with the external auditors;

° to review the interim and annual financial statements before
publication;

° to oversee the Group's financial reporting system and internal
control procedures; and

° to perform the corporate governance functions

During the Year, the Audit Committee members held two (2)
meetings with the Group senior management and the independent
auditor of the Company to review (i) the draft consolidated financial
statements of the Group (including the annual results for the year
ended 31 March 2023 and the interim results for the six-month
period ended 30 September 2023) before recommending them to
the Board for approval; (i) the accounting principles and practices
adopted by the Group; (iii) the effectiveness of risk management
and internal control system of the Company; and (iv) the
Shareholders Communication Policy, the Whistleblowing Policy
and Anti-corruption Policy of the Company. It keeps under review
the independence and objectivity of the Company’s independent
auditor and the non-audit services provided by the Company’s
independent auditor to the Group.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the Group's consolidated
financial statements for the Year in conjunction with the
Company’s independent auditor and was satisfied that the
consolidation financial statements for the Year were complied with
the applicable accounting standards and Appendix D2 to the Listing
Rules. The Audit Committee therefore resolved to recommend the
consolidation financial statements for the Year be approved by the
Board.
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The Audit Committee is satisfied with, inter alia, the audit fees,
effectiveness of the audit process, independence and objectivity
of Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu (“Deloitte”) and has
recommended to the Board the re-appointment of Deloitte as
the Company’s independent auditor for the ensuing year at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company (2024
AGM").

During the Year, the Remuneration Committee comprises three
(3) independent non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Jong Koon
Sang (the chairman), Mr. Tsui Chun Kong and Mr. Lau Chak Hang
Charles.

The principal functions of the Remuneration Committee are:

° to make recommendations to the Board on the Company's
policy and structure for the remuneration of Directors and
senior management;

° to review and determine, with delegated responsibility, the
remuneration packages of individual executive Director and
senior management with reference to the Board's corporate
goals and objectives;

° to review and approve the compensation arrangements in
connection with any loss or termination of their office or
appointment, or dismissal or removal for misconduct to
executive Directors and senior management which shall be
fair and not excessive; and

° to review and/or approve matters relating to share schemes
under Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules

During the Year, the Remuneration Committee held one (1)
meeting to review and approve the remuneration packages of the
Directors and senior management of the Company by reference
to factors such as salaries paid by comparable companies,
time commitment, responsibilities and employment conditions
elsewhere within the group and in the market. It has also made
recommendation to the Board on the directors’ fee for independent
non-executive Directors. No Director was involved in determining
his/her own remuneration.
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The Remuneration Committee has discharged or will continue
to discharge its major roles to, among other things, approve the
terms of the service agreements of the Directors and the senior
management of the Company, make recommendations with
respect to the remuneration and policies of the Directors and senior
management of the Company and to review the remuneration
package and recommend salaries, bonuses, including the incentive
awards for Directors and senior management of the Company.

Remuneration Mechanism

The remuneration mechanism of employees of the Group is set up
and approved by the Remuneration Committee and the Board on
the basis of employee’s performance, experience and prevailing
industry practice.

The remuneration of the Directors is determined by the Board
after review and on the recommendation of the Remuneration
Committee, having regard to factors such as time commitment
and responsibilities of the Directors, the Company’s performance
and the prevailing market practice.

During the Year, the Nomination Committee comprises three (3)
independent non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Lau Chak Hang
Charles (the chairman), Mr. Jong Koon Sang and Mr. Tsui Chun
Kong.

The principal functions of the Nomination Committee are:

o to review the structure, size and composition (including the
skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board;

° to identify and nominate suitable candidates of Directors for
the Board's consideration;

o to assess the independence of the independent
non-executive Directors; and

° to make recommendations to the Board on relevant matters
relating to the succession planning for the president and the
chief executive of the Company
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During the Year, the Nomination Committee held one (1) meeting
to (i) review the structure, size, composition and diversity of
the Board and the qualifications for all Directors and senior
management of the Group; (ii) review the board diversity policy
(the “"Board Diversity Policy”); (iii) review the nomination policy
(the “Nomination Policy"); (iv) assess the independence of the
independent non-executive Directors; (v) proposed the renewal
of appointment to an independent non-executive director to the
Board for approval; and (vi) nominate the re-appointment of retiring
directors to the Shareholders for approval.

Nomination Policy

The Company has adopted a Nomination Policy which incorporated
the selection criteria and nomination procedures for nomination
and appointment of Directors. Such policy is available on the
website of the Company.

In assessing the suitability of a proposed candidate, the
Nomination Committee takes into account of, inter alia, the
diversity of the Board as a whole, the candidate’s reputation for
integrity, commitment in respect of time, interest and attention to
the businesses of the Group as well as such other factors as the
Nomination Committee may consider appropriate.

In respect of the nomination procedure, all candidates are
required to submit his/her personal particulars and information
to the Nomination Committee. The secretary of the Nomination
Committee shall convene a meeting, and invite nominations
of candidates from Board members (if any), for consideration
by the Nomination Committee. For filling a casual vacancy, the
Nomination Committee shall make recommendations for the
Board's consideration and approval. For proposing candidates to
stand for election at a general meeting, the Nomination Committee
shall make nominations to the Board for its consideration and
recommendation. A circular will be sent to the Shareholders
providing information as required pursuant to the applicable laws,
rules and regulations of the candidates nominated by the Board to
stand for election at a general meeting.

2023/244F ¥

RAFE REZBEGCET(WRE#H
M EHNEEENRE - RE  RBEAX
RETICNARAEEEREENGRER
EWER (1BHNEFEZTEBRR(E
EESREED (N FEHREZBR(R
BEED (VAR BIFRTEENE L
M VEEREEZEBURTEETUH
ExedE RVIREEFZEREES
R AL A

REABK

ARABIDHEMEZBRR AP EIEAN
ZEEENEERENRLZRERF - HEAR
RARARNARBIEER o

EFEREARDAER REZEE=E
BERNEZRBHEHBTERE) EFTEENS
TEBER  REANHAEEE - YAKHE
EBNENERE BORBIETARERE
Ee@RRtEnEMEER -

IERIEFME  MBREABDEMRES
ZEEeRRXBEAEBHRES RAHZEE
WEECRESE  YHFEFTSKE(WA)
RAREAN HHIEXZESEEE - HRNE
MR ER REZEeRRELESMHE
EETRNME - HREBRERRARS L
2ENEEREAN REZBESRRAES
SELRE HEZEREE BRREE
BXRBE - BEPHARBERELRE AR
RGEHHERARERRBRRAEG LS E
MEEREAER -



2023/24 Annual Report

Board Diversity Policy

With a view to achieving a sustainable and balanced development,
the Company sees increasing diversity at the Board level as an
essential element in supporting the attainment of its strategic
objectives and its sustainable development. The Company has
adopted a Board Diversity Policy which sets out the approach to
achieve diversity. In designing the Board’'s composition, board
diversity has been considered from a number of aspects, including
but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
professional experience, industry experience, skills, knowledge
and length of service. All Board appointments will be based on the
considerations aforesaid, and candidates will be considered, having
due regard to diversity on the Board.

The Nomination Committee monitors the implementation of
the Board Diversity Policy and the progress on achieving those
measurable objectives and will review the Board Diversity Policy
on a regular basis to ensure its continuing effectiveness. Such
policy is available on the website of the Company.

The Board composition and diversity as at 31 March 2024 are as
follows:
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The Group is committed to maintain diversity (including gender
diversity) across all levels of the Group. The Group ensures fair
employment practices and offer equal employment opportunities
to recruit, promote and deploy employees based on their
skillset, abilities and how they fit the job requirements and future
development of our businesses. As at 31 March 2024, the Board
has two female Directors out of five Directors (40%).

As at 31 March 2024, approximately 50% (2023: 51%) of our total
workforces (excluding Directors) were female and approximately
50% (2023: 49%) were male. The total gender diversity of the
Group is balanced.

Board Independence

The Nomination Committee is responsible to assess the
independence of all the independent non-executive Directors
taking into account of the factors including (i) the compliance with
the criteria of independence as prescribed under Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules; (ii) must not have any involvement in the daily
management of the Company, or any financial or other interests
or relationships in the business of the Company; (iii) can provide
balanced, professional and independent advices and opinion to the
Board and play a leading role in the Board Committees.

Throughout the Year, three out of five Directors of the Board
were independent non-executive Directors. All independent
non-executive Directors are appointed for a specific term of
three (3) years. At all times during the Year, the Company has
complied with the requirements under Rule 3.10 and 3.10A of
the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least three
(3) independent non-executive directors, representing at least
one third of the Board and with at least one of them possessing
appropriate professional qualification or accounting or related
financial management expertise required under the Listing Rules.
The Board includes a balanced composition of executive Directors
and independent non-executive Directors so that there is a
strong element of independence in the Board. The independent
non-executive Directors shall be of sufficient calibre and stature for
their views to carry weight.
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The Company has received from each of the independent
non-executive Directors an annual confirmation of his
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. Despite
the fact that each of Mr. Tsui Chun Kong and Mr. Jong Koon Sang,
has served as an independent non-executive Director for more
than nine (9) years, the Board is of the view that their duration
of service will not interfere with their exercise of independent
judgement in carrying out their duties and responsibilities as
the independent non-executive Directors and believes that their
valuable knowledge and experience in the Group’s business will
continually benefit the Company and the Shareholders as a whole.
All independent non-executive Directors do not have any executive
or management role in the Company nor have been under the
employment of any member of the Group. Each of them receives
a fixed fee, not commensurate with the profit and performance
of the Group. They can bring an independent judgment to bear on
issues of strategy, policy, performance, accountability, resources,
key appointments and standards of conduct. Their presence
helps to enhance the Board’s balance of skills, experience and
diversity of perspectives. The Board considers that all independent
non-executive Directors have met the independence guidelines of
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

The Executive Committee with authority delegated by the Board
be regulated by its terms of reference, which are available on the
websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company. During the
Year, the Executive Committee comprises all the two (2) executive
Directors, namely Ms. Koon Ho Yan Candy (the chairman) and Ms.
Lui Yuk Chu. It meets as and when required between regular Board
meetings of the Company, and operates as a general management
committee under the direct authority of the Board. Within the
parameters of authority delegated by the Board, the Executive
Committee is committed to the implementation of the Group's
strategy set by the Board, monitors the Group's investment and
trading performance, funding and financing requirements, and
reviews the management performance.
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The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
as set out in Appendix C3 of the Listing Rules as its own code
of conduct regarding securities transactions by Directors. Having
made specific enquiry with the existing Directors, all of them
confirmed that they have complied with the required standard set
out in the Model Code regarding their dealings in securities of the
Company during the Year.

The Company also adopted a code on no less exacting terms
than the Model Code to regulate dealings in the securities of the
Company by certain employees of the Group who are considered
to be likely in possession of inside information in relation to the
Company or its securities.

Deloitte has been re-appointed as the independent auditor of the
Company at the 2023 AGM until the conclusion of the 2024 AGM.

During the Year, the audit and non-audit fees paid or payable to
Deloitte were as follows:
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The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparation
and publication of the timely financial statements of the Company
which gives a true and fair view of the financial position of the
Group and ensure that they are prepared in accordance with the
statutory requirements and applicable accounting standards.
Management of the Company had provided monthly updates
for giving a balanced and understandable assessment of the
Company's performance, position and projects to enable the
Directors to discharge their duties. In preparing the accounts for
the Year, the Directors have adopted suitable accounting policies
which are pertinent to the Group’s operations and relevant to
the financial statements and have presented an understandable
assessment of the Group's position and prospects.

The Directors confirm that, to the best of their knowledge,
information and belief, having made all reasonable enquiries, the
accounts are prepared on a going concern basis and they are
not aware of any material uncertainties relating to the events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company'’s ability
to continue as a going concern.

A statement by the independent auditor about their reporting
responsibilities on the consolidated financial statements of the
Group is set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report of this annual
report.

With the requirement set out in the code provision A.2.1 of the
CG Code in respect of the responsibilities for performing the
corporate governance duties, the Board has delegated its following
responsibilities to the Audit Committee:

° to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices
on corporate governance and make recommendations to the
Board;

° to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior
management;

° to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;
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° to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to Directors and
employees; and

° review the Company'’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report of the
Company.

Whistleblowing Policy

The Group is committed to achieving and maintaining the highest
standards of openness, probity and accountability. The Group
encourages reporting of concerns and actual or suspected
misconduct or malpractice or unethical acts (e.g. corruption) by
individual employee and/or external parties in any matter related to
the Group.

The adoption of a comprehensive Whistleblowing Policy in 2022
enhanced the Group's whistleblowing mechanism. The policy aims
to enable the Company’s employees and those who deal with the
Company to raise concerns, in confidence and anonymity, with the
Audit Committee about possible improprieties in matters related
to the Company, in order to help detect and deter misconduct or
malpractice or unethical acts in the Company.

Anti-corruption Policy

The Company takes a zero-tolerance approach towards all forms
of bribery and corruption and is committed to observing and
upholding high standards of business integrity, honesty, fairness,
impartiality and transparency in all its business dealings at all
times. The Company strictly prohibits any form of fraud or bribery,
and is committed to prevention, deterrence, detection, reporting
and investigation of all forms of fraud and bribery.

The Board had adopted an Anti-corruption Policy in 2022 which
sets out the basic standard of conduct which applies to all
directors, officers and employees at all levels of the Group. They
must conduct their activities in full compliance with this Policy, the
Prevention of Bribery Ordinance (Chapter 201 of the Laws of Hong
Kong), and all other applicable laws relating to bribery or corruption
in each jurisdiction in which the employees do business. It also
provides guidance to all employees on acceptance of advantage
and handling of conflict of interest when dealing with the
Company's business. The Company also encourages and expects
its business partners including suppliers, contractors and clients to
abide by the principles of this Policy.
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Shareholders Communication Policy

The Board has established a Shareholders Communication Policy
since 2019 setting out various channels of communication,
with the objective of enabling the shareholders to assess the
Company’s overall performance, exercise their rights in an
informed manner and engage actively with the Company.

The Company shall publish interim and annual reports and
other corporate communications including but not limited to
announcements, circulars, notices and other regulating disclosures
on the website of the Stock Exchange in a timely manner in
accordance with the Listing Rules. Information released by the
Company to the Stock Exchange is also posted on the Company’s
website.

Shareholders will be able to have an open dialogue with the Board.
The Board members, in particular, the chairmen of the Board
Committees are available to answer questions of the Group's
business at the annual general meetings. External auditor also
attends the Company’s annual general meetings and addresses
queries from the Shareholders relating to the conduct of the audit,
and the preparation and content of its auditor’s report.

The Board reviewed the implementation and effectiveness of
the Shareholders Communication Policy and considered it to be
effective for the Year.

Currently, the Board has undertaken the overall responsibility for
evaluating and determining the nature and extent of the risks it is
willing to take in achieving the Group's strategic objectives and
ensuring that the Group established and maintained appropriate
and effective risk management and internal control systems. The
Audit Committee provides independent review on effectiveness
of the risk management and internal control systems of the Group
and gives their recommendation to the Board. Each department is
responsible for identifying, assessing and managing risks within
its business, ensuring that appropriate internal control for effective
risk management are implemented. On behalf of the Board, the
Audit Committee also regularly reviews the corporate governance
structure and practices within the Group and monitors compliance
fulfilment on an ongoing basis.
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All departments of the Company are required to undergo a
self-risk assessment annually. It covers all material controls,
including financial, operational and compliance controls. The Audit
Committee shall then review the effectiveness of the Group's risk
management and internal control systems based on the self-risk
assessment submitted by departments and also considering the
adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and experience, training
programs and budget of the Group's accounting, internal audit and
financial reporting function.

Under the enterprise risk management framework, policies
and procedures are in place to identify, assess, manage,
control and report risks. Such risks include strategic, credit,
operational (administrative, system, human resources,
reputation), environmental, social and governance ("ESG")
issues, market, liquidity, legal and regulatory. Exposure to these
risks is continuously monitored by the Board through the Audit
Committee.

After reviewing the annual review on effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems of the Group as reported
by the Audit Committee, the Board considers the risk management
and internal control systems in respect of financial, operational,
compliance, risk management and adequate of resources were
effective and adequate in respect of the Year. The management of
the Company confirmed that there is no significant deficiency and
weakness in the internal control system has been identified.

The internal control systems are designed and implemented to
reduce the risks associated with the business accepted by the
Group and minimise the adverse impact results from the risks.
The risk management and internal control system are designed to
mitigate rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business
objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not absolute
assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The Group does not have an internal audit function. The Board
considered that the current risk management and internal
control processes are adequate to meet the needs of the Group
in its current business environment and nothing has come to
its attention to cause the Board to believe the Group's risk
management and internal control systems are inadequate. The
Board was of the view that there is no immediate need to set up
an internal audit function within the Group, however, shall review
the need for one on annual basis.
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The Board has adopted a dividend policy which sets out the
principles and guidelines of the Company in relation to the
distribution of dividend to its Shareholders. Subject to compliance
with applicable rules and regulations, the Board may, at its
discretion, determine the declaration of payment of dividend(s)
to its Shareholders in any amount, frequency in any financial
year depending on, among other things, the Group’s operation
and financial performance, economic conditions, the Group’s
business strategies and operations, liquidity position and capital
requirements as well as the interests of the Shareholders. The
dividend payout ratio will vary from year to year. There is no
assurance that dividends will be paid in any particular amount for
any given period.

The Company engages Mr. Lee Po Wing as its Company Secretary
who is not an employee of the Company. Mr. Lee has confirmed
that for the Year under review, he has taken no less than 15 hours
of relevant professional training. Ms. Koon Ho Yan Candy, the
executive Director and chief executive officer of the Company is
the person whom Mr. Lee Po Wing could contact for the purpose
of code provision C.6.1 of the CG Code.

Procedures for convening a special general
meeting

Pursuant to the Bye-laws, one or more shareholders holding at the
date of deposit of the requisition not less than one tenth of the paid
up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company, on a one vote per share basis, shall at
all times have the right, by written requisition to the Directors or
the Company Secretary to require a special general meeting to
be called by the Directors for the transaction of any business or
a resolution specified in such requisition and such meeting shall
be held in the form of a physical meeting only and within two (2)
months after the deposit of such requisition. If within twenty-one
(21) days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene
such meeting the requisitionists themselves may convene such
physical meeting in accordance with the provisions of section 74(3)
of the Companies Act of Bermuda.
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Procedures for putting forward proposals at the
general meetings

Pursuant to Companies Act of Bermuda, either any number of
the Shareholders holding not less than one-twentieth of the total
voting rights of all the Shareholders having at the date of the
requisition a right to vote at general meetings of the Company, or
not less than 100 of such Shareholders, can request the Company
in writing to (a) give to the Shareholders entitled to receive notice
of the next general meeting notice of any resolution which may
properly be moved and is intended to be moved at that meeting;
and (b) circulate to Shareholders entitled to have notice of any
general meeting any statement of not more than 1,000 words with
respect to the matter referred to in any proposed resolution or the
business to be dealt with at that meeting. The requisition signed by
all the requisitionists must be deposited at the Company's principal
place of business in Hong Kong with a sum reasonably sufficient to
meet the Company’s relevant expenses and not less than 6 weeks
before the meeting in the case of a requisition requiring notice of a
resolution or not less than 1 week before the meeting in the case
of any other requisition. The signatures and the requisition will be
verified by the Company'’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong and
upon their confirmation that the same is proper and in order, the
Company Secretary will arrange to include the proposed resolution
in the agenda of the general meeting.

Proposing a Person for Election as a Director

If a Shareholder wishes to propose a person other than a retiring
Director for election as a Director at a general meeting, the
Shareholder should follow the “Rules and Procedures Governing
the Election of Directors”, which is available on the website of the
Company.
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Procedures for putting enquiries by the
Shareholders to the Board

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concerns to
the Board in written form via the following channel:

Company Secretarial Department
Block A, 7th Floor

Hong Kong Spinners Building, Phase 6
481-483 Castle Peak Road

Cheung Sha Wan, Kowloon

Hong Kong

E-mail: 1218ecom@easyknit.com

In respect of the other shareholding/entitlement affairs:
Tricor Secretaries Limited

17/F, Far East Finance Centre

16 Harcourt Road

Hong Kong

For the purpose of (i) bring the Bye-laws in line with the
requirements under the Core Shareholder Protection Standards
as set out in Appendix A1 to the Listing Rules; (i) allow a meeting
of the Shareholders to be held at one or more physical meeting
location(s) by means of a hybrid meeting or an exclusively electronic
meeting; and (iii) make other miscellaneous and housekeeping
amendments, as well as update certain provisions with reference
to the latest applicable laws of Bermuda and the Listing Rules,
the Company adopted the amended and restated Bye-laws during
the Year. The adoption of the new Bye-laws was approved by the
Shareholders at SGM dated 12 December 2023. The Company'’s
memorandum of association and the new Bye-laws are available
on the websites of the Company (www.easyknit.com) and the
Stock Exchange (www.hkexnews.hk).

BRROESSEHEAZRF

BRERATBER B BIATRE
CHERERRER:

NEmAARE

NEIMEE

BB

gD E

5 ILE481-4835%
BB B A EE6H

TIEARE

& #F : 1218ecom@easyknit.com

FRHEMER EANEE:
PENEBRBKERAA
BB

£ R iB165%

BRSSP LITE

BTOFEEMBRAMMZARTE ZZ 08
HxﬁﬁﬁEﬂ(iZzzjﬁ (i) 7o BF A2 |) BAOR

dEgRIATEEFEE AL —ELZ
BEEMLIBITRE & LG)FLE
MEBEBRRNKETUARS2EEMERZ
BREZIERLETHUNEFE THRX K
RARNAFERMNLEITREY 2 RF
MR o B% R 72023128128 #) Bk R 4
BlRE L ERMFTARMAA - KR A
CHBERRARFTARMEAATRAR
7] #8 3 (www.easyknit.com) K Bk 32 BT 48 uh
(www.hkexnews.hk) & B °



The Directors present this report together with the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the Year.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. Its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in property development,
property investment, investment in securities and others and
loan financing, details of which are set out in note 39 to the
consolidated financial statements of this annual report.

The results of the Group for the Year are set out in the Consolidated
Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income.

No interim dividend was paid to the shareholders of the Company
during the Year (2023: nil).

The Board does not recommend the payment of final dividend for
the Year (2023: nil).

A summary of the published results and assets, liabilities and
non-controlling interests of the Group for the last five (5) financial
years, as extracted from the consolidated financial statements, is
set out on page 255 of this annual report. This summary does not
form part of the consolidated financial statements.

The business review of the Group as required under Schedule 5 to
the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong)
and the key financial performance indicators to the businesses of
the Group, including, among other things, (i) a fair review of the
Group's business; (ii) an analysis using key financial performance
indicators and (iii) future development in the Group's business,
can be found in the section headed “Management Discussion and
Analysis” of this annual report. These discussions form part of this
directors’ report.

The corporate social responsibility, environmental policies and
performance of the Group are disclosed in the Environmental,
Social and Governance Report of this annual report.
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As far as the Board is concerned, the Group has complied in
material aspects with the relevant laws and regulations that have
a significant impact on the business and operation of the Group
during the Year.

The Group's businesses, financial condition, results of operations
and growth prospects may be affected by risks and uncertainties
directly or indirectly pertaining to the Group's businesses,
including the following highlighted risks of (i) Hong Kong economic
conditions which may directly affect the property market; (ii)
availability of suitable land bank for future development; (iii) the
continuous escalation of construction cost in Hong Kong in recent
years; (iv) business cycle for property under development may
be influenced by a number of factors and the Group's revenue
will be directly affected by the mix of properties available for
sale and delivery; (v) all construction works were outsourced to
independent third parties and they may fail to provide satisfactory
services adhering to the Group’s quality and safety standards or
within the timeline required by the Group; (vi) fluctuations of fair
value gain or loss incurred on financial assets and investment
properties; (vii) credit risk and recoverability of provision of loans
which may incur bad debts during the downturn of economy; and
(viii) credit risk on resulting from loan borrowers’ failure to repay or
default contractual obligations which may result in an interruption
of cash flows and increased costs for collection.

In response to the abovementioned possible risks, the Group has
a series of internal control and risk management system to cope
with the possible risks and has serious scrutiny over the selection
of quality customers and suppliers. The Group keeps developing
and reviewing strategies, policies and guidelines on risk control,
which enable the Group to monitor and response to risk effectively
and promptly. The Group also actively proposes solutions to lower
the impact of the possible risks on the businesses of the Group.

Details of movements in the Company’s share capital during the
Year are set out in note 29 to the consolidated financial statements
of this annual report.
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During the Year, Eminence through its wholly-owned subsidiary
acquired 1,726,000 shares of the Company at an aggregate
consideration of approximately HK$6,468,000 at the price per
share between HK$3.46 and HK$4.72 (the “Acquisitions”),
representing approximately 2.33% of the total issued share capital
of the Company as at 31 March 2024 and up to the date of this
annual report. Details of the Acquisitions were set out in the
announcement dated 12 April 2023 published by Eminence. As the
Acquisitions were conducted on the open market, the identities
of the counterparties of the shares of the Company could not be
ascertained. To the best knowledge, information and belief of the
Directors having made all reasonable enquiries, the counterparties
and the ultimate beneficial owner(s) of the counterparties of the
Acquisitions are independent third parties as defined under the
Listing Rules.

Save as disclosed above, neither the Company nor any of
its subsidiaries has purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
Company'’s listed securities during the Year.

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Bye-laws
or the laws of Bermuda, being the jurisdiction in which the
Company was incorporated, which would oblige the Company to
offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to its existing shareholders of
the Company.

The Company's reserves available for distribution to the
shareholders of the Company as at 31 March 2024 amounted
to approximately HK$935,638,000 (2023: approximately
HK$938,304,000).

Details of the movements in reserves of the Company during
the Year are set out in the Consolidated Statement of Changes in
Equity and note 41 to the consolidated financial statements of this
annual report respectively.

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the Year are set out in note 14 to the consolidated
financial statements of this annual report.
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The Directors during the Year were:

Executive Directors

Ms. Koon Ho Yan Candy (President and Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. Lui Yuk Chu (Vice President)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Tsui Chun Kong
Mr. Jong Koon Sang
Mr. Lau Chak Hang Charles

In accordance with bye-law 99 of the Bye-laws, Mr. Jong Koon
Sang and Mr. Lau Chak Hang Charles will retire from office by
rotation at the 2024 AGM and, being eligible, will offer themselves
for re-election.

The Company has received from each of the independent
non-executive Director an annual written confirmation pursuant
to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. Based on the annual review
conducted by the Nomination Committee, the Board is of the view
that all independent non-executive Directors are independent in
accordance with the Listing Rules.

Biographical details of the Directors are set out in the section
headed “Biographical Details of Directors” of this annual report.

There is no change in the information of the Directors required to
be disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules except
the changes in the Directors’ remuneration up to 31 March 2024
are set out in note 9 to the financial statements.

All Directors are subject to retirement by rotation in accordance
with the provisions of the Listing Rules and the Bye-laws. No
Director has a service contract with the Company which is not
determinable by the Company within one year without payment of
compensation other than statutory compensation.
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Save as disclosed in note 36 to the consolidated financial
statements headed “Related Party Transactions/Connected
Transactions” of this annual report, there were no transaction,
arrangement or contract of significance in relation to the Group's
business, to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was
a party and in which a Director or an entity connected with a
Director, or a controlling Shareholder or any of its subsidiaries had
a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at any
time during the Year or at the end of the Year.

The Company was deemed to be interested in approximately
26.59% interest in Eminence as at 31 March 2024. Eminence’s
financial results and financial positions has been consolidated in
the consolidated financial statements of the Group for the Year.
The principal businesses of Eminence and its subsidiaries are
the property development, property investment, investment in
securities and others and loan financing. As at 31 March 2024, Ms.
Lui Yuk Chu, who was an executive Director and vice president of
the Company, was also an executive director and deputy chairman
of Eminence.

The Company and Eminence are separate listed entities run by
separate and independent management. Ms. Lui cannot personally
control the Board and is fully aware of, and has been discharging,
her fiduciary duty to the Company and has acted and will continue
to act in the best interest of the Company and its shareholders
as a whole. Therefore, the Directors believe that the Company is
capable of carrying on its business independently of, and at arm’s
length from, Eminence.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2024 and up to the date
of this annual report, none of the Directors had any interest in a
business which may compete with that of the Group and which is
required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 8.10 of the Listing Rules.

2023/244F ¥

bR N4 3R 2 AR A B TS $R R B FE36 [ B B
TR/ HAEXSIFREEN  RAFE
FARBRNAFELERE  RQFHHE
ERMEBRBAMAIVERASREEBZE
AR RHLIAOH BEEFTHEE
ERBEZER  IERBRIEEMN
BAREEIMBEREFEAEKRME -

RABR2024F3A3NBEBRAHEASILLY
26.59% 1 c mILMEEEE R BN
ERAFEEAEESRAVMBERERANES
AR -BLUKEMBRARIZEZEKAD
EURE WERE THERHMBRERE
FHELE o R2024%3A31H » KRR HITE
EFHEEFEIURREITASLZHITE
EFHEER -

ARBESUEERBLLETER BB
YEBEORENR - ERETEEBITES
Exg U X2 THMY BEETREAR
AzEEEET B BEUSEBUALRRAR
MEBRRzBRBEENSTE Bt &
ERR ARBEABLINSILAEZRE
BEUMNGZEEEER -

Br b P H#E EE & AN - 182024F3A31H K B
EAFHREY HMEEEAEAIEEAER
(B BFCERFR  BEEETHABELETR
BIZE8I10E AT AR E 2 FIf -



2023/24 Annual Report

As at 31 March 2024, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and chief executive of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the of
the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFQ")), as recorded in
the register required to be kept by the Company under section 352
of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
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Exchange pursuant to the Model Code contained in the Listing Z##@m M XA T :
Rules, were as follows:
Long positions in the Shares of the Company RAERTRGBZH R
Number of Ordinary Shares
EBEREYE
Approximate
% of
Personal Corporate Other Shareholding
Name of Director Interest Interest Interest Total (Note v)
BHER
B
EEpsg BAEE AR H Hitt s @t (HiEv)
Koon Ho Yan Candy (“Ms. Koon") 73,000 — 29,179,480 29,252,480 39.53%
EAMIELZL)) (Note i) (Note ii)
(B &) (h7iti)
Lui Yuk Chu (“Ms. Lui") 73,000 9,929,664 — 10,002,664 13.51%
EEG(ExL)) (Note i) (Note iv)
(i i) (K &iv)
Notes: Wiat:

(i)

These interests represent options granted to Ms. Koon as beneficial
owner under the share option scheme of the Company adopted on
5 July 2012, details of which are disclosed under the section headed
“Share Option Scheme” in this directors’ report.

29,179,480 shares are registered in the name of and are beneficially
owned by Magical Profits Limited which is wholly-owned by
Accumulate More Profits Limited which in turn is wholly-owned
by The Winterbotham Trust Company Limited in its capacity as
the trustee of The Magical 2000 Trust (the beneficiaries include
Ms. Koon). As a result, Ms. Koon is deemed to be interested in the
shares by virtue of her capacity as one of the beneficiaries of The
Magical 2000 Trust.

(i)

ZEEmEREARRN2012F7A6H K
MBERESFERTERLWERESHE
BAWBRE SBERNFAEEGRS(B
PemE AT 8] — R R -

29,179,480 8% A% 15 LA Magical Profits Limited
ZEBRELRBEERES  ZARH
Accumulate More Profits Limited & & A
M Accumulate More Profits Limited Bl F &
A The Magical 2000 Trust (H 225 ABHEE
T ZERAREEREFLBRARAS
E%A - Bt - B 2 B {EAThe Magical
2000 Trust X a A 2 — R AR R0 #
B o



(i) These interests represent options granted to Ms. Lui as beneficial
owner under the share option scheme of the Company adopted on
5 July 2012, details of which are disclosed under the section headed
“Share Option Scheme” in this directors’ report.

(iv) 9,929,664 shares are owned by Sea Rejoice Limited which is wholly
and beneficially owned by Ms. Lui.

(v)  The percentage represented the number of shares over the total
issued share capital of the Company as at 31 March 2024 was
73,988,403 shares.

Save as disclosed above, none of the directors or chief executive
of the Company had, as at 31 March 2024, registered any interest
or short positions in the shares, underlying shares and debentures
of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) that was required to be recorded
pursuant to section 352 of the SFO (including interests or short
positions which they were taken or deemed to have under such
provisions of the SFO), or as otherwise notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

A share option scheme of the Company (the “2012 Share Option
Scheme”) was adopted and became effective on 5 July 2012 for
a period of 10 years. The scheme mandate limit in respect of the
granting of options to subscribe for shares of the Company under
the 2012 Share Option Scheme had been refreshed at the annual
general meeting of the Company held on 8 August 2019 which the
total number of shares of the Company may be allotted and issued
pursuant to the grant or exercises of the options under the 2012
Share Option Scheme shall not be exceed 10% of the shares of
the Company in issue as at 8 August 2019 (i.e. 91,320,403 shares).
The 2012 Share Option Scheme was expired on 4 July 2022 and
no further share option will be granted. The share options granted
prior to such expiry shall continue to be valid and exercisable in
accordance with the 2012 Share Option Scheme.
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Details of movements of the share options during the Year are BERERKEE 2 %
listed below in accordance with Rule 17.07 of the Listing Rules:

Date of
Grantee grant
AR A =
(Note i)
(B i)
Directors (Note j)
EE(Wi)
Ms. Koon 2021.08.30
BERL
Ms. Lui 2021.08.30
BuL
Employees (Note ii)
BE (M)
Koon Wing Yee 2021.08.30
(Note vii)
Bk & (7 i vii)
Koon Chun Ting 2021.08.30
BER
Koon Wai Yan 2021.08.30
BEEM
Total
@t
Notes:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Exercise
price per
share

BRI
8
HK$
BT

3.99

3.99

3.99

3.99

3.99

2023/24 Annual Report

As at
2023.04.01

20235
4818

73,000

73,000

73,000

73,000

73,000

365,000

o=

B17.0716E 5 0

Number of share options

BREHE
Granted Exercised Lapsed Outstanding
during during during as at
the Year  the Year  the Year  2024.03.31

20245
RAEE REAEE REEE 3A318
B BT BAX e R AT

- - - 73,000

- - - 73,000

- - 73,000 -

- - - 73,000

- - - 73,000

- - 73,000 292,000

Hiaz -

Exercise
period

2021.08.30-
2031.08.29

2021.08.30-
2031.08.29

2021.08.30-
2031.08.29

2021.08.30-
2031.08.29

2021.08.30-
2031.08.29

BHBERELHARA

Vesting
date

FEAH

2021.08.30

2021.08.30

2021.08.30

2021.08.30

2021.08.30

These grantees are substantial shareholders of the Company (the (i) DEFARBABARANEERR(TEER

“Substantial Shareholders"). R e
These grantees are associates of the Substantial Shareholders. (i) ZEABARTERFNHEAL -
The closing price of the shares immediately before the grant of (i) A% 3 M B #2021 8A308 & ! & i% # A1

share options on 30 August 2021 was HK$3.90.

B YT B A3.908 T °

The number and/or exercise price of the share options may be  (iv) BRERE K 517 (F (B 0] se & 4B s 4T

subject to adjustments in the case of rights or bonus issues, or other

changes in the Company's share capital.

B o A2 AR AR B B B T B R



(v)  There was no service provider sublimit set under the 2012 Share
Option Scheme.

(vi)  There is no performance target attached with the 2012 Share Option
Scheme.

(vii)  Mr. Koon Wing Yee resigned as an employee of the Group with
effect from 1 September 2023.

Apart from the above movements, no share options were granted,
exercised, lapsed or cancelled under the 2012 Share Option
Scheme during the Year.

As at 31 March 2024 and at the date of this annual report, an
aggregate of 292,000 shares under the 2012 Share Option
Scheme, representing approximately 0.39% of the total number
of issued shares of the Company, may be issued upon exercise of
share options granted under the 2012 Share Option Scheme.

Following the expiry of the 2012 Share Option Scheme, the
Company has no other share option schemes as of the end of the
Year.

Further details of the 2012 Share Option Scheme are set out in
note 34 to the consolidated financial statements of this annual
report.

Save as disclosed in the section “Share Option Scheme” above
and note 34 to the consolidated financial statements in this annual
report, at no time during the Year was the Company, its holding
company, any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a party
to any arrangements to enable the Directors to acquire benefits
by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the
Company or any other body corporate.
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As at 31 March 2024, the register of substantial shareholders
maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of Part
XV of the SFO shows that, other than the interests disclosed in
“Directors’ Interests and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying
Shares and Debentures”, the following shareholders had notified
the Company of their relevant interests in the ordinary shares and
underlying shares of the Company, which represent 5% or more of

2023/24 Annual Report

the issued share capital of the Company:

Long positions in Shares of the Company

Name of Shareholder

BRRES £

Magical Profits Limited

Accumulate More Profits Limited

The Winterbotham Trust Company Limited

BEBREXTARAA

Winterbotham Holdings Limited

Christopher Geoffrey Douglas Hooper

Markson International Holding Limited

lvan Geoffrey Douglas Hooper

Koon Wing Yee

EXKE

Sea Rejoice Limited
EEERRDA

Notes

0kz3

Capacity
g4

Beneficial owner

ExlEAA

Interest of controlled Corporation
REHEE 2 #R

Trustee
fFEEA

Interest of controlled Corporation
REHEE 2 #R

Interest of controlled Corporation
REHEEzER

Interest of controlled Corporation
XEsEE R

Interest of controlled Corporation

REBAE S

Interest of spouse

[ 5

Beneficial owner

ExlEAA

RAEXTRDZHFR

29,179,480

29,179,480

29,179,480

29,179,480

29,179,480

29,179,480

29,179,480

10,002,664

9,929,664

R2024F3A31H  ARBIREFEHFNLBE
EHIZEXVEPEI6IHEEF 2 T ERRER
MER BRIZESAR - BERMDRE
BECEDRABIMBERE  ERIN T
REMEAQRBEREARREBER KRG
REERG 2 EE RS
RARABBDEITRA 5% A L

B

mxEESERE

Number of Approximate % of
Shares Held
BERHKEE

Shareholding

FRENEI L

(Note iv)

(B itiv)

39.43%

39.43%

39.43%

39.43%

39.43%

39.43%

39.43%

13.51%

13.42%



Notes:

(i) 29,179,480 shares are registered in the name of and are beneficially
owned by Magical Profits Limited, which is wholly-owned by
Accumulate More Profits Limited which in turn is wholly-owned
by The Winterbotham Trust Company Limited in its capacity as
the trustee of The Magical 2000 Trust (the beneficiaries of which
include Ms. Koon, an executive director of the Company). The
Winterbotham Trust Company Limited is owned as to 60% by
Winterbotham Holdings Limited and 40% by Markson International
Holding Limited. Winterbotham Holdings Limited is owned as to
approximately 99.99% by Mr. Christopher Geoffrey Douglas Hooper.
Markson International Holding Limited is owned as to approximately
99.99% by Mr. lvan Geoffrey Douglas Hooper.

(ii) 9,929,664 shares are owned by Sea Rejoice Limited which is wholly
and beneficially owned by Ms. Lui, an executive director of the
Company. On 30 August 2021, Ms. Lui was granted 73,000 share
options of the Company under the 2012 Share Option Scheme. Mr.
Koon, being the spouse of Ms. Lui, is deemed to be interested in
10,002,664 shares of the Company by virtue of the SFO.

(i) The percentage represented the number of shares over the total
issued share capital of the Company as at 31 March 2024 was
73,988,403 shares.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2024, the Company had
not been notified by any persons (other than the Directors or chief
executive of the Company) who had interests or short positions
in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company
which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the
provisions of Division 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were
required to be recorded in the register kept by the Company under
Section 336 of the SFO.

Details of related party transactions for the Year are set out in note
36 to the consolidated financial statements in this annual report.
The Company has not entered into other transactions with its
connected parties which are required to be disclosed in this annual
report in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

With regard to the related party transactions which also constitute
connected transactions or continuing connected transactions,
the Company has complied with the disclosure requirements in
accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules in so far as they
are applicable.
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No contracts for the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of any business of the Group were entered
into or existed during the Year.

During the Year, the five (5) largest suppliers of the Group
accounted for approximately 82.4% of the Group’s purchases and
the largest supplier accounted for approximately 56.7% of the
Group's purchases.

The five largest customers of the Group accounted for
approximately 50.4% of the Group’s revenue and the largest
customer accounted for approximately 19.1% of the Group’s
revenue.

Save as disclosed above and to the best knowledge of the
Company, none of the Directors and their respective close
associates or any shareholders of the Company (which to the
knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s
total issued share capital) have any interest in the five (5) largest
suppliers or customers of the Group.

The Group values its employees who are the Group’s most
important assets. Staff are rewarded with competitive
remuneration packages and benefits. The Group is committed to
fostering a conducive, harmonious and discrimination-free working
environment. Occupational health and safety is the top priority
across the Group's operations. Safety guidelines are established to
safeguard the employees from any occupational hazards.

The Group is also dedicated to providing high quality properties,
products and services to meet its customers’ needs and is striving
to maintain good relationship and close communication with our
business partners, banks, contractors and vendors. Thus, senior
management of the Group have kept good communication,
promptly exchanged ideas and shared business update with them
as and when appropriate. During the Year, there was no material
and significant dispute between the Group and its business
partners.
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During the Year, the Group made charitable and other donations of
approximately HK$1,154,000 (2023: HK$1,322,000).

Details of the Company’s remuneration mechanism are set out in
the “Corporate Governance Report” of this annual report.

Under the Bye-laws, and subject to the applicable laws and
regulations, every Director and other officers of the Company shall
be entitled to be indemnified and secured harmless out of the
assets and profits of the Company from and against all actions,
costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses which they or any
of them shall or may incur or sustain by or by reason of any act
done, concurred in or omitted in or about the execution of their
duty, or supposed duty, in their respective offices and related
matters provided that the indemnity shall not extend to any matter
in respect of any fraud or dishonesty which may attach to any
of them. A Directors Liability Insurance is in place to protect the
Directors and officers of the Company against potential costs and
liabilities arising from claims brought against the Directors and
officers of the Company.

Details of the Company's corporate governance practices are set
out in the “"Corporate Governance Report” of this annual report.

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has
maintained a sufficient public float of its shares as required under
the Listing Rules as of the date of this annual report.

The audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
Year have been reviewed by the Audit Committee. Information
of the duties of Audit Committee and its composition are set out
in section headed “Corporate Governance Report” of this annual
report.
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Events after the end of reporting period are set out in section
headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” and in note 40 to
the consolidated financial statements of this annual report.

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the Year
have been audited by Deloitte, certified public accountants, who
will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment
as independent auditor of the Company at the 2024 AGM.

By order of the Board
Koon Ho Yan Candy
President and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 27 June 2024
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This Environmental, Social and Governance Report (the “"ESG
Report”) was prepared in accordance with the requirements of the
ESG Reporting Guide set out in Appendix C2 to the Listing Rules.
It provides an overview of the ESG management approach as well
as sustainability initiatives and performance of the Group with
respectively key performance indicators (“KPls") for the period
from 1 April 2023 to 31 March 2024 (the “Reporting Year").

Reporting Scope

The scope of this ESG Report covers our property investment,
investment in securities and others and loan financing operations
which represent the Group’s most significant economic,
environmental and social impacts. The reporting scope of this ESG
Report is consistent with the previous year.

Reporting Principles

Identified ESG issues that are
material to the Group and
stakeholders for disclosure
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Governance Structure

The Board has overall responsibility for the oversight and decision
making of the Company’s ESG matters, including policies,
measures, performance and risks. The Board is responsible for
identifying, evaluating, priortising and managing material ESG
issues. Under the leadership of the Board, relevant departments
and business units play an important role to ensure the smooth
adoption of ESG practice, from policy development to action
plan implementation. Delegated managers are accountable for
the actual implementation of the policies and in turn delegate
responsibility and authority to subordinates staff according to their
functions. The effectiveness of ESG practice and the progress
made against targets are reviewed by the Board in meetings.

The Group has also collected the views of key stakeholders on
ESG matters during daily operations and conducted a materiality
assessment to identify important ESG issues for the Group, details
of which are disclosed in the sections headed “Stakeholders’
Engagement” and “Materiality Assessment” below.

Stakeholder Engagement

The Group attaches great importance to the valuable opinions
of stakeholders. We maintain close communications with major
stakeholders including customers, shareholders, employees,
suppliers, business partners, government departments and
regulators through various channels, so to collect their opinions
and suggestions on the Group and enable us to make continuous
improvements. The relevant channels for communication are set
out as follows:

Stakeholder Groups

BHHEER
Employees * Meetings and Briefings
B8 & RER
° Training Sessions
HEEI
° Intemal Emails and Publications
N EB & B K2 hiR I 9
Customers e Corporate Website
B NEHEE
e Surveys
SESHEE
Suppliers and Business e Screening and Assessments
Partners B2 R T
HEMREERH * Business l\/Ieetings
%%5( = ui‘ﬁé
Investors and Shareholders e Annual General Meeting
KREERBKRR BREBERSG
Government and Regulators e Consultations
T R B B M 1 i )
Community e Community Events
ftE & &
Media ® Press Releases
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Engagement Channels

SERE

e Employee Activities
EEIEE
e Surveys and Interviews

A& & M #

e Property Sales Activities
MEHERED

e Property Management Work
MEERETE

e Surveys
HESEHHES

e Analyst Briefings and Announcements
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Stakeholders’ Feedback

The Company welcomes stakeholders’ feedback on its ESG
approach and performance. Please give your suggestions or share
your views with the Group via email at 1218ecom@easyknit.com.

Materiality Assessment

During the Reporting Year, the Group held discussions with the
key management and conducted materiality assessment through
various channels to identify ESG issues in which both the Group
and its key stakeholders are interested and assessed the level of
concern as viewed by them so as to select the relatively important
ESG issues.

For the materiality assessment, the Group has adopted the
following three processes:

Identification

—  Through diverse channels and internal discussions

—  Examines and adopts the ESG issues of concern in the past
stakeholders’ engagement

—  Draws attention to emerging ESG issues

Prioritisation

—  Synthesises, analyses and evaluates the views of all parties
to identify and prioritise potential and important issues

—  Develops materiality matrix based on the importance of the
issue to the Group and its key stakeholders

Validation

— Interacts with the management team to validate the
materiality assessment and ensure that these issues are
aligned with the sustainable development direction sought by
the Group

— Reports the materiality assessment to the Board and makes
the required disclosures in the ESG Report
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
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The matters of concern of the Group and stakeholders are AEBE RFHHHEFEONEEY 5 R U
presented in the following materiality matrix: THEEMHEREER :

Materiality Matrix
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The Group recognises that our business has an important role in
contributing to a more sustainable future. As we drive business
growth, we strive to integrate corporate social responsibility
("CSR") into our day-to-day operations. Guided by our CSR Policy,
we have made continuous efforts to manage our environmental
footprint, stock a robust talent pipeline and cater to the needs of
the disadvantaged.

The Company is committed to the sustainable management of
our environmental footprint and continual improvement of our
performance. In line with our environmental stewardship, we
focus our efforts on energy efficiency, resource management and
cultivation of environmental awareness among employees.

The Group strictly complied with applicable environmental laws
and regulations, including but not limited to the Air Pollution
Control Ordinance (Chapter 311), Waste Disposal Ordinance
(Chapter 354) and Water Pollution Control Ordinance (Chapter 358)
of the Laws of Hong Kong. During the Reporting Year, the Group
was not aware of any serious violations of relevant environmental
laws and regulations.
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Energy Consumption and Emissions

Electricity consumption in our managed properties and office
premises represents a significant proportion of our carbon
footprint. The Group targets to reduce the energy consumption
and emission. The Group is committed to reducing or maintaining
the total Greenhouse Gas (“GHG") emission intensity between
90% to 120% for the next reporting year, against the level of
the baseline year ended 31 March 2023. To this end, we actively
explore energy-saving opportunities and adopt hardware upgrades
to enhance our energy performance over time. At our managed
properties, we transitioned all our lighting fixtures to LED lights and
equipped motion sensor controls in public areas to ensure efficient
energy use and to minimise unnecessary consumption. We also
maintain indoor temperatures at a comfortable 24°C to 26°C and
installed low emissivity or double-glazed windowpanes to optimise
thermal conditions and insultation, reducing heat loss. Our offices
are also renovated with energy efficiency in mind, for instance, we
maximise natural lighting wherever possible to reduce the need for
lighting fixtures. We also set up an independently controlled lighting
system to allow for flexible and efficient usage of lights in different
office areas. When procuring appliances and electronics, the Group
has placed an emphasis on choosing newer and more energy-
efficient models. To maximise cooling efficiency, we regularly
hire professional technicians to clean or replace our air filtration
elements. During lunch breaks and outside of office hours, the air-
conditioning and power connections are also partially turned off.

The Group's air emissions and GHG emissions mainly generated
from the combustion of purchased electricity for office operation
and fuels by self-owned vehicles. The emissions and energy
consumption data for the Reporting Year are presented in below
together with comparative figures of preceding period:

Air Emissions % 5 5 i UnitE {7
Nitrogen Oxides (NOx) & &1t % kg T %=
Particulate Matter (PM) %8 %7 4 kg 7
Sulphur Oxides (SOx) i &1t ¥ kg7
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Greenhouse Gas Emissions Unit
BEREBHERE By 2023/24F &
Scope 1 emissions tonnes of CO_e 231.80
#HENHERE WE—SLIRE 2
Removal (Tree Planting) (Scope 1) tonnes of CO_e 0.07
RBR 2 (KB E)(#E) W — | iRE £
Scope 2 emission tonnes of CO_e 84.24
HE2FERE WE— R MLIREE
Scope 3 emission' tonnes of COe 179
HEHHE W= iRE £
Total emission tonnes of CO_e 317.76
wHEmE WA LIREE
Intensity tonnes of CO,e/FTE 5.13
wE W_fiREE FREBES
Note: Bt
1. We take into account the GHG emissions for processing fresh water 1.

by government departments. HmE o
Energy Consumption Unit
BE#E B 2023/245F E
Direct Energy Consumption ‘000 kWh 245.24
HEEH T @ F & &
Indirect Energy Consumption ‘000 kWh 216.00
il ¥ Be 76 T 1B+ LB
Total Energy Consumption ‘000 kWh 461.24
4R e FE T &+ FL s
Intensity ‘000 kWh/FTE 744
7R FTERTERE "SRA2BEES
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Waste and Resource Management

Due to the Group’s business nature, it did not generate hazardous
waste; as for non-hazardous waste, it is mainly domestic and paper
waste from its office operations. Waste lamps, carton box and
used papers were collected by the outsourced service providers
and management office, and waste printing cartridges and other
hardware wastes were sent back to suppliers.

Non-hazardous waste produced’ Unit
BEREYEERE B
Concrete and Metal Tonne
BRIEEEB 7
Paper Waste Tonne
[E% 4% U]
Recycled Metal Tonne
B4 & B 1A
Excavated Materials, Metal and Tonne
General Refuse 7

R EBE KRR

Total amount of waste produced Tonne
EEYELXRE U1

By intensity Tonne/FTE

=%E We LR 2B RS
Note:

1. Fluctuations in the non-hazardous waste figures are attributed to

varying construction activities across different project stages. The
reported quantities will vary annually depending on the specific
development phases underway.
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2023/24F E 2022/23F E

N/A 2,108.50
iE A
1.89 1.78
5782 1,133.60
10,899.31 2,654.20
10,959.02 5,898.08
176.76 90.74
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The Group is committed to reducing or maintaining the production
of non-hazardous waste intensity between 90% to 120% for the
next reporting year, against the level of the baseline year ended 31
March 2024. The Group has taken a series of measures to reduce
use of papers and for other general waste, including:

° use digital copy file whenever possible, including for financial
reports, meeting notices, circulars, and corporate information
issued to our shareholders which significantly reduced our
printing and mailing

° when hard copies are necessary, we promote the use of
recycled and Forest Stewardship Council certified paper and
use double-sided printing by default

° in our office common area, we provide durable and reusable
food containers, cutlery, and cups to eliminate single-use
plastics as much as possible

° set up multi-material recycling collection bins in the public
areas of our managed properties
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The Group believes that water is a limited and valuable resource
and is indispensable to us as well as to the society and the
environment. Therefore, we strive to reducing the water
consumption and are committed to conforming with principles
of water conservation in our business operations. During the
Reporting Year, we have not encountered any problems in
sourcing water that is fit for purpose. We conduct regular monthly
inspections on our pipes and taps to ensure no leakages in our
office premises and managed properties. Additionally, sensor taps
and water efficient fixtures were installed in all the washrooms to
better manage water consumption.

Water Consumption £ K & Unit E{x
—intotal A4 £ 5 m337 75 K

— by intensity A %5 € &+ m¥FTES. oK/ ER 2B &8

Cultivating Environmental Awareness

Despite our business nature does not having a significant
environmental impact, we remain committed to practice
environmental protection.

To build a lasting environmentally conscious culture, we actively
raise sustainability awareness of our employees. At our office
premises, signs and internal notices relating to responsible energy,
water and material consumption are posted in common areas and
washrooms to strengthen the awareness of energy conservation
and consumption reduction for all employees, which helps to
guide all employees to form good habits of conservation and
environmental protection, thus laying a solid foundation for the
sustainable development of the Group.

During the Reporting Year, there were no non-compliance cases
relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into water
and land, and generation of hazardous and non-hazardous waste.
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Climate Change

To address the climate-related impacts and risks to our business,
we have been adopting different strategies to enhance our
governance and improve our resilience to climate change. In terms
of risk management, we have identified the climate-related risk as

follows.

Climate-related risks

Hurricane and other
extreme weather
events

Change in long-term
rainfall pattern

Impacts to our operations

Possible damages to the physical
properties and building structure, and
disruption of utilities supply which may
lead to loss in business and revenue.

Possible damages to the building
facilities and structure, and an increase to
the building operation and maintenance
costs.

In terms of precautionary measures to minimise the potential
damages related to the risks:

1) Display typhoon signals in an obvious location of the

buildings;

2) Remind tenants to shut the windows and lock doors

securely;

3) Inspect the pumping system and remove any blockage of
drainage outlets and channels; and

4) Perform routine inspection and/or maintenance on buildings

and facilities.

The Group is determined to mitigate the impact of climate change
on the operation and will constantly review the policy to improve
the measures and disclosures.
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Employees are the engine which drives the success of our
business. As such, we remain committed to providing an inclusive,
engaging and supportive work environment which facilitates
personal development and safeguards the health and well-being of
all employees.

ETHHRMOXBEAKY - Bt - &
M—EBZHIRH-—EZHEST TEZH
RARU T FTHERRE  MMEEBAZER
WREZEBETIHREMBAH

OUR PEOPLE EMHET

Employment and Labour Standards

The Group takes great care to ensure a workplace free from
any prejudice or discrimination, supporting fair recruitment and
employment practices based on individual merit, experience and
qualifications regardless of race, religion, gender, disability, family
status, age or any other basis restricted by law.

During the Reporting Year, the Group has strictly complied with
any relevant laws and regulations, including but not limited to:

° Employment Ordinance (Chapter 57 of the Laws of Hong
Kong)

° Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance (Chapter 485
of the Laws of Hong Kong)

° Employees’ Compensation Ordinance (Chapter 282 of the
Laws of Hong Kong)

° Minimum Wage Ordinance (Chapter 608 of the Laws of
Hong Kong)
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During the Reporting Year, the Group was not aware of any serious
violations of laws and regulations that had created significant
impacts on the business and operations of the Group relating to
compensation and dismissal, recruitment and promotion, working
hours, rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination,
and other benefits and welfare.

The Group's total workforce (excluding Director) by Gender,
Employment Category, Age Group and Geographical Region:

Total Employment Categories

EEAH 5l

Gender Male

4 B B
Female
M

Employment category Full time

EERA -
Part time
B

Age group Below 30

F e 48 Bl 0B A T
30-50
305% £507%
Above 50
50%% A £

Geographical region Hong Kong

= BE

Mainland China
H D A
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RBEFE AEEYTABBELMANEE
EREBEFMEER BREREN THF
BB FERE 2ot RESR
AR B g M MAgAL AR EOER - B Y
AEENEBGREEERERATENETEH -

AEBZER - BEHAL  FiRAR &it
BEONEEAB(TERREES):

2023/24F E 2022/23F E

31 32
31 33
62 65
0 0
0 1
32 32
30 32
59 62
3 3
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The Group’s employee turnover rate (excluding Directors) by
Gender, Age Group and Geographical Region:

Percentage of Turnover rate Categories
REEFDL ¥ 7l
Gender Male
5 S
Female
pegi
Age group Below 30
F e 48 Bl 0B AT
30-50
3073% £505%
Above 50
50% A £
Geographical region Hong Kong
Hh [ Ee
Mainland China
ERNETR: i
Note:
1. During the Reporting Year, one employee under the age of 30 left

the Group. However, as the total number of employees for this age
group at the end of the Reporting Year was zero, the turnover rate
for the Below 30 age group cannot be calculated as a real number.

The use of child labour is strictly forbidden in any of our operations.
During the recruitment process, applicants are required to present
identification documents to the Human Resources Department
for age and identity verification to prevent the use of child labour.
Human Resources Department is responsible for checking and
scrutinizing applicants’ identification documents, education
background and qualifications to guarantee that applicants meet
the recruitment criteria.

Use of forced labour is also strictly prohibited. Employees are
encouraged to report any cases relating to forced labour practices.

AEBEBRMNER - Firdp R RE DR
BERAX(TBREBES):

2023/24F & 2022/23F &

29.0% 15.6%
41.9% 3.0%

N/AT 0%

T A

46.9% 6.3%
20.0% 12.5%
37.3% 9.7%

0% 0%

1. HEREFEAR A BI0EATHE T
Boo R BRAERSFER ZFkA
MMERBETHAEAT  GEI0m N TF
RANMBTIRRTEEFER—BER -

FEREIEZRMNTMELFMEBRRE
ey - EREEET  FFEARRAANE
RESH R D BRAXFETFEMNT &
B -UBLEEREI - ANBRBEER
ERFAREREFEANGNERXM - H
EESMERMERBEANTEHRBIRE -

AEBENTBEEERARFNSE T RAXBE
TEREMARARHSTERORD



The Group constantly reviews and assesses its employment
practices, as well as engaging employees, to avoid child and
forced labour and ensure compliance with relevant laws. If any
case of non-compliance is discovered, the Group will immediately
terminate employment and further investigate to avoid recurrence.
During the Reporting Year, no operation has reported any child
or forced labour. Also, the Group was not aware of any serious
violations of laws and regulations that had created significant
impacts on the business and operations of the Group relating to
preventing child and forced labour.

Occupational Health and Safety

Ensuring staff health and safety of is always our priority. The Group
has strictly complied with relevant laws and regulations, including
but not limited to the Occupational Safety and Health Ordinance
(Chapter 509). Following our safety guidelines, we have worked
diligently and implemented precautionary measures to minimise
potential occupational hazards across our operations. For instance,
an emergency protocol has also been established providing
guidance on standard procedures to handle extreme weather
situations such as typhoons and rainstorm warnings. At our office
premises, apart from conducting regular fire drills and carpet
cleaning, we ensure a clear indication of emergency evacuation
routes which are unobstructed at all times. Similar control
measures have been put in place at our managed properties
alongside quarterly inspections of the firefighting system, including
sprinklers and smoke detectors.

During the Reporting Year and the past three years, the Group
had not identified work related injuries or fatalities and there are
no lost days due to work injuries. Also, the Group was not aware
of any serious violations of laws and regulations that had created
significant impacts on the business and operations of the Group
relating to providing a safe working environment and protecting
employees from occupational hazards.

Training and Development

To remain agile in a fast-paced business environment, we support
staff at all levels to enhance their professional knowledge to
cater to the needs of employees from different departments and
at varied career stages. To encourage continuous learning, we
subsidise staff members to participate in different external training,
including courses, seminars and workshops.
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Breakdown of total employees trained (excluding Directors) by #Z M RINEBERNE DN IIIES BE (T

gender and employee category: BIEEE)HA:
Percentage of total
employees trained Categories
ZHEREABES L 5 2023/24F & 2022/23F &
Gender Male 22.58% 18.75%
1l S
Female 32.26% 30.30%
i
Employment category Junior Staff 27.27% 16.67%
EERA MZET
Middle Managers 20.00% 26.32%
RRE R
Senior Managers 40.00% 37.50%
=R

Average training hours completed per employee (excluding

Directors) by gender and employee category:

Average training hours

BUHENEBEEEL I NEZRE(TE
BREF)EREIONFIEE:

completed per employee Categories
BEEETHIINFHRH FH 2023/24FE  2022/23FE
hours/ /| ¥ hours/ | i
Gender Male 2.81 0.81
a1l S
Female 2.81 1.17
g
Employment category Junior Staff 2.32 0.48
EIBEE MKk ETL
Middle Managers 1.24 1.32
hRE R
Senior Managers 6.13 1.56

= AR E



Caring Company

To attract and retain every talent, we offer attractive remuneration
packages and fringe benefits, including medical health insurance
and a range of leave entitlements. We provide employees who
work overtime with overtime pay and other related benefits in
accordance with relevant laws, regulations and internal policies.
Our Human Resources Department is responsible for annual
performance appraisals and determines promotion arrangements
and salary increments. Additionally, we encourage our employees
to maintain a good work-life balance by organising different
staff activities such as festive celebrations, weekly breakfasts
and fitness classes. To enable employees to share festive joy
with their families, such as Chinese New Year's Eve, Mid-
Autumn Festival and Christmas Eve, staff is dismissed earlier for
celebration. Through these events, we look to cultivate a stronger
communal and caring spirit within the Group and facilitate deeper
interpersonal connections among our colleagues.

Supply Chain Management

As part of our supply chain management approach, we prioritise
business partners who share our dedication to environmentally
and socially responsible practices. To ensure our stringent
requirements are fully met, appropriate monitoring and assessment
mechanisms have been put in place. Suppliers who fail to deliver
the promised quality are subject to a series of inspections and
reviews. This holistic approach enables us to better manage ESG-
related risks arising from our supply chain whilst building effective
long-term relationships with our partners.

At our managed properties we have appointed specialised
consultants to provide advisory services on equipment and
materials procurement. The consultants have been specially
directed by the Group to consider sustainability factors such as
energy consumption and environmentally sustainable materials in
addition to quality and costs.

During the Reporting Year, the Group has a total of 181 suppliers
(2023: 67), of which 173 suppliers in Hong Kong and 8 supplier in
Singapore. All major suppliers have been reviewed.
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Responsible Services and Business Ethics

The delivery of quality and responsible services is essential to our
business sustainability. As such, we have established stringent
mechanisms and standard procedures to provide employees with
guiding principles in relation to quality assurance, customer service
and privacy.

In respect of the Group’s investment in securities and others
business, we follow the guidelines outlined by the Independent
Commission Against Corruption and Securities and Futures
Commission (“SFC"”). The investment team comprises of
professionals with diversified backgrounds licensed with the
SFC in various regulated activities: dealing in securities (Type 1),
advising on securities (Type 4) and asset management (Type 9).

Intellectual Property Rights

The Group respects intellectual property rights. Employees are
required to follow the Group's policies and procedures regarding
intellectual property right when making use of materials, pictures,
contents as well as all other forms of private intellectual property
that are not produced by their own or possessed by the Group in
order to comply with relevant laws such as the Patents Ordinance
(Chapter 514 of the Laws of Hong Kong). Besides, the Group
has registered its trademark and retained a detailed record of the
intellectual property rights it possesses to protect its intellectual
property rights.

Complaint-handling

We actively seek feedback from our tenants and have also set
out designated communications channels for any complaints or
enquires. Once a complaint, enquiry, or maintenance request has
been received, it will be logged and classified based on the nature
of the issue and level of urgency. The issue will then be passed
along to the relevant teams which will handle and communicate
back to the tenants according to our standard procedures in a
timely and effective manner.

During the Reporting Year, the Group did not received any products
and service related complaints.

Anti-corruption

The Company upholds the highest ethical standards and
accountability throughout our operations and has a zero-tolerance
approach for corruption or malpractice of any form. All employees
are required to follow our Employee’s Handbook which outlines
our expectations for professional and appropriate behaviour.
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The Group strictly complies with all applicable laws and regulations
regarding anti-corruption, including the Anti-money Laundering and
Counter-Terrorist Financing Ordinance (Chapter 615 of the Laws of
Hong Kong), the Prevention of Bribery Ordinance (Chapter 201 of the
Laws of Hong Kong).

In March 2022, the Company had adopted an Anti-corruption
Policy which sets out the basic standard of conduct which applies
to all directors, officers and employees at all levels of the Group.
Pursuant to the policy, all employees (1) should not accept gifts
and benefits that are beyond common business hospitality; and (2)
should not offer a bribe to any person for the purpose of obtaining
or retaining business. The Company has made the policy available to
all employees via internal e-mails and company website. During the
Reporting Year, the Group provided regular trainings on anti-corruption
policy for the directors and employees by (i) online seminars organised
by regulatory and professional bodies and (ii) reading articles
and materials in respect of regulatory updates. Managers or key
employees are also required to ensure that all employees reporting to
them, and external parties within their area of responsibility working
on behalf of their respective companies, understand and comply with
the prohibitions in this policy.

The Group conducts prudent due diligence to identify and verify the
customers and beneficial owners, as well as the purpose and intended
nature of the business relationship, constant monitoring to identify
and report suspicious activities or transactions, comprehensive record
keeping and staff awareness training regarding its daily operations.

During the Reporting Year, no legal cases regarding corruption were
brought against the Group or its employees, and the Group is not
aware of any incidents of bribery, extortion, fraud or other violations.
There were no confirmed cases of non-compliance with the relevant
laws and regulations relating to business ethics practices.

Whistleblowing Policy

The Group has enhanced its group-level whistleblowing
mechanism by the adoption of a comprehensive Whistleblowing
Policy in March 2022. The policy has been established for our
employees and the relevant third parties (e.g. customers, suppliers,
creditors and debtors) who deal with the Group to raise concerns
in confidence about suspected misconducts, malpractices or
fraudulent activities relating to the Group.
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All employees and the relevant third parties of the Group are
encouraged to report material risk issues or transactions by a
designated form directly addressed to the Audit Committee of
the Company. Depending upon the circumstances, an appropriate
investigating officer with suitable seniority at the Company will be
appointed or a special committee will be set up by the Company
to investigate the matter. A final report, with recommendations
for change or improvement (if applicable), will be produced to the
Audit Committee. The Audit Committee will then review the final
report and if appropriate, make recommendations to the Board.
The employee/external party who reports the concern will receive
in writing the outcome of the investigation.

Data Privacy

The Group places great importance on data privacy and customer
information handling. We set out clear privacy guidelines
and procedures covering the use and management of data
and information in accordance with the relevant regulatory
requirements, including the Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance
(Chapter 486 of the Laws of Hong Kong). Only authorised
personnel can access customer data on a need-to-know and need-
to-use basis. Employees are required to follow our personal data
handling procedures and only directly relevant personal information
required for business transactions are collected from customers.
No personal data is collected by any third parties without prior
consent and authorisation from the data owners.

During the Reporting Year, there were no complaint cases relating
to health and safety, advertising, labelling and privacy matters
relating to products and services provided and methods of redress.

We leverage our resources to contribute to the position
development of the communities we serve. Working together
with the Easyknit Charitable Foundation, we help to support
underprivileged members of our communities through donations
and collaboration with other charities and social enterprises.
During the Reporting Year, the Group contributed approximately
HK$1,154,000 in education and health care sectors. Apart from
offering financial and in-kind contributions to people in need, we
encourage staff to participate in different charitable activities and
voluntary services.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

RIE - HERERKRS

HKEx ESG Reporting Guide Content Index BRI - £ ERERBEESDA

BERE|

HKEx KPI

B X FrB# Description Page Index
EMEE A B #EG|

A. Environmental
RIE

A1 Al General Disclosure 73
Emissions — =

235 &

A1 The type of emissions and respective emissions 74
data
HE R W) RE 2R KA B R R ER

Al1.2 Direct (Scope 1) and energy indirect (Scope 2) 75
greenhouse gas emissions (in tonnes) and, where
appropriate, intensity

B (EE) R REE (BE2))8 = RBHE KA
Wt E) R (NER) B E

DI

A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, | Due to the business
where appropriate, intensity nature of the Group,
FEXEEREEYRE (M E) R (a0 AB) % | this KPI is considered
E not applicable.

ERAREEOEHME
g bR A R R
WR/TEM -

Al.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) 76
and, where appropriate, intensity
FEAEREEEVREUNFE) R(NER)
=

A1.5 Description of emissions target(s) set and steps 74
taken to achieve them

MRV BEMEE R R REIEELBEFEAK
B w2 B

A1.6 Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous 76-77
wastes are handled, and a description of reduction
target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them
HMAEREERBEZSEEMN L - R el
BRI RE BIR R R E S L BIR T EREA) B

89
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RIE - HERERBRKRSE

HKEx KPI
B X AT # Description Page Index
BEREE A HEiS%&s5|
A2 A2 General Disclosure 73-74
Use of Resources — R R
BREA A21 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type 75
(e.g. electricity, gas or oil) in total (kWh in '000s)
and intensity
RENESNEER SEEER(INE - |sld)
BREUTEFRSAE)REE
A2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity 78
BEKERRE
A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency target(s) set 74
and steps taken to achieve them
A FTEI LR RFEARGEERAESELR
ZET R EL A 25 B
A2.4 Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing 78
water that is fit for purpose, water efficiency
target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them
SR EBE R KR BRI BE I - PARPETSZ
WAKEZERRRETESLRFMEMB LT
A2.5 Total packaging material used for finished products | Due to the business
(in tonnes) and, if applicable, with reference to per|nature of the Group,
unit produced this KPI is considered
BURK &b TR B AR M B 48 B (DAMERT5) 2 (2058 ) | not applicable.
BEEEMLE ERAEENEBE
2 LR ERIER
WRBNER -
A3 A3 General Disclosure 78
The Environment and — =
Nai_ttural Respltrces A31 Description of the significant impacts of activities 78
RERKRER .
on the environment and natural resources and the
actions taken to manage them
A EBIDERELRRAAERNEAZER
ERREEBEBATENTH
A4 A4 General Disclosure 79
Climate Change —MEE
REREA A4 Description of the significant climate-related issues 79

which have impacted, and those which may impact,
the issuer, and the actions taken to manage them
HAEERAREHETAEEARENEAR
EEBEEE REHTH

90
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HKEx KPI
T 32 P B 4R

Description

Page Index

B. Social
HeE

BYER

18

HiBRSI

B1
Employment

E®

B1

General Disclosure

— R R

80, 85

B1.1

Total workforce by gender, employment type, age
group and geographical region

R BERES FRANLRNEE S0 E
BB

81

B1.2

Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and
geographical region
TR FRAMNRMEE DN EBRKE

82

B2
Health and Safety
BREEZ2

B2

General Disclosure
— =

83

B2.1

Number and rate of work-related fatalities occurred
in each of the past three years including the
reporting year
BAZFSFRERERSFE)BEENEIMET
BN Bt &

83

B2.2

Lost days due to work injury

HTHBBRRTHEER

83

B2.3

Description of occupational health and safety
measures adopted and how they are implemented
and monitored

Ml PR MBI EREE T 2 HE i AREH
MITRERTG X

83

B3
Development and
Training

R REH

B3

General Disclosure
— =

83

B3.1

The percentage of employees trained by gender and
employee category

ZHERNNMEERMNENNEINIEEBD L

84

B3.2

The average training hours completed per employee
by gender and employee category
rUENREEEMNE S  BEEETKIIN
FIIE B

84

B4
Labour Standards
% T %A

B4

General Disclosure
— R E

82

B4.1

Description of measures to review employment
practices to avoid child and forced labour

it A% 5T B BB ) B 5 b DA B 2 E T K 58 il &5
T

82

B4.2

Description of steps taken to eliminate such
practices when discovered
HREBRERBEARERE @B RN ATEKEE
g

82
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HKEx KPI
B X AT # Description Page Index
BEREE A HEiS%&s5|
B5 B5 General Disclosure 85
Supply Chain — R R
?ﬂ%‘%g%mént B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical region 85
~ BB S e EMEE
B5.2 Description of practices relating to engaging 85
suppliers, number of suppliers where the practices
are being implemented, and how they are
implemented and monitored
MO EABEREERNED  mERTEHED
WA EREE  URBARITRERT A
B5.3 Description of practices used to identify 85
environmental and social risks along the supply
chain, and how they are implemented and
monitored
M BB HEEESERDNRERTGRE
REED - ARMBBERITRERT X
B5.4 Description of practices used to promote 85
environmentally preferable products and services
when selecting suppliers, and how they are
implemented and monitored
HAEREHEISREREZARRER LRE
WIER - LARMBEMRITRER A
B6 B6 General Disclosure 86
Product — R EE
;eip;'}s'b""‘y B6.1 Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject | Due to the business
mEE
to recalls for safety and health reasons nature of the Group,
EERDEXE MBS AL 2 2 FEIE B A | this KPlis considered
IR g: =R not applicable.
ERAEENER
B hERERIER
WRR/TEA -
B6.2 Number of products and service related complaints 86
received and how they are dealt with
EEBERERRREORFEHENRESH HE
B6.3 Description of practices relating to observing and 86
protecting intellectual property rights
e ot B8 4 T AR R AN G EE AR B V1B
B6.4 Description of quality assurance process and recall | Due to the business
procedures nature of the Group,
HinEEkTRERERMRKERF this KPI is considered
not applicable.
ERAEENEB
Z R ERIER
HRBTER -
B6.5 Description of consumer data protection and privacy 88

policies, how they are implemented and monitored
R EBEEMRERLBEE - U RB@ERT
NERFIE
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HKEx KPI
T 32 P B 4R

BYER

Description
i

Page Index

HiBRSI

B7
Anti-corruption

R&ES

B7

General Disclosure

— R E

86

B7.1

Number of concluded legal cases regarding
corrupt practices brought against the issuer or
its employees during the reporting year and the
outcomes of the cases
RERFEHETAXHEEERITVEELANE
HR A RMEEA KRR

87

B7.2

Description of preventive measures and whistle-
blowing procedures, how they are implemented and
monitored

M HEERBRET  URABERITRER
7 A

87-88

B7.3

Description of anti-corruption training provided to
directors and staff.
HmEBERBEIRMHORESHI -

87
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Deloitte

TO THE MEMBERS OF
EASYKNIT INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Easyknit International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on
pages 103 to 254, which comprise the consolidated statement
of financial position as at 31 March 2024, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including material accounting
policy information and other explanatory information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as
at 31 March 2024, and of its consolidated financial performance
and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants ("“HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in
compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our

2023/244F ¥

FAREBFTFAERBAMANERHE R
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opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on

these matters.

Key audit matter
HRETSEE
Valuation of investment properties

REYFZ1GE

We identified the valuation of investment properties as
a key audit matter due to the significance of the balance
to the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
combined with the judgments and assumptions made
by management of the Group in determining the fair
value.
HRAEAREGEABREAERBMEEE X I
F EXEEREREEQATERIRZ A RRE
BB REMEZEHERNR—BERESEE -

At 31 March 2024, the fair value of investment
properties was approximately HK$2,070 million,
with a fair value loss recognised in profit or loss of
approximately HK$47 million.

R2024F3A31H - REWE R FIEX /2,070,000,000
BT REEERZ A FEEELR47,000,0008 T °

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BEMHES N AEERRETSER

Our procedures in relation to the valuation of investment
properties included:

BHEREMERHEZHERF B

o Obtaining an understanding from the Valuers and
management of the Group about the valuation
techniques, performance of the property
markets, significant assumptions adopted, critical
judgmental areas, key inputs and data used in the
valuations;

e fefhEMKk ESEEBRETHMMEEBERE Y
EMBERE MRAZEZRR  FTZHESH
CEEMRRAZEFERAREBE:

° Evaluating the competence, capabilities and
objectivity of the Valuers;

e HEMREMNER ENRTHIL:
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Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BREFESHEE BEMNEFNAEERARETSE

The Group's investment properties are stated at fair °

value based on valuations performed by independent
firms of qualified professional property valuers (the
“Valuers"”). Details of the valuation techniques and key
inputs used in the valuations are disclosed in note 15 to

the consolidated financial statements. °

EEBEREVEZAFEDRBEBISEREEM
EET(EEMDEL ZEEIR - BEMKBZ
BETEAREIZHAZFBEREAV BRI E

154 H 55 o .

Assessing the integrity of information provided
by management of the Group to the Valuers by
comparing, on a sample basis, details of rentals
to the respective underlying existing lease
agreements; and
FERAMEAALRBEAREHEOCHSFE
el EEEEEERHMEBMIERZT
Bt R

Assessing reasonableness of key inputs used
by the Valuers and management of the Group
by comparing relevant market information
with similar properties and assessing the
appropriateness of specific assumptions of the
properties by reference to character, location and
other individual factors which affect the valuation
of properties.
ERLCBRAEAYERBATSERTR2ER
BYEGBEZYESRS  LEMEAMER A
EUNEFEBRKXNES M - WA ERD
k BEEEEEEBRABZETZEBAZSEM -



Key audit matter

HRETEE

Assessment of net realisable value of properties
held for development for sale (“PUD”) and
properties held for sale (“PHS”)
BIELHEZRRYE(FEHERRYX)RIFFLHE
DEHFELEYE ) T EEFETE

We identified the assessment of the net realisable
value of PUD and PHS as a key audit matter due to the
significance of the balance to the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, combined with the judgments
and assumptions made by management of the Group in
determining the net realisable value.
BMBEBELERRMERFELEDEZATER
FENHBHNA - EHEREGTFEE RESERY
el rEENEEARN B EXEETRE
EEEr 2 FERELHEREBE -

The Group's PUD and PHS were stated at lower of
cost and net realisable value. The estimates of net
realisable value of PUD and PHS are determined based
on estimated selling prices less estimated costs to
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make
the sale of these properties, if applicable. The selling
prices are estimated by reference to the market prices
of similar properties in prevailing market environment
with adjustments to reflect different locations or
conditions for the properties. The costs to completion of
the PUD are estimated by reference to the development
budget, actual development cost of similar completed
properties with adjustments based on current market
data.

EEENRFIFHERRYELBELHEDERAAR
HAIBRFEIREEINNER HELEERDER
BHELEME MG A BRI FE RSB RMET
TIXAREEZSEMERTHARA(NER E
E-EEBN2ERTMSREPEUDEZTER
BUHAE UARBYENTRLZEBESN MR - FHED
ERRVEISZIANAK2ERREE  FURT
MEZERBERARNGEE - WERE A ™5 EEE

SEER
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BEMHES AR ERRETSER

Our procedures in relation to the net realisable value of
PUD and PHS included:
BHMEFELERRMELFELEDETERF
BZAEBREFBE:

° Obtaining an understanding from the Valuers and
management of the Group about the valuation
techniques, performance of the property
markets, significant assumptions adopted, critical
judgmental areas, key inputs and data used in the
valuations;

e fefhEMKk EXEEBEETHMEERE Y
XMHERE  FERAZERRE  FEHEHSH
B HEMEAZEEZ[A RBUE:

° Evaluating the competence, capabilities and
objectivity of the Valuers;

o FEMREMWNER EOARTHIE:
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Key audit matter

HRETEE

At 31 March 2024, the carrying amounts of PUD
and PHS were approximately HK$3,022 million and
HK$2,647 million, with impairment loss on PUD and
PHS recognised in profit or loss of approximately
HK$84 million and HK$60 million during the year ended
31 March 2024, respectively.

R202453A31H  HIELEERVENFHELED R
2 BRE1E 5 Bl £ /£3,022,000,0007% 7T £%2,647,000,000
BT MEE202463A3BIEFE  RIBHE AR
FEFLEERDELRFHELEDEREFESBOR
84,000,000 7T %60,000,000/% 7T °

The calculation of net realisable value of each PUD and
PHS is performed by Valuers. Actual realised amount
may differ from estimates, resulting in a decrease or an
increase in the net realisable value of the PUD and PHS
and additional write-down or reversal of write-down
previously recognised may be required.
FELEERVELBIELHEME ZAERFEY
HEEMAE ERZRSBEXISHEINNEE
RMERBFIELEERDERFELEDE ZAE
IR AR A G I - I F] a8 75 2 58 SN UM Sk 8B B 5E
A B 3R 2 WUR e

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BEMHES N AEERRETER

° Assessing, on a sample basis, the reasonableness
and appropriateness of the management’s
estimated costs of completion by reviewing
terms and conditions of the signed construction
contracts, inspecting the contract sum and budget
information, and assessing the appropriateness
of changes in the estimated costs of completion
by inspecting the supporting documents including
signed construction contracts and certificates; and

s FEBRERECEITBESHZBERREHE  #K
THEEEMERTTINAZEEEMEE
M REANSERBEEN URFBEARSE
ERITBEEAARBESTAXM » MGG
TIRAEH2RENE: R

° Assessing reasonableness of key inputs used
by the Valuers and management of the Group
by comparing relevant market information with
similar properties.

e FERLBABRAYMEMEBTISER  FHAMEE
ik EXEERBERAZFERAZEENE-



The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the consolidated
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing
to report in this regard.

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and
fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group's financial reporting process.
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Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies
Act, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of
this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal
control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.
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° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’'s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.
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From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.
We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent
auditor’s report is Leung Chui Shan.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

27 June 2024
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For the year ended 31 March 2024 & 22024 #3/31H 1F F &

2024 2023
20244 2023%F
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
b &7 FET FET
Continuing operations iit ST
Revenue % #H 5
Sales of properties HEY % 169,971 28,647
Rental income e A 43,101 43,255
Interest income from loan financing REEXK @& 25 B WA 13,061 13,224
Building management EFER 981 1,636
227114 86,762
Cost of properties sold and services 5 & %1 ¥ & 2 1 IR % 5k &
rendered (169,038) (27.777)
Gross profit ESvl 58,076 58,985
Other income, gains and losses HEm A Wm kBB 3,021 32,986
Distribution and selling expenses 8H K AR (24,264) (11,415)
Administrative expenses THRAX (111,224) (108,968)
Other expenses H b 5 &2 (1,175) (384)
(Write-down) write-back on properties (il &t ) 5 B 3% 1F H & 2 R ¥)
held for development for sale, net Eck | 22 (84,162) 11,832
Write-down on properties held for B EH &4 %

sale (59,766) —

(Loss) gain on changes in fair value of &YW 2 A FEEF (EE)
investment properties K 2= 15 (47,333) 191,361
Loss on revaluation of intangible EREEZEMREE
assets 21 — (5,847)
Impairment loss on intangible assets &/ & &= 2 3 [E & 18 21 — (3,207)
Net loss on changes in fair value of R A FEFABERZ E@ME
financial assets at fair value through E 72 AF{E &8 E 18 /F58
profit or loss (1,959) (62,879)
Release on disposal of debt HERRRIZAFETAE
instruments at fair value through ErmRasEBFTA
other comprehensive income (2,119) —
Reversal (recognition) of impairment & &t & & 2 & 8 & 18 # @]
loss on financial assets, net: (HR)F
— Loans receivable — W ER 20 2,675 (11,783)
— Debt instruments at fair value —EBEAFEFAEMEZE
through other comprehensive o =F U =
income 1,775 (5,378)
— Debt instruments at amortised — BB ENTFECES
cost = 19 717 119
Share of results of joint ventures DIHEERAFEE 137 109
Finance costs A& KA 7 (126,622) (67673)
(Loss) profit before taxation Brid AT (B 18) % 7 8 (392,223) 17,858
Income tax (expense) credit Frgdi(A) &R 10 (21,991) 7483
(Loss) profit for the year from RERFBELEEB I AFE

continuing operations (B 18) a7 (414,214) 25,341
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For the year ended 31 March 2024 & £2024%#3/31H 1t F &

2024
20244
NOTE HK$'000
b & FET
Discontinued operation ERIFEEETR
Profit for the year from discontinued REDRIFKRE XK
operation REE i F 11 5,655
(Loss) profit for the year REE(BE)RF (408,559)
Other comprehensive income Hih2HEWK &= (FxX)
(expense)
Items that may be reclassified FEERIREEF D BB 2
subsequently to profit or loss: HH
Exchange differences arising on MEBINKEBGHHRERE
translation of financial statements 2 ENERE
of foreign operations 1,078
Change in fair value of debt TR EFAEAM TR
instruments at fair value through mw BB IAEZAYE
other comprehensive income 5 (1,439)
Release on disposal of debt HERERIZAFEBETA
instruments at fair value through Ezmliam2ERT
other comprehensive income A 2,119
(Reversal) recognition of impairment st A8# 2 IR A FEFTA
loss on debt instruments EmermEmlkm s EBL
at fair value through other B2 mEEEER)®E
comprehensive income included RIFE
in profit or loss, net (1,775)
Other comprehensive expense RERE 2 EMEEREZ
for the year (17)
Total comprehensive expense REE 2z 2HMZ B
for the year (408,576)
(Loss) profit for the year attributable %A 7] # 5 A & 15 A F 2
to owners of the Company: (B 18) =
— from continuing operations —REFELEER (254,739)
— from discontinued operation — REERIEEEFEE 1,504
(Loss) profit for the year attributable A2 7] G A f& (5 AN 4 £
to owners of the Company (E518) & 7 (253,235)
(Loss) profit for the year attributable  3F 175 i% 18 25 FE (5 AT & (&518)
to non-controlling interests: A
— from continuing operations — RERELEED (159,475)
— from discontinued operation —REAERIEEER 4,151
(Loss) profit for the year attributable  3F 1758 A% 48 25 FE (5 A G & (&518)
to non-controlling interests A (155,324)

(Loss) profit for the year REE(BE)RF (408,559)

2023
20234
HK$'000
FET

4,602

29,943

(36,244)

(3,389)

5,378

(34,255)

(4,312)

10,905
2,375

13,280

14,436
2,227

16,663

29,943
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For the year ended 31 March 2024 & 22024 #3/31H 1F F &

2024 2023
20244 20234
NOTE HK$'000 HK$:009
b &7 FET FET
Total comprehensive (expense) ARArRIHEAEAEE2E(FX)
income attributable to owners of W e 42 58
the Company: N
— from continuing operations — REFEZEEH (255,125) (26)
— from discontinued operation —REDRIEGEES 1,881 (17.402)
Total comprehensive expense AR HBEARGEEZARMY
attributable to owners of 4 RE
the Company (253,244) (17.428)
Total comprehensive (expense) e ES EA 2 ()
income attributable to W 5 4B EE
non-controlling interests:
— from continuing operations — RERFELCEER (160,184) 29,433
— from discontinued operation 3=y Y g = 4,852 (16,317)
Total comprehensive (expense) I 1 i af S 2 E (R 32)
income attributable to non- I & 48 58
controlling interests (155,332) 13,116
Total comprehensive expense AEErHEMTBRE
for the year (408,576) (4,312)
(Loss) earnings per share B (EE) &N HK$ HK$
BT BT
From continuing and discontinued REFBEMBRIFEEER
operations
— Basic — B R 13 (3.50) 0.18
— Diluted —#s 13 (4.20) 0.18
From continuing operations RE B EET
— Basic K 13 (3.52) 0.15

— Diluted —%% 13 (4.24) 0.15
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At 31 March 2024 #2024 %¥3531H

2024 2023
20244 20234
NOTES HK$°000 HK$'000
k3 FE T FETT
Non-current assets EREEE
Property, plant and equipment WE - WENEE 14 191,445 196,783
Right-of-use assets FREEE 168 639
Intangible assets EmREE 21 500 500
Investment properties "EYHE 15 2,069,773 2,194,541
Interests in joint ventures REERTNER 351 214
Financial assets at fair value through & A F{EF A B2 2
profit or loss TREE 17 6,264 48,930
Debt instruments at fair value BEAFEFAEMER
through other comprehensive Wam o EBIA
income 18 100 471
Debt instruments at amortised cost IR ER ANt &8 2 BT
TEA 19 22,576 36,614
Loans receivable W E & 20 112,354 30,621
Deferred tax assets FEETHIBEE 28 1,030 16,862
Deposits birgca 285 285
2,404,846 2,526,510
Current assets mENE E
Properties held for development BIERESBERYE
for sale 22 3,021,999 4,770,716
Properties held for sale BIEREW X 2,646,550 728,950
Trade and other receivables B 5 & E e U SRR 23 58,850 66,230
Prepaid income tax AT TS/ — 25,424
Financial assets at fair value through & QA F{E A B2 2
profit or loss THEE 17 205,590 142,230
Loans receivable & B R 20 58,918 159,272
Debt instruments at amortised cost IR K At & 2
(R =t 19 1,955 —
Debt instruments at fair value BAFEFAEMER
through other comprehensive Wz EBIA
income 18 313 624
Time deposits over three months —@AMK Lz EBFR 24 32,583 —
Cash and cash equivalents RENREEEYD 24 307,435 398,894
6,334,193 6,292,340
Assets classified as held for sale DERBIEFLEEE
— investment properties —IREME 15 - 370,114

6,334,193 6,662,454



2023/244F ¥

At 31 March 2024 #2024 ¥3531H

2024 2023
20244 20234
NOTES HK$000 HK$'000
k3 F & T FE T
Current liabilities mEARE
Trade and other payables B 5 & E M B 25 151,991 118,920
Deposit received for disposal of HESHEARBIELEEE
assets classified as held for sale Frii 4% & = 226,802
Contract liabilities AREE 25 35,340 29,085
Amount due to a non-controlling FEASS — iz FE 458 A% A% 3R 3R TE
shareholder 26 212,531 211,694
Tax payable FE TR 18 65,041 55,644
Lease liabilities HEAE 184 408
Secured bank borrowings BHEMIETEE 27 2,323,047 1,615,464
2,788,134 2,258,017
Net current assets MENE EFE 3,546,059 4,404,437
Total assets less current liabilities BEBBERLEEE 5,950,905 6,930,947
Non-current liabilities EmBAE
Deferred tax liabilities EEMRIBEE 28 = 24,537
Secured bank borrowings BEBRITEER 27 1,348,814 1,913,713
Lease liabilities HES®E = 312
1,348,814 1,938,562
4,602,091 4,992,385
Capital and reserves BEARN B
Share capital fi& A 29 7,399 7399
Reserves HE 2,399,654 3,444,404
Equity attributable to owners KRG HEB ANERER
of the Company 2,407,053 3,451,803
Non-controlling interests JEPE R 2,195,038 1,540,582
4,602,091 4,992,385

The consolidated financial statements on pages 103 to 254 were E E© R2024F6 27 E R INERKRS
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 27 1038 £2548 v G AWK R E - W EH T 4

June 2024 and are signed on its behalf by: FEERREE:
LUI YUK CHU KOON HO YAN CANDY
EEH B A iR
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR

EF EF
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mEERBER

For the year ended 31 March 2024 & Z£20244#3531H 1- £ &

At April 2022

Exchange differences arising on
translation of foreign operations

Change in fair value of debt
instruments at fair value through
other comprehensive income

Impairment loss on debt instruments
atfair value through other
comprehensive income included
in profit or loss

Profit for the year

Total comprehensive [expensel
income for the year

Deemed disposal of partial interest
in & subsidiary upon placing of
shares (note /6]

Acquisition of additional interest in
a subsidiary by conversion of
convertible notes (note 16/

At31 March 2023

Exchange differences arising on
translation of financial statements
of foreign operations

Change in fair value of debt
instruments at fair value through
other comprehensive income

Release on disposal of debt
instruments at fair value through
other comprehensive income

Reversal of impairment loss on debt
assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income included
in profit or loss

Loss for the year

Total comprehensive income
(expense for the year

Deemed disposal of partial interest in
asubsidiary upon placing of share

Release of property revaluation
reserve upon disposal of the
properties

Repurchase of shares by a subsidiary

At31 March 2024

RN2E4RIE

BEBNRRELL
EXZE

BOVEFARREEAR
JEBIZZATE
#9

FARBZEATEFA
AEEREZRH
TEZHEEE

REERAERALER -

EHERAZHARE
(W it16)
RARATRRZERE-
EGERY -
#16)

RNBEIA3NE

BEENRRUBRREL
ZEfZE

RAFEAAEMZERE
LEBIAZATE
29

HERBREATERA
Ef2EREL
FHIE

HARRRATEA
EHRERE R
EEZRERR
&m

TERER

REERHERALER-
AHBARZBAEE

HENRRERNZ
EHRE

HEARBER(

RUNUEIABNE

Share
capital

BE
Hk§000
TEL

139

Share
premium

RfEE
HKS000
FEL

02212

20212

0212

Capital
reserve

RARE
k8000
AT
(notea)
(Hita)

196,565

196,565

196,565

Share
options
reserve

BREGE
000
FET

561

581

581

Attributable to owners of the Company

Translation
reserve

EifE
HKS 000
TEL

10316

(31532

(31532

(15,848)

765

765

2,102

(12981)

ARAREARL
Fair value
through other Property
Special ibuted comprehensi I
reserve surplus income reserve reserve
BRTE
iARH
RHRE  EARR 2EUERE NXERRE
HK$000 HKS 000 HK$000 HK$000
FET FET Fér A
fnotely) fnotec) [hoted)
(Way) (Wi (i
9800 20937 10323) 69872
- - (2.846) -
- - 3670 -
- - 84 -
9,800 2081 (9,499) 69,2872
- - (865) -
- - 563 -
- - (472) -
- - (1) -
- - - (40,624)
9,800 20937 (10273) 29248
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Treasury Accumulated

shares

asEb
000
Fiti

(6,468)

(6,468)

profits

iR
HKS000
FEL

3470288

13260

13,280

995,803)

281,959

2,769,724

(253,235)
253,235)

(767318)

10,802

1,769,973

Total

&it
HKS 000
TEL

4177706

(31532)

(2.846)

3610
13.280

(17428)

991,452)

282911

3451803

765

(865)

563

(472)
283,235)

(25324)

(755,216)

(29,822)

(6468)

2407083

Non-
controlling
interest

FERER
HKS 000
FEL

75981

(wn

543)

1,708
16,663

13,116

1,050,632

(282817)

1540582

3

(574)

1556

1.303)
(155,324)

(155,332)

719,966

282

2,195,038

Total

ait

k8000

FEL

4987517

(36,244

(3:389)

5378
20943

4312)

59,180

4,992,385

1078

(1.439)

2119

(1,775)
(408,559

(408,576)

2,750

6,468)

4,602,091



KEEEEEAER AT 2023/24F R

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

Notes:

(a)

(c)

The capital reserve of the Group represents the credit arising from
the reduction of share capital of the Company in October 2006.

The special reserve of the Group represents the difference between
the nominal value of the share capital issued by the Company and
the nominal value of the share capital and share premium of the
companies forming the Group pursuant to the group reorganisation
prior to the listing of the Company's shares in 1995.

The contributed surplus of the Group represents the credit arising
from the reduction of certain reserves of the Company in August

2004.

The property revaluation reserve of the Group includes the gain on
revaluation of certain leasehold properties of the Group.

109

GERREER

For the year ended 31 March 2024 & £20244#3/31H 1 F &

LS

(@) AEEZ BB KR FER20065F10H X
REVRFTEE 2 EK -

b) AEBEZEHFBALRARARDHETRA
EmEARGERXANEERBEARE KD
FE1995F LAl 2 EBEH)E T & QA
ZBRAEERBRODEEZZHE -

() AEBZEHABHREKEARDRNR2004F8
BBIRE TREZER -

) AEEZDESHRFEEEEASEETHE
Wz B -
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For the year ended 31 March 2024 & £2024%#3/31H 1t F &

Cash flows from operating activities REKEESH 2 HERE
(Loss) profit before taxation B F AT (B 1E) & F
Adjustments for: KR

Interest income PSRN

Interest expense A B Z

Depreciation of property, plant and ME - BMEREHITE
equipment

Depreciation of right-of-use assets TRAEEEZINE

Dividend income from investments KEJE 2R EWA

Loss (gain) on changes in fair value of KEMEZATFEESEBE
investment properties (M)

Loss on disposal/write-off of property, PE/MWRYE - BERHR
plant and equipment 2 EE

Gain on disposal of investment HEREME 2 W
properties

Write-down (write-back) on properties Wom (R RBIFLEERY
held for development for sale, net EDEE-

Write-down on properties held for sale WORFEEH S W%

Net loss on changes in fair value of BAFE ﬁ)\ Ba (Hiz NS
financial assets at fair value through TE FFABRNDZEMEEZ
profit or loss (“FVTPL") NEFEZEEIE ;% %ﬁ

Release on disposal of debt HERBRZEAFEAE
instruments at fair value through e EkE (A FERFA
other comprehensive income Ezmlml)) o EBHITA
("FVTOCI")

(Reversal) recognition of impairment FEWER 2 REBEGER)
loss on loans receivable, net TR F R

(Reversal) recognition of impairment BEAFEFAHEMEZE KRS
loss on debt instruments at FVTOCI ZEB TR 2 REEE (8

) i 52

Reversal of impairment loss on debt HBEKAGFECZEBIA
instruments at amortised cost 2 BIEBERE

Share of results of joint ventures NIEEE RFIEE

Loss on revaluation of intangible assets mEEE Z BHEE

Impairment loss on intangible assets mEEEZREEIE

Wiritten-off of other payable 5 B Ath B S 5R1E

Operating cash flows before movementsin £ BE B HFI 2 KL B RE
working capital

Increase in properties held for development £ 1 i & 2% & ¥ 2 18 /0
for sale

Decrease in properties held for sale BIEREWER L

(Increase) decrease in financial assets at I AFEFABRZESREE
FVTPL (3% hn) R

Decrease in trade and other receivables B 5 & B b W R R

Decrease in loans receivable W E FOR

Increase (decrease) in trade and other B 5 & H e FIE E 0
payables R A

Increase in contract liabilities S aEEN

2024
2024
HK$’000
FETT
(349,243)

(21,990)
126,622

6,740
521
(3,184)
47333
29
(66,611)
84,162
59,766

1,755

2,119

(2,675)

(1,775)

(717)
(137)

(117,285)

(408,774)
163,978

(42,093)
28,312
21,296

27,939
6,255

2023
20234
HK$'000
FAE T

26,509

(19,796)
67673

7021
393
(11,641)

(200,225)

(11,832)

68,271

11,562

5,378

(119)
(109)
5,847
3,207
(1,732)

(49,593)

(263,348)
23,391

35,410
101,066
44,525

(32,329
12,551



Cash used in operations

Hong Kong Profits Tax paid

People's Republic of China (“PRC")
Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT") paid

Hong Kong Profits Tax refunded

Dividend received

Interest received from loan financing

Net cash used in operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities
Proceeds from/deposit received for

disposal of assets classified as held for

sale

Proceeds from disposal of investment
properties

Proceeds from disposal/maturity of
financial assets at FVTPL

Proceeds from repayment of debt
instruments at amortised cost

Other interest received

Proceeds from disposal of property, plant

and equipment

Placement of time deposits over three
months

Purchase of property, plant and
equipment

Advance to a joint venture

Proceeds from disposal of intangible
assets

Acquisition of financial assets at FVTPL

Purchase of intangible assets
Net cash from investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities
Bank borrowings raised
Proceeds from placing of shares

by a subsidiary
Advance from a non-controlling
shareholder
Repayment of bank borrowings
Interest paid
Repurchase of shares by a subsidiary
Repayment of lease liabilities
Payment of loan arrangement fee

Net cash used in financing activities

2023/244F ¥

For the year ended 31 March 2024 & 22024 #3/31H 1F F &

REARE
ENEBEMNEH

ERPEARLIME(FEH])
CEMSBRICEMSER])
BREEFBFEHR

B U B
KAERBREND WHE

AREEERZ 2 RE FHE

KEREERBZASRE
%ﬁE%H¢5E§F
FrISsIA /i &

=
H

H+>F

e
HEREMEZMEHIA

BATEFAEHRZSHEE
ZHE BB ABERE
EEBREMRAS R ES

TAMSHIEB

H e WF &

HEME BEEREREZ
FT1§ 318
BAZEAN L2 R BER

BAME BELEE

BN —EEZE QB RHIA
HEENEE ZMIEKA

WEE A FEFAERZ
TREE
BABWEE

KERERBZRAEFR

KEMEEH I RERE
EERTEE
— & I B8~ ) B & B 19
Frig s 18
—fIIEIE R R 2 B

BERTEER
2 E
18~ =) 48 [ A {n
BIEEERE
SNERLHER

AREBEESHZHEFR

2024
2024
HK$’000
FAETT

(320,372)
(6,159)

(25,974)

3,184
13,061

(336,260)

202,426
75,323
18,857

12,800
8,929

10
(32,583)

(1,443)
(114)

284,205

649,364
24,750

837
(505,968)
(189,505)
(6,468)
(536)
(500)

(28,026)

2023
20234
HK$'000
FAE T

(128,327)
(5,910)

(26,776)
108

11,641
13,727

(135,537)

224,253
68,150
731,575

20,022
6,924

(578)
(1,921)

401

(625,359)
(2,839)

420,628

670,504
59,180

52,580
(696,260)
(144,121)

(398)
(8,179)

(66,694)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

mERERER

For the year ended 31 March 2024 & Z£20244#3531H 1- £ &

2024 2023
20244 20234
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAE T
Net (decrease) increase in cash and RERRESEEWORD) BN
cash equivalents F R (80,081) 218,397
Cash and cash equivalents at beginningof £ ¥R 4 MR L EEY
the year 398,894 184,425
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes ~ #MEERE 82 2 & (11,378) (3,928)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of FRAGCEBRESEEY
the year, represented by bank balances RIRTHEKRLES
and cash 307435 398,894
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Easyknit International Holdings Limited (the “Company”; the
Company and its subsidiaries are collectively referred to as
the “Group”) is incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted
company with limited liability and its shares are listed on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). The addresses of the registered office and the
principal place of business of the Company are disclosed in
the “"Corporate Information” section of the annual report.

The Company is an investment holding company. The
principal activities of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are
set out in note 39. The Group also operated in the PRC which
was discontinued in prior year (see note 11).

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (“"HK$") which is also the functional currency of
the Company.

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year

In the current year, the Group has applied the following
new and amendments to HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") for the
first time, which are mandatorily effective for the Group’s
annual periods beginning on 1 April 2023 for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements:

HKFRS 17 (including the October Insurance Contracts
2020 and February 2022
Amendments to HKFRS 17)

Amendments to HKAS 1 and
Practice Statement 2

Disclosure of Accounting Policies

Amendments to HKAS 8 Definition of Accounting Estimates

Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets and
Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction

Amendments to HKAS 12 International Tax Reform-Pillar Two
Model Rules

2023/244F ¥

For the year ended 31 March 2024 & 22024 #3/31H 1F F &

KEBREEBERRAB(ARA] K
REAREMBARSRERIANEEDR
BREEMAZRERRBRAF
HEOEEEMARZAER AR (5
P BT o AR EYEE M R
R EREXEWENFRIQAE R
—HEIRE -

ARNE T — R EZER AR « KRAF
ZIEBEHMBRARIEREZERED
AW I - AKBE TR RHEE -
MZzLECRBAFERE(RWE
1) °

meahtBwReRBET(ETDINE
BLMBARRBRZNEEE -

P75 B2 2 1B A S 2 HT AT I AR S
AR REER

RAFE AEEEHXRERTY A
EEgHMAg(BESHIAE]))
Rz ]l MBI B BT HERE
R BMBREGEATHEHREME - %
Z & B 5T E R FR2023F 4 A1H B 1A HY
7N B A HA R ol ) A Ak

EEUBREENEE RRAY
(BEEEVBHRSE
81 517572020108 )
2022F2 A{EET )
EREEHENFIFBITA ¢
REBAEF2HR
BEQERESRENA CHEFITE
BB QR ERENR HBE-QFHELR
BT K BEMAER
BMEERE
BEGERFENR BEHEEE
EHEN —XEC#E
K

Jilz)3
i
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For the year ended 31 March 2024 & £2024%#3/31H 1t F &

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year
(Continued)

Except as described below, the application of the new
and amendments to HKFRSs in the current year has had
no material impact on the Group’s financial positions and
performance for the current and prior years and/or on
the disclosures set out in these consolidated financial
statements.

Impacts on application of Amendments to HKAS 1
and HKFRS Practice Statement 2 “Disclosure of
Accounting Policies”

The Group has applied the amendments for the first time
in the current year. HKAS 1 "Presentation of Financial
Statements” is amended to replace all instances of the term
“significant accounting policies” with “material accounting
policy information”. Accounting policy information is material
if, when considered together with other information included
in an entity’s financial statements, it can reasonably be
expected to influence decisions that the primary users of
general purpose financial statements make on the basis of
those financial statements.

The amendments also clarify that accounting policy
information may be material because of the nature of the
related transactions, other events or conditions, even if the
amounts are immaterial. However, not all accounting policy
information relating to material transactions, other events or
conditions is itself material. If an entity chooses to disclose
immaterial accounting policy information, such information
must not obscure material accounting policy information.

HKFRS Practice Statement 2 “Making Materiality
Judgements” (the “Practice Statement”) is also amended
to illustrate how an entity applies the “four-step materiality
process” to accounting policy disclosures and to judge
whether information about an accounting policy is material to
its financial statements. Guidance and examples are added to
the Practice Statement.

TR 7S 57 B2 38 1Bl A S 2 HTRT I A4S
A ERMBREERN @)

BTXaEs  RAFERBON
AIRKERTEEMBEREEALEY
REENAFE KB EFE R
RERRE - R/ AZESEEWBHRE
IBRBEENEREMNERTE -

BREEBE R F1HETER
BEBUBHREEREH L EE2H
[EBit BEZHKEIZZE

AEBEBRAFEERERZERTA -
B EREIRIMBERER Z 25
REEBF UEEZSFHREHIR
RABIEZEABER]—F - W&
BREHEEBYHEREMBELME
H—HEEE AaERHerE—
MAEMBHRR 2 ETZEREREZ
EMBREMERTE  RFENE
EZQHAHRREH -

SAS AT AN ER - B BR AR T
RARBI 521 5 - H i B 4 08
MEEE BEFREELTEK -
AT LHFAREARS  HbF
HRRREMN B BE AN ASE
FE-HERRENBFREEEHK
RER  MARANTEREEEY
SR AR -

BEMBHREENER R EE2RME
HEZEHE ITEHRE]) MEER
MR ER A KOS EFEER
MRRIERREABRRE UL
HEEBETBRRZERYEM B R

ERER EBASTHERENES

NI



New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year
(Continued)

Impacts on application of Amendments to HKAS
1 and HKFRS Practice Statement 2 “Disclosure of
Accounting Policies” (Continued)

The application of the amendments has had no material
impact on the Group’s financial positions and performance
but has affected the disclosure of the Group’s accounting
policies set out in note 3 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective

The Group has not early applied the following amendments
to HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective:

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and Sale or Contribution of Assets
HKAS 28 between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture!'

Amendments to HKFRS 16 Lease Liability in a Sale and
Leaseback?
Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current

or Non-current and related
amendments to Hong Kong
Interpretation 5 (2020)?

Amendments to HKAS 1 Non-current Liabilities with
Covenants?
Amendments to HKAS 7 and Supplier Finance Arrangements?
HKFRS 7
Amendments to HKAS 21 Lack of Exchangeability®

1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be

determined.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2024.

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2025.

Except for the amendments to HKFRSs mentioned below,
the directors of the Company anticipate that the application
of all other amendments to HKFRSs will have no material
impact on the consolidated financial statements in the
foreseeable future.

2023/244F ¥

For the year ended 31 March 2024 & 22024 #3/31H 1F F &
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For the year ended 31 March 2024 & £2024%#3/31H 1t F &

Amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 “Classification of
Liabilities as Current or Non-current and related
amendments to Hong Kong Interpretation 5 (2020)
(the “2020 Amendments”)” and Amendments to
HKAS 1 “Non-current Liabilities with Covenants
(the “2022 Amendments”)”

The 2020 Amendments provide clarification and additional
guidance on the assessment of right to defer settlement for
at least twelve months from reporting date for classification
of liabilities as current or non-current, which:

o clarify that if a liability has terms that could, at the
option of the counterparty, result in its settlement by
the transfer of the entity's own equity instruments,
these terms do not affect its classification as current
or non-current only if the entity recognises the option
separately as an equity instrument applying HKAS 32
“Financial Instruments: Presentation”.

o specify that the classification of liabilities as current
or non-current should be based on rights that are
in existence at the end of the reporting period.
Specifically, the amendments clarify that the
classification should not be affected by management
intentions or expectations to settle the liability within 12
months.

For rights to defer settlement for at least twelve months
from reporting date which are conditional on the compliance
with covenants, the requirements introduced by the 2020
Amendments have been modified by the 2022 Amendments.
The 2022 Amendments specify that only covenants with
which an entity is required to comply with on or before the
end of the reporting period affect the entity’s right to defer
settlement of a liability for at least twelve months after the
reporting date. Covenants which are required to comply with
only after the reporting period do not affect whether that
right exists at the end of the reporting period.

CHEMEERERZEIERTER
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BB ERE1R LT #4E
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Amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 “Classification of
Liabilities as Current or Non-current and related
amendments to Hong Kong Interpretation 5 (2020)
(the “2020 Amendments”)” and Amendments to
HKAS 1 “Non-current Liabilities with Covenants
(the “2022 Amendments”)” (Continued)

In addition, the 2022 Amendments specify the disclosure
requirements about information that enables users of
financial statements to understand the risk that the liabilities
could become repayable within twelve months after the
reporting period, if the entity classify liabilities arising from
loan arrangements as non-current when the entity’s right to
defer settlement of those liabilities is subject to the entity
complying with covenants within twelve months after the
reporting period.

The 2022 Amendments also defer the effective date
of applying the 2020 Amendments to annual reporting
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024. The 2022
Amendments, together with the 2020 Amendments, are
effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after
1 January 2024, with early application permitted. If an entity
applies the 2020 amendments for an earlier period after the
issue of the 2022 Amendments, the entity should also apply
the 2022 Amendments for that period.

As at 31 March 2024, the Group's right to defer settlement
for borrowings of HK$1,348,814,000 is subject to
compliance with certain financial ratios within 12 months
from the reporting date. Such borrowings were classified
as non-current as the Group met such ratios at 31 March
2024. Upon the application of the 2022 Amendments, such
borrowings will still be classified as non-current as the
covenants which the Group is required to comply with only
after the reporting period do not affect whether that right
exists at the end of the reporting date and such borrowing
will still be classified as non-current.
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CREMEERERZEIERTER
| ERER (@)
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3.1 Basis of preparation of consolidated 31 RBSEHMBEHRREE

financial statements

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with HKFRSs issued by
the HKICPA. For the purpose of preparation of the
consolidated financial statements, information is
considered material if such information is reasonably
expected to influence decisions made by primary
users. In addition, the consolidated financial statements
include applicable disclosures required by the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange (“Listing Rules”) and by the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the historical cost basis except for
investment properties, certain intangible assets and
certain financial instruments which are measured at fair
values or revalued amounts, at the end of the reporting
period, as explained in the accounting policies set out
below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of
the consideration given in exchange for goods and
services.

e BBRREBEEEES
%AAEWMEﬁﬁﬁﬁiﬁ
Jﬁ%°#ﬁ%iA%%ﬁ%
EONRZEREAEESRS
iixﬁﬁﬁmﬁﬁﬁ JEA%_\
%WEZ%E%E Boo N A E
T4 ¥ 2% B ¥R B 22 BT 3B %tmﬁw
(TET &R B R ZF B R a R B AR
E R i B EE -

DH

WX 2@ BREME BER
EYME ETEVEERETZ
MTARREPRARFES
EfMS BB KEHBR
RIVBELRAERE -

R st B A — AR AR B an & AR
BzRFPERERKIE -



2023/244F ¥

For the year ended 31 March 2024 & 22024 #3/31H 1F F &

RRECUBREEE®

3.1 Basis of preparation of consolidated 31

financial statements (Continued)

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the
measurement date, regardless of whether that price is
directly observable or estimated using another valuation
technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a
liability, the Group takes into account the characteristics
of the asset or liability if market participants would
take those characteristics into account when pricing
the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair
value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in
these consolidated financial statements is determined
on such a basis, except for share-based payment
transactions that are within the scope of HKFRS 2
“Share-based Payment”, leasing transactions that are
accounted for in accordance with HKFRS 16 “Leases”
and measurements that have some similarities to fair
value but are not fair value, such as net realisable value
in HKAS 2 "Inventories” or value in use in HKAS 36
“Impairment of Assets”.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes
into account a market participant’s ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and
best use or by selling it to another market participant
that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

For financial instruments and investment properties
which are transacted at fair value and a valuation
technique that unobservable inputs are to be used to
measure fair value in subsequent periods, the valuation
technique is calibrated so that the results of the
valuation technique equals the transaction price.
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31

3.2

Basis of preparation of consolidated
financial statements (Continued)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair
value measurements are categorised into Level 1,
2 or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs to
the fair value measurements are observable and the
significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement
in its entirety, which are described as follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities that
the entity can access at the measurement date;

° Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for
the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly;
and

° Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the
asset or liability.

Material accounting policy information

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and entities
controlled by the Group. Control is achieved when the
Company:

° has power over the investee;
° is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from

its involvement with the investee; and

° has the ability to use its power to affect its
returns.
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3.2 EERBERER @)

3.2 Material accounting policy information

(Continued)
Basis of consolidation (Continued)

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there
are changes to one or more of the three elements of
control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when
the Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically,
income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or
disposed of during the year are included in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the date the Group gains
control until the date when the Group ceases to control
the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the
Company and to the non-controlling interests. Total
comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed to
the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling
interests even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting
policies in line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full
on consolidation.
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3.2 Material accounting policy information

(Continued)
Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Changes in the Group’s interests in existing
subsidiaries

Changes in the Group's interests in subsidiaries that
do not result in the Group losing control over the
subsidiaries are accounted for as equity transactions.
The carrying amounts of the Group's relevant
components of equity and the non-controlling interests
are adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative
interests in the subsidiaries, including re-attribution
of relevant reserves between the Group and the
non-controlling interests according to the Group’s and
the non-controlling interests’ proportionate interests.

Any difference between the amount by which the
non-controlling interests are adjusted, and the fair value
of the consideration paid or received is recognised
directly in equity and attributed to owners of the
Company.

Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets (and disposal groups) are classified
as held for sale if their carrying amount will be
recovered principally through a sale transaction rather
than through continuing use. This condition is regarded
as met only when the asset (or disposal group) is
available for immediate sale in its present condition
subject only to terms that are usual and customary
for sales of such asset (or disposal group) and its sale
is highly probable. Management must be committed
to the sale, which should be expected to qualify for
recognition as a completed sale within one year from
the date of classification.
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3.2 EERBERER @)

3.2 Material accounting policy information

(Continued)
Non-current assets held for sale (Continued)

Non-current assets (and disposal groups) classified
as held for sale are measured at the lower of their
previous carrying amount and fair value less costs to
sell, except for investment properties which continue
to be measured in accordance with the accounting
policies as set out in investment properties section.

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a
performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control”
of the goods or services underlying the particular
performance obligation is transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service
(or a bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a
series of distinct goods or services that are substantially
the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is
recognised over time by reference to the progress
towards complete satisfaction of the relevant
performance obligation if one of the following criteria is
met:

° the customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefits provided by the Group’s
performance as the Group performs;

° the Group’s performance creates or enhances
an asset that the customer controls as the Group
performs; or

° the Group's performance does not create an
asset with an alternative use to the Group and the
Group has an enforceable right to payment for
performance completed to date.
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3.2 Material accounting policy information

(Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(Continued)

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time
when the customer obtains control of the distinct good
or service.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to
transfer goods or services to a customer for which the
Group has received consideration for (or an amount of
consideration is due) from the customer.

The Group recognises revenue from property sales at
a point in time when legal title of property has been
transferred to customer, being when the customer
has the ability to direct the use of the property and
obtain substantially all of the remaining benefits of the

property.

Over time revenue recognition. measurement
of progress towards complete satisfaction of a
performance obligation

Output method

The progress towards complete satisfaction of a
performance obligation is measured based on output
method, which is to recognise revenue on the basis
of direct measurements of the value of the goods or
services transferred to the customer to date relative to
the remaining goods or services promised under the
contract, that best depict the Group’s performance in
transferring control of goods or services.

As a practical expedient, if the Group has a right to
consideration in an amount that corresponds directly
with the value of the Group’s performance completed
to date, the Group recognises revenue in the amount to
which the Group has the right to invoice.
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3.2 Material accounting policy information

(Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(Continued)

Incremental costs of obtaining a contract

Incremental costs of obtaining a contract are those
costs that the Group incurs to obtain a contract with a
customer that it would not have incurred if the contract
had not been obtained.

The Group recognises property sales commissions
as an asset if it expects to recover these costs. The
asset recognised is subsequently amortised to profit or
loss on a systematic basis that is consistent with the
transfer to the customer of the goods or services to
which the assets relate.

The Group applies the practical expedient of expensing
all incremental costs to obtain a contract if these costs
would otherwise have been fully amortised to profit or
loss within one year.
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3.2 Material accounting policy information

(Continued)
Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies)
are recognised at the rates of exchange prevailing
on the dates of the transactions. At the end of the
reporting period, monetary items denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried at
fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date when
the fair value was determined. When a fair value gain
or loss on a non-monetary item is recognised in profit
or loss, any exchange component of that gain or loss
is also recognised in profit or loss. When a fair value
gain or loss on a non-monetary item is recognised
in other comprehensive income, any exchange
component of that gain or loss is also recognised in
other comprehensive income. Non-monetary items
that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the retranslation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise.
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3.2 Material accounting policy information

(Continued)
Foreign currencies (Continued)

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated
financial statements, the assets and liabilities of the
Group's foreign operations are translated into the
presentation currency of the Group (i.e. HK$) using
exchange rate prevailing at the end of each reporting
period. Income and expenses are translated at the
average exchange rates for the period, unless exchange
rates fluctuate significantly during the period, in which
case, the exchange rates at the dates of transactions
are used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are
recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity under the heading of translation
reserve (attributed to non-controlling interests as
appropriate).

In addition, in relation to a partial disposal of a
subsidiary that does not result in the Group losing
control over the subsidiary, the proportionate share of
accumulated exchange differences are re-attributed
to non-controlling interests and are not recognised in
profit or loss. For all other partial disposals (i.e. partial
disposals of associates or joint arrangements that
do not result in the Group losing significant influence
or joint control), the proportionate share of the
accumulated exchange differences is reclassified to
profit or loss.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which
are assets that necessarily take a substantial period
of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
added to the cost of those assets, until such time as
the assets are substantially ready for their intended use
or sale.

AL A€ )

REINGEMBRERME A%
BEIXBcEERBEYR
EHMRZRTEXRES/X

SEZ2EEENET) MK

A KR X B2 B F 1T BE Rtk

g KPR ERHRAE

KB WE - R ERT - Bl R A

RPAMZER - FFELER =

E(WAREM 2K xR

WA &L E T R (10

A RIRERNIEERER) -

1 =i 7 = 2] ﬂiﬁ@lzﬁ’%l
REHHZEGEN—EHBEA
HRGIER $%E&$Eﬂgttfﬁﬂ
BRI EkERs BEXTRE
mPHER - Hf o b &l wm
‘Hj’%T\ BYAEEKE
K%’E‘JZ £ R 42 Bl B B 2
Al ek B A LB ) o IR DI
BEHELEZREHNOEEER -

EEEA

HIHE 2R ‘}ZEE,,\H*EQ
BEREEEGAERAHR
AEEZA éﬁ%é{?é?ﬂgi
ZIEERA B ARFEELZ
KA BEEBEEANELAME
REMREXNHERL -



2023/24 Annual Report

For the year ended 31 March 2024 & £2024%#3/31H 1t F &

3.2 EERHBEER @)

3.2 Material accounting policy information

(Continued)
Borrowing costs (Continued)

Any specific borrowing that remain outstanding after
the related asset is ready for its intended use or sale is
included in the general borrowing pool for calculation of
capitalisation rate on general borrowings. Investment
income earned on the temporary investment of specific
borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or
loss in the period in which they are incurred.

Taxation

Income tax (expense) credit represents the sum of
current and deferred income tax expense.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable (loss)
profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from (loss) profit
before taxation because of income or expense that are
taxable or deductible in other years and items that are
never taxable or deductible. The Group's liability for
current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.
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3.2 Material accounting policy information

(Continued)
Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
in the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation
of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all
deductible temporary differences to the extent that it
is probable that taxable profits will be available against
which those deductible temporary differences can be
utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from the
initial recognition (other than in a business combination)
of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects
neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit and
at the time of the transaction does not give rise to
equal taxable and deductible temporary differences. In
addition, deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from the initial recognition
of goodwill.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences associated with investments
in subsidiaries and interests in joint ventures, except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of
the temporary difference and it is probable that
the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences associated with such
investments and interests are only recognised to the
extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient
taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of
the temporary differences and they are expected to
reverse in the foreseeable future.
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3.2 Material accounting policy information

(Continued)
Taxation (Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the
asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in
which the liability is settled or the asset is realised,
based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from
the manner in which the Group expects, at the end of
the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying
amount of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for
investment properties that are measured using the fair
value model, the carrying amounts of such properties
are presumed to be recovered entirely through sale,
unless the presumption is rebutted. The presumption is
rebutted when the investment property is depreciable
and is held within a business model whose objective is
to consume substantially all of the economic benefits
embodied in the investment property over time, rather
than through sale.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when they relate to
income taxes levied to the same taxation entity by the
same taxation authority.
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3.2 EERBERER @)

3.2 Material accounting policy information

(Continued)
Taxation (Continued)

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
in which case, the current and deferred tax are also
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity respectively.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are tangible assets that
are held for use in the production or supply of goods
or services, or for administrative purposes. Property,
plant and equipment are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

When the Group makes payments for ownership
interests of properties which includes both leasehold
land and building elements, the entire consideration is
allocated between the leasehold land and the building
elements in proportion to the relative fair values at
initial recognition. To the extent the allocation of the
relevant payments can be made reliably, interest in
leasehold land is presented as “right-of-use assets” in
the consolidated statement of financial position except
for those that are classified and accounted for as
investment properties under the fair value model and
properties held for development for sale that are carried
at the lower of cost and net realisable value. When
the consideration cannot be allocated reliably between
non-lease building element and undivided interest in
the underlying leasehold land, the entire properties are
classified as property, plant and equipment.
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3.2 EERHBEER @)

3.2 Material accounting policy information

(Continued)
Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost
of items of property, plant and equipment less their
residual values over their estimated useful lives, using
the straight-line method. The estimated useful lives,
residual values and depreciation method are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of
any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective
basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising
on the disposal or retirement of an item of property,
plant and equipment is determined as the difference
between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount
of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn
rentals and/or for capital appreciation.

Investment properties are initially measured at
cost, including any directly attributable expenditure.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties
are measured at their fair values, adjusted to exclude
any prepaid or accrued operating lease income.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value
of investment properties are included in profit or loss in
the period in which they arise.
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3.2 EERBERER @)

3.2 Material accounting policy information

(Continued)
Investment properties (Continued)

If an item of property, plant and equipment becomes an
investment property because its use has changed as
evidenced by end of owner-occupation, any difference
between the carrying amount and the fair value of that
item is recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in property revaluation reserve. On
the subsequent sale or retirement of the asset, the
relevant revaluation reserve will be transferred directly
to accumulated profits.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal
or when the investment property is permanently
withdrawn from use and no future economic benefits
are expected from its disposal. Any gain or loss arising
on derecognition of the property (calculated as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset) is included in profit or loss
in the period in which the property is derecognised.

Impairment on property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets with finite useful
live to determine whether there is any indication that
these assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any
such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the
relevant asset is estimated in order to determine the
extent of the impairment loss (if any).
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3.2 Material accounting policy information

(Continued)

Impairment on property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets (Continued)

The recoverable amount of property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets are estimated
individually. When it is not possible to estimate the
recoverable amount individually, the Group estimates
the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to
which the asset belongs.

In testing a cash-generating unit for impairment,
corporate assets are allocated to relevant cash
generating units when a reasonable and consistent
basis of allocation can be established, or otherwise
they are allocated to the smallest group of cash
generating units for which a reasonable and consistent
allocation basis can be established. The recoverable
amount is determined for the cash-generating unit or
group of cash-generating units to which the corporate
asset belongs, and is compared with the carrying
amount of the relevant cash-generating unit or group of
cash-generating units.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less
costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing value
in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset (or a
cash-generating unit) for which the estimates of future
cash flows have not been adjusted.
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3.2 EERBERER @)

3.2 Material accounting policy information

(Continued)

Impairment on property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets (Continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a
cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its
carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset (for
a cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable
amount. For corporate assets or portion of corporate
assets which cannot be allocated on reasonable
and consistent basis to a cash-generating unit, the
Group compares the carrying amount of a group of
cash-generating units, including the carrying amounts
of the corporate assets or portion of corporate assets
allocated to that group of cash-generating units, with
the recoverable amount of the group of cash-generating
units. In allocating the impairment loss, the impairment
loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of
any goodwill (if applicable) and then to the other assets
on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount of
each asset in the unit or the group of cash-generating
units. The carrying amount of an asset is not reduced
below the highest of its fair value less costs of disposal
(if measurable), its value in use (if determinable)
and zero. The amount of the impairment loss that
would otherwise have been allocated to the asset is
allocated pro rata to the other assets of the unit or the
group of cash-generating units. An impairment loss
is recognised immediately to profit or loss, unless the
relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount under
another standard, in which case the impairment loss is
treated as a revaluation decrease under that standard.
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3.2 Material accounting policy information

(Continued)

Impairment on property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets (Continued)

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit
or a group of cash-generating units) is increased to the
revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that
the increased carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (for
a cash-generating unit or a group of cash-generating
units) in prior year. A reversal of an impairment loss
is recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless the
relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount under
another standard, in which case the impairment loss is
treated as a revaluation decrease under that standard.

Properties held for development for sale

Properties held for development for sale which are
intended to be sold upon completion of development
are classified as current assets. Except for the
leasehold land element which is measured at cost
model in accordance with the accounting policies of
right-of-use assets, properties held for development for
sale are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined on a specific identification
basis including allocation of the related development
expenditure incurred and where appropriate, borrowing
costs capitalised. Net realisable value represents the
estimated selling price for the properties less estimated
cost to completion and costs necessary to make
the sales. Costs necessary to make the sale include
incremental costs directly attributable to the sale and
non-incremental costs which the Group must incur to
make the sale.

Properties held for development for sale are transferred
to properties for sale upon completion.
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3.2 Material accounting policy information

(Continued)
Properties held for sale

Properties held for sale are completed properties and
are classified under current assets. They are stated at
the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents presented on the
consolidated statement of financial position include:

(@) cash, which comprises of cash on hand and
demand deposits; and

(b)  cash equivalents, which comprises of short-term
(generally with original maturity of three months
or less), highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible to a known amount of cash and which
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value. Cash equivalents are held for the purpose
of meeting short-term cash commitments rather
than for investment or other purposes.

For the purposes of consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and
cash equivalents as defined above.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
when a group entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. All regular way purchases
or sales of financial assets are recognised and
derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way
purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within the time
frame established by regulation or convention in the
market place.

HIEHEY ¥

RELEMERCERDE
BRRBEE - E&&$ﬁ7
B FETIEEEINE -

HERBEZEEY
RelReFEMRNEATH
MRz 29 - B

@ He HeERFHRAER
mETE R R

by BeEEYW HBEERH
(ATRIBER=MEAK
BRE)-AERHERAEM
BERcEBEEDHAR
TRHOBRBMERE - 1]
THEEVFEREEHA
AR MEBRKREX
HipBH -

Eﬁ??éfﬁi//mgigﬁﬁm Hek
ReEEYEREREXTEENR
ERREFEY -

TEITA

EEEERRAERMIAEAY
BXZAH A HEREMEE
&iﬂﬁ1°%ﬁﬁ B8 E ok 88
ﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁi\%a%ﬁ%
MEIER EFBEREEN
Eiﬁ%AX%Eﬁﬁmm%
32 BI 3 1E B R E B B BR R A
ZEMEE -



2023/24 Annual Report

For the year ended 31 March 2024 & £2024%#3/31H 1t F &

3.2 EERHBERER @)

3.2 Material accounting policy information

(Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value except for trade receivables
arising from contracts with customers which are initially
measured in accordance with HKFRS 15. Transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or
issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other
than financial assets or financial liabilities at FVTPL are
added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial
assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to
the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities
at FVTPL are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset or financial
liability and of allocating interest income and interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest
rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash receipts and payments (including all fees and
points paid or received that form an integral part of
the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
financial asset or financial liability, or, where appropriate,
a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial
recognition.

Interest income which is derived from the Group's
ordinary course of business is presented as revenue.
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3.2 Material accounting policy information

(Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

° the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is to collect contractual cash
flows; and

° the contractual terms give rise on specified dates
to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Debt instruments that meet the following conditions
are subsequently measured at FVTOCI:

° the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is achieved by both selling and
collecting contractual cash flows; and

° the contractual terms give rise on specified dates
to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured
at FVTPL, except that at the date of initial recognition
of a financial asset the Group may irrevocably elect
to present subsequent changes in fair value of an
equity investment in other comprehensive income if
that equity investment is neither held for trading nor
contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer in
a business combination to which HKFRS 3 “Business
Combinations” applies.
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3.2 Material accounting policy information
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets (Continued)

A financial asset is held for trading if:

° it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
selling in the near term; or

° on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group
manages together and has a recent actual pattern
of short-term profit-taking; or

° it is a derivative that is not designated and
effective as a hedging instrument.

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a
financial asset that are required to be measured at
the amortised cost or FVTOCI as measured at FVTPL
if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an
accounting mismatch.
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3.2 Material accounting policy information
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets (Continued)

(i)

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the
effective interest method for financial assets
measured subsequently at amortised cost
and debt instruments subsequently measured
at FVTOCI. Interest income is calculated by
applying the effective interest rate to the gross
carrying amount of a financial asset, except for
financial assets that have subsequently become
credit-impaired. For financial assets that have
subsequently become credit-impaired, interest
income is recognised by applying the effective
interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial
asset from the next reporting period. If the credit
risk on the credit-impaired financial instrument
improves so that the financial asset is no longer
credit-impaired, interest income is recognised
by applying the effective interest rate to the
gross carrying amount of the financial asset from
the beginning of the reporting period following
the determination that the asset is no longer
credit-impaired.
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3.2 Material accounting policy information
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of
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financial assets (Continued)

(ii)

Debt instruments classified as at FVTOCI

Subsequent changes in the carrying amounts
for debt instruments classified as FVTOCI as a
result of interest income calculated using the
effective interest method, and foreign exchange
gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss.
All other changes in the carrying amount of
these debt instruments are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated under
the heading of FVTOCI reserve. Impairment
allowances are recognised in profit or loss with
corresponding adjustment to other comprehensive
income without reducing the carrying amounts
of these debt instruments. When these debt
instruments are derecognised, the cumulative
gains or losses previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or
loss.
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3.2 Material accounting policy information
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets (Continued)

(iif)

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for
being measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI or
designated as FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair
value at the end of each reporting period, with
any fair value gains or losses recognised in profit
or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit
or loss includes any interest but excludes any
dividend earned on the financial asset and is
included in the “net loss on changes in fair value
of financial assets at FVTPL” line item.

Film right investment is the Group’s investment
in a film production project which entitles the
Group to share certain percentage of income
to be generated from the related film based on
the Group's investment portion as specified in
respective film right investment agreement but
the Group has no control nor joint control over the
investment. Film right investment is classified as
financial assets at FVTPL.
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3.2 Material accounting policy information 3.2 EESHBERER®
(Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued) @I AGE)
Financial assets (Continued) ZEEE ()
Impairment of financial assets subject to REBBMBWMESEREIR
impairment assessment under HKFRS 9 ETRENGHHESBREER

(]

The Group performs impairment assessment under AEEREBEBEHRAEEBE(E
expected credit loss (“ECL") model (including trade and HEEBEEDERERERESR
other receivables, loans receivable, debt instruments BT S 22 R B9 E 1T R (A
at FVTOCI, debt instruments at amortised cost, cash A (BEES R EMEREIE
and cash equivalents and time deposits over three JEWER RATFEFAEMS
months) which are subject to impairment assessment Mz 2 BB T E - 128K
under HKFRS 9. The amount of ECL is updated at each A EZEBKIA BHekBe
reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since EEMAR=ERNEZEH
initial recognition. GRETRENE - EHEE

BEESENSREAHERN - K
RBRAZE & B B B 7 46 7 58 A 2R

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from THEREEEEESRNEH
all possible default events over the expected life of TEMEHFHRNERE A&
the relevant instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL BEHNEHEMEANESREES
("12m ECL") represents the portion of lifetime ECL Bk 12BREHEEREIE
that is expected to result from default events that are (M2ME AESREEBEDIERELD
possible within 12 months after the reporting date. A 35 BHI R 1218 A R AT RE 3 4
Assessments are done based on the Group'’s historical REDEMHTSI B M 2 H 78 5
credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that are FEEBBHN D - FHEIR
specific to the debtors, general economic conditions BAEERAEEEEBERE
and an assessment of both the current conditions at B UHEFANEETER - &
the reporting date as well as the forecast of future BEERARERREANE
conditions. AT R S0 B R 2RAR 5 T8 ORI BT Mk 1
The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade REBE-—BHMESEWRIERE
receivables and lease receivables. ERKNREER-HEREE
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3.2 Material accounting policy information
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets subject to
impairment assessment under HKFRS 9
(Continued)

For all other assets, the Group measures the loss
allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
in which case the Group recognises lifetime ECL.
The assessment of whether lifetime ECL should be
recognised is based on significant increases in the
likelihood or risk of a default occurring since initial
recognition.

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the reporting date with
the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition.
In making this assessment, the Group considers
both quantitative and qualitative information that
is reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information that
is available without undue cost or effort.
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3.2 Material accounting policy information
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets subject to
impairment assessment under HKFRS 9
(Continued)

(i) Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

In particular, the following information is taken
into account when assessing whether credit risk
has increased significantly:

° an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the financial instrument’s
external (if available) or internal credit rating;

o significant deterioration in external market
indicators of credit risk, e.g. a significant
increase in the credit spread, the credit
default swap prices for the borrower or
debtor;

o existing or forecast adverse changes in
business, financial or economic conditions
that are expected to cause a significant
decrease in the borrower’s or debtor’s
ability to meet its debt obligations;

o an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the operating results of the
borrower or debtor;

o an actual or expected significant adverse
change in the regulatory, economic, or
technological environment of the borrower
or debtor that results in a significant
decrease in the borrower’s or debtor’s
ability to meet its debt obligations.
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3.2 Material accounting policy information
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets subject to
impairment assessment under HKFRS 9
(Continued)

(i)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

Irrespective of the outcome of the above
assessment, the Group presumes that the
credit risk has increased significantly since initial
recognition when contractual payments are
more than 30 days past due, unless the Group
has reasonable and supportable information that
demonstrates otherwise.

Despite the aforegoing, the Group assumes
that the credit risk on a debt instrument has not
increased significantly since initial recognition
if the debt instrument is determined to have
low credit risk at the reporting date. A debt
instrument is determined to have low credit risk
if (i) it has a low risk of default, (ii) the borrower
has a strong capacity to meet its contractual cash
flow obligations in the near term and (iii) adverse
changes in economic and business conditions
in the longer term may, but will not necessarily,
reduce the ability of the borrower to fulfil its
contractual cash flow obligations. The Group
considers the credit risk of the debt instrument
mainly with reference to external credit rating of
“investment grade” as per globally understood
definitions.
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3.2 Material accounting policy information
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets subject to
impairment assessment under HKFRS 9
(Continued)

(i)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness
of the criteria used to identify whether there
has been a significant increase in credit risk
and revises them as appropriate to ensure that
the criteria are capable of identifying significant
increase in credit risk before the amount becomes
past due.

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group
considers an event of default occurs when
information developed internally or obtained
from external sources indicates that the debtor is
unlikely to pay its creditors, including the Group,
in full (without taking into account any collaterals
held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers
that default has occurred when a financial asset
is more than 90 days past due unless the Group
has reasonable and supportable information to
demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion
is more appropriate.
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3.2 Material accounting policy information

(Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets subject to
impairment assessment under HKFRS 9

(Continued)

(iif)

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or
more events that have a detrimental impact on
the estimated future cash flows of that financial
asset have occurred. Evidence that a financial
asset is credit-impaired includes observable data
about the following events:

° significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
the borrower;

o a breach of contract, such as a default or
past due event;

° the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic
or contractual reasons relating to the
borrower’s financial difficulty, having
granted to the borrower a concession(s) that
the lender(s) would not otherwise consider;

o it is becoming probable that the borrower
will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation; or

o the disappearance of an active market for
that financial asset because of financial
difficulties.
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3.2 Material accounting policy information
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets subject to
impairment assessment under HKFRS 9
(Continued)

(iv)

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there
is information indicating that the counterparty is in
severe financial difficulty and there is no realistic
prospect of recovery, for example, when the
counterparty has been placed under liquidation
or has entered into bankruptcy proceedings.
Financial assets written off may still be subject
to enforcement activities under the Group's
recovery procedures, taking into account legal
advice where appropriate. A write-off constitutes
a derecognition event. Any subsequent recoveries
are recognised in profit or loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the
probability of default, loss given default (i.e. the
magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and
the exposure at default. The assessment of the
probability of default and loss given default is
based on historical data and forward-looking
information. Estimation of ECL reflects an
unbiased and probability-weighted amount that
is determined with the respective risks of default
occurring as the weights.
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3.2 Material accounting policy information
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets subject to
impairment assessment under HKFRS 9
(Continued)

(v)  Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)

Generally, the ECL is estimated as the difference
between all contractual cash flows that are due
to the Group in accordance with the contract
and all the cash flows that the Group expects
to receive, discounted at the effective interest
rate determined at initial recognition. For a lease
receivable, the cash flow used for determining
the ECL is consistent with the cash flows used
in measuring the lease receivable in accordance
with HKFRS 16.

For collective assessment, the Group takes into
consideration the following characteristics when
formulating the grouping:

° Past-due status;

o Nature, size and industry of debtors; and

° External credit ratings where available.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by
management to ensure the constituents of
each group continue to share similar credit risk
characteristics.
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3.2 Material accounting policy information
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets subject to
impairment assessment under HKFRS 9
(Continued)

(v)

Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)

Interest income is calculated based on the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset unless the
financial asset is credit-impaired, in which case
interest income is calculated based on amortised
cost of the financial asset.

Except for investments in debt instruments that
are measured at FVTOCI, the Group recognises
an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss for all
financial instruments by adjusting their carrying
amount, with the exception of loans receivable
and debt instruments at amortised cost where the
corresponding adjustment is recognised through
a loss allowance account. For investments in
debt instruments that are measured at FVTOCI,
the loss allowance is recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the
FVTOCI reserve without reducing the carrying
amount of these debt instruments. Such amount
represents the changes in the FVTOCI reserve in
relation to accumulated loss allowance.
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3.2 EERBERER @)

3.2 Material accounting policy information

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when
the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset
expire.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at
amortised cost, the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable is recognised in profit or loss.

On derecognition of an investment in a debt instrument
classified as at FVTOCI, the cumulative gain or loss
previously accumulated in the FVTOCI reserve is
reclassified to profit or loss.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either
financial liabilities or as equity instruments in accordance
with the substance of the contractual arrangements
and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity
instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences
a residual interest in the assets of the Group after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued
by the Company are recognised at the proceeds
received, net of direct issue costs.
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3.2 EERHBEER @)

3.2 Material accounting policy information

(Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
(Continued)

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities (including trade and other payables,
amount due to a non-controlling shareholder and
secured bank borrowings) are subsequently measured
at amortised cost, using the effective interest method.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and
only when, the Group’s obligations are discharged,
cancelled or have expired. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised
and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in
profit or loss.

Retirement benefits costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit
plans/state-managed retirement benefit schemes/the
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme are recognised as
an expense when employees have rendered services
entitling them to the contributions.

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be
paid as and when employees rendered the services.
All short-term employee benefits are recognised as an
expense unless another HKFRS requires or permits the
inclusion of the benefit in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to
employees after deducting any amount already paid.
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3.2 Material accounting policy information
(Continued)

Treasury shares

The consideration paid by the Group for purchasing
the Company’s shares from the market is presented
as "treasury shares” and the amount is deducted from
total equity.

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, the
directors of the Company are required to make judgments,
estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are
based on historical experience and other factors that are
considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if
the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current
and future periods.

Critical judgments in applying accounting
policies

The followings are the critical judgments, apart from those
involving estimations (see below), that the directors of the
Company have made in the process of applying the Group's
accounting policies and that have the most significant effect
on the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial
statements.
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Critical judgments in applying accounting
policies (Continued)

Deferred taxation on investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax arising from
investment properties that are measured using the fair value
model, the directors of the Company have reviewed the
Group's investment properties portfolios and concluded that
the Group's investment properties located in Hong Kong
and Singapore are not held under a business model, whose
objective is to consume substantially all of the economic
benefits embodied in the investment properties over time.
Therefore, in determining the deferred taxation on investment
properties located in Hong Kong and Singapore, the directors
of the Company have determined that presumption that
the carrying amounts of investment properties measured
using the fair value model are recovered through sale is not
rebutted.

For the Group’s investment properties located in the
PRC, during the year ended 31 March 2023, as initiated
by the municipal government, the Group entered into a
land resumption agreement with municipal government to
surrender these investment properties. Such investment
properties have been classified as assets classified as held
for sale as at 31 March 2023 and the presumption that the
carrying amounts of investment properties measured using
the fair value model are recovered through sales is not
rebutted. However, since it is a land resumption conducted
by municipal government, the transaction is not subject to
land appreciation tax.
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Critical judgments in applying accounting
policies (Continued)

Control over Eminence Enterprise Limited
(“Eminence”)

During the year ended 31 March 2024, Eminence is
considered as a subsidiary of the Group although the Group’s
shareholding of Eminence decreased from 51.60% at 1 April
2023 to 26.59% at 31 March 2024. The directors assessed
whether or not the Group has control over Eminence and
its subsidiaries (collectively “"Eminence Group”) based
on whether the Group has the practical ability to direct
the relevant activities of Eminence Group unilaterally. In
making their judgment, the directors considered the Group's
dominant voting interest relative to the size and dispersion
of holdings of the other vote holders, and any additional
facts and circumstances, including the participation rates of
shareholders and voting patterns in previous shareholders’
meetings and the convertible notes issued by Eminence
held by the Group which will give the Group an aggregated
shareholding of 52.57% upon full conversion, and concluded
that the Group did not lose control over Eminence Group
since 3 August 2023 (the date of completion of placing of
new shares by Eminence as mentioned in note 16 of which
the Group was not a subscriber which resulted in dilution
of the Group's shareholding in Eminence from 51.60% to
26.59%) despite its shareholding therein has become less
than 50%, Eminence Group qualified as a subsidiary of the
Group under HKFRS 10 for the year ended 31 March 2024.
Accordingly, the financial information of Eminence Group is
consolidated for the whole year ended 31 March 2024.

2023/244F ¥

For the year ended 31 March 2024 & 22024 #3/31H 1F F &

FE RS 5B 2 T B ()

HELTFREERAE(E L) H#Z
#

HE20UF3A3NBLFE BEAE
E 7 & e £ IR £ f2023F4H1H B
51.60% 8 4> £2024F 3 A31H#926.59% -
SRS EAEEN—FHEAR -
EFEAEERET e L REMBAR
(BLEBEDHEBIZESEDERAIEER
EEAERENEFATESLEEN
ERER - EER A B EF
ERIASEBEYEMKEEREAM
BNEEZHRERSBREMS - hH
M2 IR S R REINEE RIFN
BERERBEREREZ2HEER
BERA  UWRAEERFENHS L
BN RRER(EHERRERE G
AN & B B 48 45 I% bE ) 3 B152.57%)
REBEAEENSLEENFEKRED
B0% » 7 £ @ B 202348 A3H (Mf 3F16
Frafts L sE A BE E#TAR A B ER - ;AR
SEWIERBA BERAEE RS LM
# i% = F151.60% & 58 £26.59%) #8 W K
TAESILEBNZGE  MBESS
PR REEREN  mLEERER
2024F3ANBUEFEREIEALRTEE
WEBAE &R - Bt mLUEBEr8
BERNE E2024FE3A31R L2 EEAS
HARR -



2023/24 Annual Report

For the year ended 31 March 2024 & £2024%#3/31H 1t F &

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The followings are the key assumptions concerning the
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at
the end of the reporting period, that have a significant risk
of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets within the next financial year.

Fair value of investment properties

The Group's investment properties are measured at fair value
for financial reporting purposes. The Group has a designated
team to determine the appropriate valuation techniques and
key inputs for fair value measurements.

In estimating the fair value of the Group’s investment
properties, the Group uses market-observable data to the
extent they are available. Where Level 1 inputs are not
available, the Group engages independent firms of qualified
professional property valuers to perform valuation of the
Group’s investment properties. At the end of the reporting
period, the management works closely with the independent
firms of qualified professional property valuers to establish
and determine the appropriate valuation techniques and key
inputs for fair value measurements. \Where there is a material
change in the fair value of the assets, the causes of the
fluctuations will be reported to the directors of the Company.
Information about the valuation technigues and key inputs
used in determining the fair value of the Group'’s investment
properties is disclosed in note 15.

THREMFTZERRR

MTRBEBEARARZIEERE  UER
BRERRZHEM A EEMAZETER
R REHAFENREREREE
ZEEERT—EMBRFELRREEAX
HEZEBRER -

REWERZ LA FE
AEBZEREMERBBEREM = 2
RFETUNFE AEEEHEEEEE
B URAFEFEETEENHE
HEREZGANBE -

BAAEEREVENRAFER K
SEFERAER Mm%Tﬁﬂ%F
WY |ENVRBA ARBEREE T
ﬁ%ﬁ@%ﬁ%$%l2&é%%ﬁ
THRE REEHR BEEEEBY
EERMGLEMTEINAIE BEAF
EFfENEERETERIEBAR
B-HMEEATEZELEEAEY &
MARREERENDREA - BRAE
EAKEZRENMEAFEMBGEE
TEREEE ANBIENEMRME5
BE -



Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

Determination of net realisable value of properties
held for development for sale/properties held for
sale

Management regularly reviews the recoverability of
the Group’'s properties held for development for sale/
properties held for sale, which are situated in Hong Kong
and amounted to HK$5,668,549,000 at 31 March 2024
(2023: HK$5,499,666,000), with reference to current market
environment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount of the assets may exceed
its net realisable value. The estimates of net realisable value
of properties held for development for sale/properties held
for sale are determined based on estimated selling prices
less estimated costs to completion and the estimated
costs necessary to make the sale of these properties, if
applicable. The selling prices are estimated by reference to
the market prices of similar properties in prevailing market
environment with adjustments to reflect different locations
or conditions for those properties. The costs to completion
of the properties under development for sale are estimated
by reference to the development budget, actual development
cost of similar completed properties with adjustments based
on current market data. Actual realised amount may differ
from estimates, resulting in a decrease or an increase in the
net realisable value of the properties held for development
for sale/properties held for sale and additional write-down
or reversal of write-down previously recognised may be
required.

Revenue from continuing operations represents the
aggregate of the amounts received or receivable in respect
of rental income and building management from property
investment, interest income from loan financing and property
sales from property development during the year.
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Revenue from sales of properties was recognised at a
point in time when the completed residential property
was transferred to customers, being at the point that the
customer obtained the control of the completed residential
property and the Group had present right to payment and
collection of the consideration was probable. The Group
received deposits from customers pursuant to the payment
terms of the sale and purchase agreement. The transaction
price allocated to the remaining unsatisfied performance
obligations was HK$384,651,000 (2023: HK$128,516,000) as
at 31 March 2024 and the expected to recognised as revenue
within one year and over one year are HK$255,687,000
and HK$128,964,000 (2023: HK$128,516,000 and nil),
respectively.

For building management services, the Group bills a fixed
rate for services provided on a monthly basis and recognises
as revenue in the amount to which the Group has a right
to issue the invoice and that corresponds directly with the
value to the customers of Group’s performance completed.
The Group acts as principal and is primarily responsible for
providing the building management services to the property
owners, who simultaneously receives and consumes
the benefit provided by the Group's performance as the
Group performs, the Group recognises the fee received or
receivable from property owners as its revenue over time
and all related building management costs as its cost of
services. The Group elected to apply the practical expedient
by recognising revenue in the amount to which the Group
has right to invoice. As permitted under HKFRS 15, the
transaction price allocated to these unsatisfied contracts is
not disclosed.

Rental income and interest income from loan financing
fall outside the scope of HKFRS 15 and the revenue from
contracts with customers from continuing operations for the
year ended 31 March 2024 amounted to HK$56,162,000
(2023: HK$56,479,000).
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Information reported to the Group's chief executive officer,
being the chief operating decision maker (the “CODM"),
for the purposes of resources allocation and assessment of
segment performance focuses on types of goods delivered
or services provided. This is also the basis of organisation,
whereby the management has chosen to organise the Group
around differences in products and services.

The Group's operating and reportable segments under
HKFRS 8 “Operating Segments” are (i) property investment,
(i) property development, (iii) investment in securities and
others and (iv) loan financing.

Operation in the PRC, including the property investment,
investment in securities and others and loan financing was
classified as discontinued operation in the prior year. The
segment information reported does not include any amounts
for the discontinued operation, which are described in more
detail in note 11.
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(a) Segment revenue and results (a) DEPEXBERESE
The following is an analysis of the Group's revenue EERNBEDAEEREF
and results from continuing operations by reportable BIREEBNEEBREL
segment: DT
For the year ended 31 March 2024 Bl Z2024F3HF31H IL FE
Investment in
Property Property securities and Loan
investment  development others financing Consolidated
#ER
NERE NERR AR E EXRE g

HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS00  HKS00
FET FETL FETL FET TETL

(note)

()
SEGMENT REVENUE ARERHE
External sales HRHEE 4,082 169,971 - 13,061 27114
RESULTS ¥4
Segment results AREE (60,725) (189,578) (1,992) 151 (252,144)
Unallocated corporate income BARZDEMA 1841
Unallocated corporate expenses T NG [h (20,266)
Other expenses R (1175)
Share of results of joint ventures PEEERAEE 137
Finance costs BEMA (126,622)
Loss before taxation from continuing REHELLERN

operations BHAEE (392,223)
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(a) Segment revenue and results (Continued) (a) DEPEXBERESE®)
For the year ended 31 March 2023 Bl £2023F3H31H IEF &
Investment in
Property Property  securities and
investment  development others  Loan financing ~ Consolidated
#5R
NERE NELR Bt ENRE g

HKS000  HKSOOO - HKSOOO - HKSUOD  HKSO00
TAT FAT TAT FAT TAT

(note)
W)
SEGMENT REVENUE PHELE
External sales MREE 44,891 28,647 - 13,204 86,762
RESULTS %8
Segment results EES 190,515 10,552) (71,940) (12,302) 95,721
Unallocated corporate income SN AN N 4,034
Unallocated corporate expenses EARZDAREY (13,949)
Other expenses ARX (384)
Share of results of joint ventures PEREDAEE 109
Finance costs BERE (67673)
Profit before taxation from continuing ~ REREGLERMNBH
operations AR 17858
Note: Rental income generated from properties held for Mat: BELEERMEEE A
development for sale (included in property development WA (BREEYERRD I
segment) was included in property investment MEBRREMERESE
segment. A e
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(a)

(b)

Segment revenue and results (Continued) (a)

Segment results represent the profit earned or

loss incurred from continuing operations by each

segment without allocation of share of results of

joint ventures, finance costs, other expenses and

unallocated corporate income and expenses. There

are asymmetrical allocations to operating segments

because the Group allocates all fair value changes of

financial assets at FVTPL to segment of investment

in securities and others without allocating the certain

financial instruments to those segment assets. This is

the measure reported to the CODM for the purposes of

resource allocation and performance assessment.

Segment assets and liabilities (b)

The following is an analysis of the Group's assets and

liabilities by reportable segment:

Segment assets D EE E

Continuing operations iit B FE T

Property investment mMERE

Property development W) 3 2 R

Investment in securities and others & & & H % &

Loan financing EXaE

Total segment assets D EPE E B

Assets relating to discontinued *ﬁ_ BRIt EEBNEE

operation

Interests in joint ventures RN

Time deposits over three months :1. AU EZEBEFER

Cash and cash equivalents RENRESEFEEY

Unallocated financial assets at FVTPL 49 t 2 & A F{EEFA
BRzemEE

Unallocated corporate assets wmolkk s AEEE

Consolidated assets REEBEE

DEPERBEREER B

DHEERRSDERBFE
BRI Z RN EEZ
EiE BRSBTS EEER
ﬂz%%~@ﬁm$»ﬁMﬁ§
EOEZRAIWMA KX -
%%ﬁﬂZﬁﬁE$ﬁﬁﬁm
W hEAEKREEKIZ QT ES
ANEBRZEMEEZMBERYF
BEE2HHIEEZEFLFREMEE
PE W ABHE M T AD
REZEIHBEE - WIHIHE
BORERRRIHEAEREE
MEREEZRZATE o

N

l?'\\

SHEEREME

BIEER ERDBAIMALEERZ
BENRBENT:

2024 2023

20244 20234

HK$°000 HK$'000

FET FET

2,085,246 2,355,532

5,850,922 5,613,343

223,115 192,360

172,146 190,392

8,331,429 8,351,627

= 370,114

351 214

32,583 —

307,435 398,894

20,961 36,204

46,280 31,917

8,739,039 9,188,964



(b) Segment assets and liabilities (Continued)

Segment liabilities

Continuing operations

Property investment

Property development

Investment in securities and others
Loan financing

Total segment liabilities
Secured bank borrowings

Tax payable

Unallocated corporate liabilities

Consolidated liabilities

oHEE

e PRI
MERE

) % R
AR EMIRE
EXEE

»EPRERE
BHEMBITEE
JE& A T IR
BEoRzrRAB

HeBE

For the purposes of monitoring segment performances
and allocating resources between segments:

— all assets are allocated to operating and
reportable segments other than assets relating

to discontinued operation,

interests in joint

ventures, unallocated financial assets at FVTPL,
time deposits over three months, cash and cash

equivalents and other assets.

— all liabilities are allocated to operating and
reportable segments other than secured bank
borrowings, tax payable and other liabilities.
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(b) 2MEERERE®E)
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FETT FE T
27,497 258,300
334,942 317598
1,123 1,128
2,767 1,528
366,329 578,554
3,671,861 3,529,177
65,041 55,644
33,717 33,204
4,136,948 4,196,579
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(c) Other segment information (c) HitpHEHR

Amounts included in the measure of segment profit or EBREEsEENKEERKE
loss or segment assets from continuing operations: RELKEXEBNSHEENE

2T

For the year ended 31 March 2024 Bl Z2024F3HF31H IL FE

Investment
Property ~ Property in securities Loan
investment development  and others financing Unallocated Consolidated
25K
NERE  MERYR  HtRE  EREE AR ag
HKS'000  HKS000  HKS©00  HKSO00  HKSUOO  HKS000
FEr FEr FEn FEn FEr FEn

Amounts included in the measure of ~ EBEESDEEH N BE
segment assets or segment results. B EZEE:

Capital additions EREN - - 760 - 683 1443
Depreciation of property, plant and hE BERREINE

equipment 3314 3,086 12 - 328 6,740
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEEINE - = 521 = = 521
Loss on changes in fair value of RENE A TEEDER

investment properties 47333 - - - - 47333
Net loss on changes in fair value of ERTEHABR SR

financial assets at FVTPL EEZLATEEDEE

E - - 1,959 - - 1,959

Release on disposal of debt instruments  HEBBBEATEHAL

at FVT0C| tEENE BRI - - 2119 - - 2119
Reversal of impairment lossonloans BN EFUREBBEEAR

receivable, net - - - (2,675) - (2,675)
Reversal of impaiment lossondebt ~ ZATEFAZMB2ENS

instruments at FVTOCI LEBIEZ

AEFRED - - (1,775) - - (1,775)

Reversal of impairment losson debt K EHK A EZEBIE

instruments at amortised cost LREBEEE - - (1) - - (1)
Write-down on properties held for WRBELEERNEE

development for sale, net - 84,162 - - - 84,162
Write-down on properties held for sale ~ Hi i (F I £ % - 59,766 - - - 59,766
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(c) Other segment information (Continued) (c) HfvpHBER#)
For the year ended 31 March 2023 Bl £2023F3H31H IEF &
Investment
Property Property  in securities Loan
investment  development  and others financing ~ Unallocated ~ Consolidated
E5R

NERE  WERER  RHRE  EMER EOK L]
HKS000  HKSODD  KKSUOD  HKSOOO  HKSUOD  HKSOOO
FET  TET  TERL FET AT TET

Amounts included in the measure of ~ CEAENTEEGHBE
segment assets or segment results.  EHEV S E:

Capital additions EREN - 437 2,856 - 124 3417
Depreciation of property, plant and hE BRERREINE
equipment 3,382 3,202 13 - 372 6,969
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEE,ME - - 393 - - 393
Gain on changes in fair value of RENELATEEINS
investment properties (191,361) — — — — (191,361)
Net loss on changes in fair value of BATESABRZ2BE
financial assets at FVTPL ExATEEDEE
e - - 62,879 — - 62,879
Loss on revaluation of intangible assets  EFEE ¢ EfiEE - - 5847 - - 5,847
Impairment loss on intanghbleassets ~ EFEE ZBEEE - - 3207 - - 3207
Impairment loss on loans receivable, net  EWEH Z HEFEFE - - - 11,783 - 11,783
Impairment loss on debtinstrumentsat EATFEHALMZENS
FvTOC| LEBIAZABER - - 5378 - - 5,378
Reversal of impairment losson debt R EHK A EZEBIE
instruments at amortised cost LREBERE - - (19) - - 19)
Write-back on properties held for BEBERERRNEEE
development for sale, net - (11,832) - - — (11,832)
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(d)

(e)

Geographical information (d) #HEER

The Group's continuing operations are located in Hong
Kong (place of domicile) and Singapore.

The Group's revenue from external customers based on
location of its customers for segments and information
about its non-current assets (excluding those related
to discontinued operation and deferred tax assets and
financial instruments) by geographical locations of the
assets are detailed below:

AEBZHELEDUNES (E
JE ) B ¥ bR -

AEEZOBEPAEME D
MRAIREPZEXBRIRE
EZREMSINZERBEE
(TEREER EEEXEE LR
EREEER R TEARD
BE)EMIMT:

Revenue from external
customers Non-current assets

REIREFZERE FRBEE

2024
20244
HK$'000
FET
Hong Kong (place of BECGEFH)
domicile) 225,786
Singapore 303 1,328
227114
Information about major customers (e)

Revenue from customers of the corresponding years
contributing over 10% of the total revenue of the Group
from continuing operations is as follows:

Customer Al EPA
Customer B! EFB
Customer C? EEC?

1 Revenue from property development.

2 Revenue from property investment.

2023 2024 2023
20234 20244 20234
HK$'000  HK$000 HK$'000
FE T FET FET

84,060 2,188,394 2,255,686
2,702 73,843 137,041

86,762 2,262,237 2,392,727

ITEEFZER
RERFEERAEERE X
HBBI0OR A LMNEF 2 EER
s

2024 2023
20245 20234
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
43,296 —
= 20,257

= 1,755

' KEMEERZEEHE -

2 KEMEREZERR -
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For the year ended 31 March 2024 & £20244#3/31H 1 F &

Continuing operations BEEEER
Interest on bank borrowings RITHEEZFE
Interest on lease liabilities HEBBEBZAMEA

Less: Amount capitalised in the cost of & : R B EREEMANE AL

qualifying assets &

Borrowing costs capitalised during the year arose on a
specific borrowing with interest rate of 5.26% (2023: on a
specific borrowing with interest rate of 3.51%) per annum to
expenditure on qualifying assets.
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2024 2023
202445 2023%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#E T FET
194,621 144,815
16 22
194,637 144,837
(68,015) (77.164)
126,622 67673

FADEREWEERARTIR R E
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Continuing operations

(Loss) profit before taxation has been

arrived at after charging:

Directors’ emoluments (note 9 (a))

Other staff costs, including retirement

benefits scheme contributions

Total staff costs

Auditors’ remuneration
— audit services
— non-audit services
Cost of properties recognised as
expense
Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment
Depreciation of right-of-use assets
Net exchange loss

and after crediting:

Dividend income from investments
Government grants (note)
Interest income from
Debt instruments at amortised
cost
Debt instruments at FVTOCI

Banks and others
Written-off of other payable
Net exchange gain

SEEEXED

BB Al (B8 a M2 HEBRIAT
KIE

E=EME(#iE9 @)
HiBETHRA  BHREEKERN
at &I R

BT ABRE

% BAD BN &

— B &R

— BB
EERR/AI ZMERK

ME- BERZRBZITE

EREEECHE
PE B RIFER

REFFANRTEIE:

KEKE ZBREWA
RS 8 Bh (B 22 )
PSR PN =
REEXNTFEZES
TA
ERAFEFAEMEZE
s EBITEA
1T E Ay
I 88 H B A FOIR
B 5 Uy = 0% B8

HEWE BERERBH2 WS

Gain on disposal of property, plant and
equipment

Note: During the year ended 31 March 2023, the Group oz

recognised government grants of HK$1,256,000 in respect
of Covid-19-related subsidies, which were related to
Employment Support Scheme provided by the Hong Kong
Government.

2024 2023
20245 20234
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FE T
15,351 12,667
57,760 56,652
73,111 69,319
3,300 3,613
86 51
163,978 23,390
6,740 6,969
521 393
9,925 —
3,184 1,641
= 1,256
2,341 2,973
130 233
3,940 1,442
= 1,732

= 2,052

10 —

B Z=2023F3A31BILFE - AEME
T R % R 20197 AR 9 B 7% 18 B8 2 b
2 B4 T 74 B1,256,0000% 7T 0 Jh EE &
BB Z R EIFTEIBE -
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(a) Information regarding directors’ (a) EEAEEME2ER
emoluments
Details of emoluments to the directors of the Company H E2024F3A31H L FE AR T
for the year ended 31 March 2024 are as follows: EEMeFBERT:
Independent
Executive directors non-executive directors
#i7Es BUkufEs
Koon Ho Yan Jong Koon Tsui Chun Lau Chak
Lui Yuk Chu Candy Sang Kong Hang Total
EE3 ETR HRE BhiE# )3l a8

HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HK$ 000 HKS 000
FEr FEr FEr FEn FEr FEr

(notes i, if))
(& - if)
Fees EZHs - - 155 155 155 465
Other emoluments EMe
—salaries and other benefits ~ —H & R &t 12,269 2,599 - - - 14,868
— retirement benefits —RIEHE
scheme contributions 3 - 36 - - - 36

Total directors’ emoluments ~ EEH4 2% 12,269 2,635 155 155 155 15,369



2023/24 Annual Report

For the year ended 31 March 2024 & £2024%#3/31H 1t F &

(a)

Information regarding directors’ (a)
emoluments (Continued)
Details of emoluments to the directors of the Company
for the year ended 31 March 2023 are as follows:
Executive directors
nTE%
Tse Wing Koon Ho Yan
Chiu Ricky  Lui Yuk Chu Candy
kg EIE EAM
HKS000  HK$OOD  HK$000
fEr  TEr  TEx
fnote fii) notes ;. 1j)
(Wi Wz iy)
Fees X2 - - -
Other emoluments HeBe
—salaries and other benefits ~ —H & R E t R 1,500 8163 2410
—retirement benefits scheme  — RIVETIFFEIE R
contributions 18 75 36
Total directors’ emoluments EXMoLE 1518 8238 2,446

Notes:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Ms. Koon Ho Yan Candy is the President and Chief
Executive Officer of the Company. Her emoluments
disclosed above for the years ended 31 March 2024
and 2023 include those for services rendered by her as
the President and Chief Executive Officer.

The Company determined to provide certain residential
units and carparking spaces to Mr. Koon Chun Ting, a
son of Ms. Lui Yuk Chu and a director of subsidiaries
of the Company, and Ms. Koon Ho Yan Candy free of
rental and charges for as long as they are employed by
the Group. Aggregate rateable value of these properties
as set by the Hong Kong Rating and Valuation
Department was HK$2,998,000 (2023: HK$2,998,000).

Mr. Tse Wing Chiu, Ricky resigned from Vice President
and Executive Director of the Company with effect from
31 March 2023.

FHESME2ER )

H £2023F3A31H L FE AR A
EFBeFBOT:

Independent
non-executive directors
BUkHnES
JongKoon  TsuiChun  Lau Chak
Sang Kong Hang Total
iRE K2R HEE i
HKS000  HKSO00  HKSO00  HK$000
T FET T FET
185 165 155 465
— — — 12,073
- - - 129
155 155 155 12,667
it
(i) BAMMAZTAARARZERFE

(iii)

BETREH - HUEEZRZ
B & & & 5t % B £2024F &k
2023F3A3IA L FEEAE
FBREFETRAHFTIRERS
mESZHE -

RRABRERNEERLZ LR
TRARGBMBRAAEEE#E
EAEUARBEAMZTRMHZ
LEEEBMLEEM TRB
HYERAEEE2HARE
B-REEFEEMMELES
gk ZEWMEZEREMA
& /42,998,000 7T (20234 :
2,998,000/ 7T) ©

HoKBEEBIARABERE
FENITEF - B2023F3AH31
B#E £ o



(a)

(b)

Information regarding directors’
emoluments (Continued)

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above
were for their services in connection with the
management of the affairs of the Company and the
Group.

The independent non-executive directors’ emoluments
shown above were for their services as directors of the
Company.

Information regarding employees’
emoluments

The five highest paid individuals of the Group during
the year included two (2023: two) directors. The
emoluments of the remaining three (2023: three)
highest paid individuals, not being directors, are as
follows:

Salaries and other benefits
Retirement benefits scheme
contributions

e kHMBRERN
R ARAR F 5 8 5K
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For the year ended 31 March 2024 & 22024 #3/31H 1F F &

(a) FRESMEzER (@)

tRBBRZATEENES T E
REREBRARRANAEEER
EHIREMESOMS -

il BROR 2 8 3 FF 1T E F B
TETERBWFER/RARAESRL
REMESNEE -

(b) FRAEEME2EHR

AER AEBREESHFALT
BEMA2023F ME)ES -
B =%(023F : =Z&)WIE
EzEeFALTZMeOT

2024 2023
20245 20234
HK$'000 HK$'000
FAETT FE T
10,066 19,567
47 36
10,113 19,603
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(b) Information regarding employees’ (b) EEEEEMEZER (®)
emoluments (Continued)

The emoluments of these employees fall within the ZERBZMEN T T EE:
following bands:

Number of individuals

EEAY

2024 2023

2024 2023%F

HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 7T 22,000,000/ 7T = —

HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001% 7T £ 2,500,0007% 7T 1 2
HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000 3,500,001% 7T £4,000,0007% 7T 1 —
HK$4,000,001 to HK$4,500,000 4,000,001/% JT 24,500,000 T 1 —

HK$15,000,001 to HK$15,500,000 15,000,0017%8 7T £15,500,0007% 7T - 1

3 3
During both years, no emoluments were paid by the REEFE  AEBEE T
Group to the directors and the other three (2023: three) & TEENHEM=%(2023%F :
highest paid individuals, as an inducement to join or —HR)EaEFHeEZ AT EAEM
upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss in A Sk R I A K & & R 2 42 B) 3k
office. In addition, during both years, no director waived ERKEBIEZH/E - tId R
or agreed to waive any emoluments. MEAFE REEEWREXRAE

MEEAME -
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For the year ended 31 March 2024 & 22024 #3/31H 1F F &

2024 2023
2024 2023
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FE T
Continuing operations FEKEE
The tax charge (credit) comprises: HERY (R B8IE:
Current tax: 7N HAF I
Hong Kong s 1 76
PRC withholding tax on dividend PR R B TR 8,241 —
Other jurisdiction H R E 6 304
8,248 380
Over-provision in prior years: BEFEBERE:
Hong Kong s (2,003) (4,313)
Other jurisdiction H A AR (86) (27)
(2,089) (4,340)
Deferred tax IR FE R 18 15,832 (3,523)
21,991 (7483)

AMEFEZ2EBAEHEIIBREMGE
JERRE G F 216.5% 1 & o

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the
estimated assessable profit for both years.

HtelEgEES 2B IE TR ER A
EEEZBITHEGTE -

Taxation arising in other jurisdiction is calculated at the rates
prevailing in the relevant jurisdiction.
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For the year ended 31 March 2024 & £2024%#3/31H 1t F &

Taxation charge (credit) for the year can be reconciled to AEEHBERIME A BiZEER
the results from continuing operations per the consolidated Hih2MlmR 2 KRABEL “%fi
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income LEBZHEAT:
as follows:
2024 2023
20245 2023%F
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FET
(Loss) profit before taxation B # AT (B 18) )& 7 (392,223) 17,858

Tax (credit) charge of Hong Kong Profits 1% & 78 F| 13 &1 5% %£16.5%

Tax at 16.5% (2023: 16.5%) (20234 : 16.5%) 2 Fi 18
(HEE)FX (64,717) 2,947

Tax effect of expenses not deductible  TEHFHHE X 2 H B E

for tax purposes 31,881 18,588
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax % 7B =2 F U A 2 B 18 57 £

purposes (11,843) (39,907)
Tax effect of share of results of joint DIEEERREBEZHELE

ventures (23) (18)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised KR IBEE 2R B E 43,730 23,783
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses FRBTAERMIBEBEZ

previously not recognised HMEZE (163) (1,952)
Utilisation of deductible temporary FABE 5E R A EH 2 B

differences previously not recognised =% — (6,985)
Tax effect of deductible temporary RERAEN G EEH

differences not recognised BIER 16,985 14
Effect of different tax rates of REMEEEREE 2

subsidiaries operating in other BB A | A A B &

jurisdictions ZEE 122 408
Withholding tax paid on dividend AR B 2 B TR A0 B 8,241 —
Over-provision for prior years BEFEBERE (2,089) (4,340)
Others H (133) (21)

Taxation charge (credit) for the year REEMIBRZ(ER) 21,991 (7483)



Pursuant to a land resumption agreement signed on 5
October 2022 by the Group and the municipal government,
the lands and buildings in Huzhou would be resumed by
the municipal government. The investment properties
were reclassified as assets classified as held for sale as
at 31 March 2023 (see note 15). Other than the property
investment business, the management also abandoned
the investment in securities and others and loan financing
businesses in the PRC during the year ended 31 March 2023.
Accordingly, the operation in the PRC was considered to be a
discontinued operation.

As at 31 March 2023, an amount of RMB199,586,000
(equivalent to HK$226,802,000) has been received by
the Group as deposit received and remaining balance
of consideration RMB187,396,000 (equivalent to
HK$203,692,000) has been fully received as at year ended
31 March 2024. The legal title of the land was transferred to
municipal government on 7 February 2024.

2023/244F ¥

For the year ended 31 March 2024 & 22024 #3/31H 1F F &

1B & 7N 5 B B T O 7220221085
BETN I W EHaE BMMNmeL
H RAEF K BT BT E - KR20234F
AR MEREEEFEAD
HABELREZEE(RWH5) - Bk
MEREERIN BEEBIENEZR
2023F3A3MB L FEXRIENFRZ
BEMNEMEBEEARERBMEETR -
it - P EBEIE BE R IELEE
i!%o

2023938318 » AEEEWER AR
#199,586,000 T (18 & #226,802,000
BIIEAB WIE & H#H £202453
A3BIEFEEBHEKE G TRE
4 #% A R #187,396,000T (H8 & ©
203,692,000 L) - Z L EEF A
O N2024FE2 7R EBEH BT -
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The profit for the year from the discontinued operation is set
out below.

KECKRIERERH 2 AFE ENE
FIanE o

Revenue (note)
Rental income
Building management
Interest income from loan financing

Other income

Other expense, gains and losses

Administrative expenses

Gain on changes in fair value of
investment properties

Net gain (loss) on changes in fair value
of financial assets

Reversal of impairment loss on loan
receivable

Profit before taxation
Taxation charge

Profit for the year

2024 2023
20244 20234
HK$000 HK$'000
FETT FET
EER(M )
el A = 4,602
BFERE = 10,807
REBEFBEZF BKA = 503
= 15,912
iR N 2,518 1,472
HEz  WEkEBEE 41,616 (256)
THAX (1,358) (12,170)
BEMEZAFEZIH W
= 8,864
TREEZAFEZES IR
(E518) F 58 204 (5,392)
JE IR B ROR B B 18 B B
= 221
B B A & A 42,980 8,651
HIEMAX (37,325) (4,049)
I E i A 5,655 4,602

Note: Rental income and interest income from loan financing fall
outside the scope of HKFRS 15 and the revenue from building
management for the year ended 31 March 2023 amounted to
HK$10,807,000.

Het: MR ANRKEERBE ZFBEK
AN BB RS ELF155 2
&E - FHZE2023F3A31BIEFEK
B2 F &AL 3T A10,807,000
BT e
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For the year ended 31 March 2024 & 22024 #3/31H 1F F &

2024 2023
20245 20234
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FET
Profit for the year from discontinued RECKRIELEEBCARNFE
operation has been arrived at after AR GEA U T
charging (crediting): 1 :
Staff costs, including retirement BT RA - BIFRAKEFR KR
benefits costs 288 1,942
Auditors’ remuneration Z EEN B & 54 255
Depreciation of property, plant and ME BMEERZBEINE
equipment - 52
Gain on disposal of investment HEREYEZ W=
properties (66,611) —
Loss on write-off of property, plantand 5% %  WMENZRE 2 EiB
equipment 39 —
Net exchange gain PE W U 0F 58 - (256)
Bank and other interest income BT R E AR B A (2,518) (1,421)

During the year, the operation in the PRC contributed a net
cash outflow from operating activities of approximately
HK$43,100,000 (2023: HK$38,200,000) and a net
cash inflow from investing activities of approximately
HK$174,100,000 (2023: HK$253,000,000) to the Group.

No dividend were paid or proposed for the years ended 31
March 2024 and 2023, nor has any dividend been proposed
since the end of the reporting period.

R #743,100,000/8 LR B & TEE) 2 1]
% 7 F 58 (20234 : 38,200,000/ 7T)
T #9174,100,000% 7L 2K B 3% B E B 2
I8 4 im A JF 8 (20234F : 253,000,000
TT) °

R E £20244F N 2023%F3A31H IFFE
MERNSXEZRATAEE  BFR
LHREBTNEEZZRMEMES -
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EOEEIN TR SEEE V4 ER
2R AREE (B IR) BF TR
AT B a5

From continuing operations

The calculation of the basic and diluted (loss) earnings per
share from continuing operations attributable to owners of

the Company is based on the following data:

2024 2023
20244 2023%F
HK$000 HK$'000
FET T T
(Loss) profit for the year attributable NARHB AT E (EE)
to owners of the Company (from B (REFBEREKIE
continuing and discontinued R ETE)
operations) (253,235) 13,280
Less: Profit for the year attributable to ~ J&{ : "R &1 #E G A JE(R R B
owners of the Company from BRI TS
discontinued operation KF & F (1,504) (2,375)
(Loss) earnings for the purpose of MTEREBELSESEBETIR
basic (loss) earnings per share from EX(BER)BFME 2
continuing operations (E518) &BF) (254,739) 10,905
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary BEEELTERNTE:
shares:
Conversion of convertible notes H#ms LT BR
issued by Eminence g (52,170) —
(Loss) earnings for the purpose of MTEREBESESEBETIR
diluted (loss) earnings per share from  #5& (1) BN M =S 2
continuing operations (E8)ABF (306,909) 10,905

Number of shares

BHEE
2024 2023
20245 20234
Weighted average number of ordinary  FtefE TR E AL #E A F
shares less treasury shares for the M E 25 8RR E 17 iR (0
purpose of basic and diluted earnings 2 11 #E 15 &1
per share 72,414,449 73,988,403



From continuing and discontinued operations

The calculation of the basic and diluted (loss) earnings
per share from continuing and discontinued operations
attributable to owners of the Company is based on the
following data:

2023/244F ¥

For the year ended 31 March 2024 & 22024 #3/31H 1F F &

REFENRCRIEEERE
ARFBFEAAREREFBERCKL
REXBGZBREARBEFE(BR) A
MIIRAR AT BURFT &

(Loss) earnings for the purpose of basic T EEFBREREFMS 2

earnings per share (E548) & F
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary

shares:

Conversion of convertible notes Higds L ETH
issued by Eminence CIE:3 & 87

(Loss) earnings for the purpose of

diluted (loss) earnings per share 2 (B8 &
The denominators used are the same as those detailed
above for both basic and diluted earnings per share.

Basic earnings per share for the discontinued operation
is HK$0.02 per share (2023: HK$0.03 per share), based
on the profit for the year attributable to owners of the
Company from the discontinued operation of HK$1,504,000
(2023: HK$2,375,000). Diluted earnings per share for the
discontinued operation is HK$0.04 per share, based on the
profit for the year attributable to owners of the Company
from the discontinued operation of HK$2,960,000.
Denominators detailed above for both basic and diluted
earnings per share for the discontinued operation.

BEBREEBERNTE:

shat EE i #E (B 1E) BAm

2024 2023
20245 20234
HK$000 HK$'000
FE T FET
(253,235) 13,280
(50,714) —
(303,949) 13,280

RS BEEXFRARAEERE
AREERFZH BIER -

ERIEEEEBRZEIRELANAE
f%0.027% 7T (20234 : §/%0.0378 L)
TIRBEARRHEBEABMLRABE &I
K R N S & $11,504,00008 T
(20234 :2,375,000/8 7T) st & - B &
ISR 2 BIRECER T A5 020.04
BT TIREARBEA AEIGRE
BRI A8 TS N F E 4 72,960,000
B E - EXHRZHOFARE
ERIEELEBZEREARBER
F o
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From continuing and discontinued operations
(Continued)

For the year ended 31 March 2023, the computation of
diluted earnings per share did not assume the exercise
of the share options issued by the Company because the
exercise price of those options was higher than the average
market price for shares for the year. It also did not assume
the conversion of the convertible notes issued by Eminence
since their conversion would result in increase in earnings
per share.

For the year ended 31 March 2024, the computation of
diluted loss per share does not assume the exercise of share
options issued by the Company since their exercise would
result in decrease in loss per share.

REFARCRIEEERHE (@)

HZE202343A3MBILFE > ARER
BONTEESRZFENRMFEHM
B HEREEBINOFTEL RRE
AR BETHBERBEETE - HITE
BEABLEASLUETOTREREE -
AeEHEABEeESHTRAFEN -

HE2024F3A83B I FE - &K #
EEBECHETEBRRAAGETH
BREENTE ARAETESERS
R BB A -



COST

At 1 April 2022
Additions

Write-off

Exchange adjustments

At 31 March 2023
Additions
Write-off/disposal
Exchange adjustments

At 31 March 2024

ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION
At 1 April 2022

Provided for the year

Eliminated on written off
Exchange adjustments

At 31 March 2023

Provided for the year
Eliminated on write-off/disposal
Exchange adjustments

At 31 March 2024

CARRYING VALUES
At 31 March 2024

At 31 March 2023

~E AR QA

2023/244F ¥

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR wRME

For the year ended 31 March 2024 & £20244#3/31H 1 F &

A
7202264 R18
RE

Wi

EHAR

12023F3A31H
NE
/e
EHAE

120244 3[31H

2EME
#2022 4R18
KEERE
WiR R
EHAR

72023F3A31H
AEERE

H3E /M E B i
ERAE

12024%3[31H

REE
2024537315

#2023F3A31H

Leasehold
properties

Rams
HK$000
FET

214132

214132

14,043
5,882

19,925
5,882

25,807

188,326

194,207

183

Leasehold
improvements,
furniture,
fixtures and
equipment
HAXRR -
B #E
k&
HK$ 000
FET

12,803
142
(821)
(27)

12,097
46
(33)

2)

12,108

11,021
589
(821)
(22)

10,767
390
(32)

(2)

985

1,330

Motor
vehicles

nE
HK$ 000
TEL

5,614

436

(57)

5,993
1,397
(1,372)

(41)

5,977

4,251
550

(54)

4,747
468
(1,334)
(39)

3,842

Total

e
HK$ 000
TET

232,549
578
(821)
(84)

232,222
1,443
(1,405)
(43)

232,217

29,315
7021

(821)

(76)

35,439
6,740
(1,366)
(41)

40,772

191,445

196,783
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The above items of property, plant and equipment are
depreciated on a straight-line basis after taking into account
the residual value over the following useful lives:

Over the duration of the leases
or fifty years, whichever is
the shorter

3 to 10 years

Leasehold properties

Leasehold improvements,
furniture, fixtures and
equipment

Motor vehicles 3 tobyears

The Group leases out various residential, commercial and
industrial units under operating leases with rentals payable
monthly, quarterly or semi-annually. The leases typically run
for an initial period of 1 to 3 years (2023: 1 to 3 years), with
unilateral rights to extend the lease beyond initial period
held by lessees only. Majority of the lease contracts contain
market review clauses in the event the lessee exercises the
option to extend.

FTRZREYE BELERE EED

WTZAEAFHZRBREESNE

BIEAFTENE:

M REOZFHK
A+ UK
REE

MHME - &M 3=10%F
HEREEB

E 3E54

AEBREKLASEHALSEEE -
BENMIEEMN YHREA BFE
SEBFFURR—AESES B2
TR B123F (2023F 1 123
F) RERABEABEEFTERGHE
HEmEEHEOTEH KZ2HHAES
WHBEMSERGER - AEAEA
AEERBEHZER -
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For the year ended 31 March 2024 & 22024 #3/31H 1F F &

The Group is not exposed to foreign currency risk as a result
of the lease arrangements, as all leases are denominated in
the respective functional currencies of group entities. The
lease contracts do not contain residual value guarantee and/
or lessee’s option to purchase the property at the end of

lease term.

FAIR VALUE

At 1 April 2022

Disposal

Reclassification from properties
held for sale

Increase in fair value recognised in
profit or loss

Exchange adjustments

At 31 March 2023

Disposal

Decrease in fair value recognised in
profit or loss

Exchange adjustments

At 31 March 2024

NEE

H2022F481H

e
ENOEERFIELEME

RIBREBERZ AT EEM

b
O]

E 5

2023 3A31H

H &
REFER 2R FERD
PE 5 &

A20244%3A31H

HAMEHROBAEEEREAZY
EERE HAKETERENT
MmN SRR  HEANLEER
ERHREBEEERR HABEAERLY
HimErBEmME 2R -

Completed
investment
properties
EHRIKREYWE
HK$'000

T T

2,423,573
(68,150)
36,887

200,225
(27,:880)

2,564,655
(428,079)

(47333)
(19,470)

2,069,773
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Analysed as:

At 31 March 2024 R2024F3A31H
Non-current assets EREE E

At 31 March 2023 72023438318
Assets classified as held for sale DEABELEEE
Non-current assets EREBEE

The fair values of the Group’s investment properties as at 31
March 2024 and 31 March 2023 have been arrived at on the
basis of valuation carried out on the respective dates by the
following independent firms of qualified professional property
valuers not connected with the Group:

Location of investment
Name of valuers properties

Colliers International Hong Kong
(Hong Kong) Limited
Knight Frank Petty Limited Hong Kong

Vigers Appraisal and Hong Kong and the PRC
Consulting Limited
Edmund Tie & Company Singapore

(SEA) Pte Ltd

The unrealised loss relating to investment properties held
at the end of the reporting period of HK$56,069,000 (2023:
unrealised gain of HK$192,671,000) was recognised in profit
or loss during the year ended 31 March 2024.

All investment properties of the Group are under the Level
3 fair value hierarchy. There were no transfers into or out of
Level 3 during the year.

DR

HK$'000
FET

2,069,773

370,114
2,194,541

2,564,655

RE B EYZENR2024F3A31H K&
2023F3A3MH 2 A FBETyIZ AT &
AREEBLEHEZEVAEREEY
E¥HEMRZSHERETHEZEE
ET:

B AT & 18 RE Y3 B

=B ERR FE
(BB)ARRDF

LR 2 RN AT B
BRAF]

Jak & H & 2 AT 1k BB RFE
JEE 5 A8 PR 1 A

Edmund Tie & ¥ hn
Company (SEA)
Pte Ltd

HE202443A3MHILFE - RIEHRK
BB 2B Y R % 3 E51856,069,000
78 7T (20234F « K 30 40 25192,671,000/7%8
LB RIBEER o

AEEMEREDEREIRAFES
BT - NREEEIRAFESFAMEL
AEAREL -
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For the year ended 31 March 2024 & 22024 #3/31H 1F F &

The following table gives information about how the fair TRINRNAEEREME 2 AFE
values of the investment properties are determined (in ZER(LER FIER2HERE
particular, the valuation techniques and key inputs used), FEEHA) UEREAFEEFE
as well as the fair value hierarchy into which the fair value M AZIEBEREEE SN AFESE
measurements are categorised (Levels 1 to 3) based on the B(BENVEEIF) °
degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements is
observable.
Investment properties Fair value Valuation techniques
held by the Group Fair value at 31 March hierarchy and key inputs Significant unobservable inputs Sensitivity
AEEREIRENE NTERIANA LYEER REFEREERA  EXTUBEHA §BE

2024 2023

20245 2003%
HKSO00  HKS 000

FET AT
Classified as
non-current assets
PERAFRBEE
Commercial units in 782,300 92500 Level3 Income approach Term yield, taking into account of yield ~ The higher the term yield,
Hong Kong (note (i)} — term yield generated by market average selling the lower the fair value
price and the market average rental
from comparable properties and
adjustment to reflect the conditions
of the building, which is 3.1% (2023;
2.7%)
BEBEEL (With) 234 O EHhE ZEALENEHET  TRRERS ATER
—EBE VERRTRTHREEE LU R iy

REBEENERZEE  B31%
(2023%:2.7%)

—reversionary yield Reversionary yield, taking into account ~ The higher the reversionary
of yield generated by market average yield, the lower the fair
selling price and the market average value

rental from comparable properties
and adjustment to reflect the risk
associated with the future rental,
which is 3.1% (2023: 2.7%)
—E5ha BHNE ZEALENE ST RENERR ATER
EERMETHAS CNAERRS &
AREEERZEE  £31% (2023
E:27%)
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For the year ended 31 March 2024 & £20244%3/31H I &

Investment properties Fair value Valuation techniques
held by the Group Fair value at 31 March  hierarchy and key inputs Significant unobservable inputs
AEERELRENR AFER3ANA LYEER HERERIEHA  EXTUHEHA

2024 2023

20245 2023%
HKSO00  HKS 000

FEL AT
—monthly term rental Monthly term rental for each unit is
derived from the average of the
rental as stated in the existing rental
agreements, which is ranged from
HK$30 to HKS115 per square oot
(2023: from HK$28 to HK$105 per
square foot)
—GREHE: SEEMNGARHASNBERARY
Bl THRERE  §TARN
FETENSET (0235 §TH
Ré:28% T Z105%7T)
— reversionary market unit - Market monthly rental rate, which is from
rate HK$26 to HK$130 per square foot
(2023: from HK$24 1o HK$118 per
square foot)
—BETRENER  TAEBARS BYARNT6%RE
13087 (20235 : § ¥ FR A4
TEV8ETT)
Commercial units in 373,000 1103200 Level3 Direct comparison Price per square foot, using market direct
Hong Kong (note (i)} method — based on comparables and taking into account of
market observable character, location and other individual
transactions of similar factors such as road frontage, size of
properties and adjusted  property, etc., which is ranged from
to reflect the locations HK$26,447 to HK$381,714 (2023:
and conditions of the HK$30,303 to HK$381,714) per square
subject property foot
ERHEEN () 234 ERLBE—EARAE SYARER RATREZULEN

NEZTHEUTERR AR UZENERE LENMR

SREAZIRRE  HEEREz pEGER 0E

BNEERER  ANE BEARN 264475 T
2381 7145 7 (2023% : 130,303
TR TUET)

188

Sensitivity

HEE

The higher the monthly
term rental rate, the
higher the fair value

The higher the reversionary
market unit rate, the
higher the fair value

BETBELRNLE
LFERR

The higher the price per
square foot, the higher
the fair value

FAT
—=

sy
ot o
huiig
m
fe
alop
>
-
T



XEBREEABRAT

2023/244F ¥

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR wRME

For the year ended 31 March 2024 & £20244#3/31H 1 F &

Investment properties
held by the Group Fair value at 31 March
AEAREIRENE ATERIANA
2024 2023
20245 2023%
HKS 000 HK$ 000
&7 FET
Commercial unit in 2,530 2,700
Hong Kong
(car parking space)
EEBEEM(BN)
Industrial units in 73,500 76,400
Hong Kong
BAIEEN
Industrial-office units in 623,800 634,400
Hong Kong
EATXHATEN

Fair value
hierarchy
AYEER

Level 3

¥

Level 3

FHF

Level 3

FHF

Valuation techniques
and key inputs
HEFERIEHA

Direct comparison
method — based on
market observable
transactions of similar
properties and adjusted
toreflect the locations
and conditions of the
subject properties

ERNEE—ERRE
NELTRIBER
SREBRURBE
BN iERER

Direct comparison
method — based on
market observable
transactions of similar
properties and adjusted
toreflect the locations
and conditions of the
subject properties

ERNEE—ERRE
NELTRIBER
SREBLURBE
BNg ERER

Income approach —
term yield

LN L6

189

Significant unobservable inputs

EXTTBERA

Price per car park, using market direct
comparables and taking into account
of location, age and other individual
factors, which is HK$2,530,000 (2023:
HK$2,700,000)

SEEMER FATSERALEN
B UZEMENE  BRUR
R R% - B4 EE2,530,000
7 70(20235 2,700,000 70)

Price per square foot, using market direct
comparables and taking into account of
character, location and other individual
factors such as size of property, etc,
which is ranged from HK$4,287 to
HK$5,296 per square foot (2023 from
HK$4,457 to HKS5,508 per square
foot].

BYHREE RRTBEZTLRE
B UZEMERE LENR
ApBRRZ p0E NS §
FARNT4,287% L 25,296% T
(2035 : GYARNF4 457 L2
55087 TT)

Term yield, taking into account of yield
generated by market average selling
price and the market average rental
from comparable properties and
adjustment to reflect the conditions
of the building, which is ranged from
2.5% 10 3.4% (2023: from 2.5% to
2.6%)

EHlE ZEALENE CHHTY
EERTATHRSEE ZMRR
RBRENERIAE NT25%
£34% (20235 : 25%Z2.6%)

Sensitivity
HRE

The higher the price per
car parking space, the
higher the fair value

)
=
et
ey =

EF
o} ke
STEl
e
o}
>
—=

The higher the price per
square foot, the higher
the fair value

The higher the term yield,
the lower the fair value

EANERR ATER
f
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e P BmRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2024 & £20244%3/31H I &

Investment properties Fair value
held by the Group Fair value at 31 March  hierarchy
AEERELRENR AFER3ANA LYEER
2024 2023
20045 20035
HK$ 000 HK$ 000
FEL AT

Valuation techniques
and key inputs
HERERIERA

— reversionary yield

—monthly term rental

—-BARHES

— reversionary market unit
rate

—BETSENER

190

Significant unobservable inputs

EXATTBERA

Reversionary yield, taking into account
of yield generated by market average
selling price and the market average
rental from comparable properties
and adjustment to reflect the risk
associated with the future rental,
which is 2.6% to 3.5% (2023: 2.6%)

EBNE ZEALENE CTHTY
EERTA TR CHERRY
ARBLERBE - B26%235%
(20235 : 2.6%)

Monthly term rental for each unit is
derived from the average of the
rental as stated in the existing rental
agreements, which is ranged from
HK$19.9 to HK$23.1 (2023: HK$18.3
to HK$25.06) per square foot

SEEMEARAASIRERARY
FilcTHRe L §EARN
T19.98 T 22313 (20235 183
BLEB065T)

Reversionary market unit rate for each
unit is compared with direct market
comparables and taking into account
of character, location and other
individual factor, which is ranged from
HK$17 to HK$7102 (2023: from HK$18
to HK$7200) per square foot

BB 7 ERTEELER  BH5E
BALBHERELR 1ZEN
iR RENREMERNRE
FYARNFTEREI02E T
(20235 : 18% T £7.200% TT)

Sensitivity

HEE

The higher the reversionary
yield, the lower the fair
value

BENERE ATE
&

fen

The higher the monthly
term rental rate, the
higher the fair value

The higher the reversionary
market unit rate, the
higher the fair value

BB TEELEROE.
LFERE



Investment properties
held by the Group
AEEREZRENR

Residential units in
Hong Kong

BREEEN

Residential units in
Singapore

Land with attached
structure in
Hong Kong

BEMERELY

KEBREBEFRA

N H

2023/244F ¥

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR wRME

For the year ended 31 March 2024 & £20244#3/31H 1 F &

Fair value at 31 March
ATER3ANA

2024 2023
20245 2023%
HKS000  HKS000
FET FET
101,800 108,300
73,843 137041
(ot fij)
Wit
39,000 40,000

Fair value
hierarchy
AYEER

Level 3

FHF
@
=5

Level 3

Level 3

¥
@
=5

Valuation techniques
and key inputs
HEFERIEHA

Direct comparison
method — based on
market observable
transactions of similar
properties and adjusted
to reflect the locations
and conditions of the
subject property

ERNBE—ERAE
NELTRIBER
SREBLURBE
BNE ERER

Direct comparison
method — based on
market observable
transactions of similar
properties and adjusted
to reflect the locations
and conditions of the
subject property

ERNBE—ERAS
NELTRIBER
FREFLHRBE
BOEERER

Direct comparison
method — based on
market observable
transactions of similar
properties and adjusted
to reflect the locations
and conditions of the
subject property

ERLBE—ERAE
MELMBABER
FREBRURBE
ENg ERER

191

Significant unobservable inputs

EXTTBERA

Price per square foot, using market direct
comparables and taking into account
of character, location, age and other
individual factors, which is ranged
from HK$8,370 to HK$41,335 (2023:
HK$9,014 to HK$40,200) per square
foot

SYRRER RBMEERTLEN
BROUEENERHE NE B
RUREMENEER  §EARA
98,3707 7T 241,335/ 7T (2023% :
90143 L 2402005 7T)

Price per square foot, using market direct
comparables and taking into account of
character, location and other individual
factors such as road frontage, size
of property, etc., which is ranged
from HK$25,591 to HK$27218 (2023;
HK$21,971 to HK$25,429) per square
foot

FTHREE RRMBEZTLRE
BH O UZEMERE  LENR
EpfEARZ  mEEER 0%
KE GIARNFB591ETE
NV8ETL(005:2191ETE
BA9ET)

Price per square foot, using market
direct comparables and taking into
account of character, location, age
and other individual factors, which is
ranged from HK$1,349 to HK$1,600
per square foot (2023: HK$1,349 to
HK$1,600) per square foot

BYARER FAMHEZTLRM
EH UEZEMERE NE-B
BUREMENEER  §EARA
71,3498 7 21,6007 70 (20235 :
13498 T 216005 )

Sensitivity
HRE

The higher the price per
square foot, the higher
the fair value

The higher the price per
square foot, the higher
the fair value

The higher the price per
square foot, the higher
the fair value

8YIREERR AVH
%

A
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Investment properties Fair value Valuation techniques
held by the Group Fair value at 31 March  hierarchy and key inputs
AREREZRENE ATERIANA LYEER HERERIERA
2024 2023
2045 2003%
HK$ 000 HK$000
AT FET
Classified as
held-for-sale
PREARELE
Industrial units in the PRC - 370,114 Level3 Depreciated replacement
fnote (i)
HETEEN (W) 238
2,069,773 2,564,655
Notes:

(i)

(ii)

During the year, the valuation techniques used for determining
the fair value of certain commercial units amounting to
HK$693,000,000 as at 31 March 2024 was changed from
direct comparison method to income approach as the
management considers that there were limited market
comparable for similar properties in current year that were
appropriate to assess the fair value of these commercial units.

On 31 March 2023, the management of the Group offered
an option to an independent third party (the “Purchaser”) to
purchase an investment property located in Singapore with the
fair value of Singapore dollars (“SGD") 11,500,000 (equivalent
to HK$67,494,000), the offer has not been mutually agreed
by the Purchaser before 31 March 2023. On 14 April 2023,
the Purchaser signed the option to purchase agreement and
exercised the option granted by the Group and agreed to
purchase the investment property at a total consideration of
SGD13,009,000 (equivalent to HK$75,323,000). The disposal
was completed in July 2023. For details, please refer to the
Company's announcement dated 14 April 2023.

(ii)

Significant unobservable inputs Sensitivity
EXRTRERA §eE
Replacement cost per square metre, The higher the
which is ranged from RMB1,800 to replacement cost per
RMB,850 per square metre square metre, the
Depreciation rate, which is ranged higher the fair value
from 3.6% t0 14.1% The higher the
depreciation rate, the
lower the fair value
SYRREEMS NFARBIS0 BYAKEERKER:
TZARH18507 ATERR
HEE N TF36%5/141% fExag AVE
g
Bt 77 -

RAFE  BEATREEMNR2024
F3H31H ) A F E £693,000,0007%5
TR AMEE AR E B &
BEAWRAEK DHREEERA
AEFEEEREAYDENBERMSH
EBRHEHBETEZERNEEN
B R F(E o

M2023F3A31R8 AEBEEE [
—Z2BUE=FTERNETHEBEN
A FT 03 89 — 18 2 - & A11,500,000
Foonsk n (T % cGE & R 4
67,494,000/ JT) /) 1% & W) % 1Y iE 12
7 R2023F3A31H A B HE K
MZBLEKRAEERE - N2023F4
Al4H - BEFE&BREHERRET
TEAEEETREER  RREEN
4 X 213,009,000 i1 % T (30 & »
75,323,000/8 T0) BER EWE - %
EEBEEN2023F7ATEM > F1573
28 K2R B H A2023F48148 K
NG



Notes: (Continued)

(i) The assets classified as held for sale as at 31 March 2023
represented lands and buildings in Huzhou to be resumed
by the municipal government at a total consideration
RMB386,982,000 (equivalent to HK$439,752,000) pursuant
to a land resumption agreement signed on 5 October 2022.
As at 31 March 2023, an amount of RMB199,586,000
(equivalent to HK$226,802,000) was received by the Group
as deposit received. EIT of RMB22,373,000 (equivalent to
HK$25,424,000) was prepaid by the Group. The transaction
was expected to be completed within twelve months from the
date of classification, accordingly, the investment properties
were reclassified to assets classified as held for sale as at 31
March 2023.

In estimating the fair value of the investment properties, the
highest and best use of the properties is their current use.

As at 31 March 2024, except for the industrial properties
in the PRC amounted to nil (2023: HK$370,114,000), the
land with attached structure in Hong Kong amounted to
HK$39,000,000 (2023: HK$40,000,000) and a commercial
unit in Hong Kong (car parking space) amounted to
HK$2,530,000 (2023: HK$2,700,000), all of the Group's
investment properties have been pledged to secure banking
facilities granted to the Group.

Acquisition of additional interest in a
subsidiary

During the year ended 31 March 2023, Goodco Development
Limited (“Goodco"”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company and the holder of the convertible notes issued
by Eminence in 2017 and 2019, converted the convertible
notes with a total principal amount of HK$97,280,000 into
400,786,666 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each, resulting in
an acquisition of additional interest in Eminence held by the
Group and an amount of HK$281,959,000, after re-attribution
of translative reserve of HK$1,018,000, was credited to
accumulated profits.

2023/244F ¥

For the year ended 31 March 2024 & 22024 #3/31H 1F F &

Wit (%)

(i) M2023F3A3NHM N EABIELE
2B EERB AT ERFRER2022F
107858 % 5T B9 & b Ug 8 1 32 A 42
{8 A R #386,982,0007C (18 & »
439,752,000 7o) U [B &9 58 M T &Y
+ 3 & F - R2023%F3H31H » &K
£EE UWE A R#199,586,0007T (18
& $2226,802,0007 JT) £ A B W 1%
L AKEBENGEMEHR AR
#22,373,0007C (8 & #325,424,000
BIL) e ZRXSGTEHER S EEEE
frTZ@ARSTER - At 72023
F3A3A  REMECEFDEA
PEABIENEZEE -

NEERANEZATEE  DE
BA KRB ARG E R
AR

202463 A318 B T 7 7T (20234 ¢
370,114,000/ 7o) 2 # B T ¥ ¥ % -
39,000,000 7T (20234 : 40,000,000
T0) 2B VS W B 2 2 4 #h 22,530,000
7T (20234 : 2,700,00058 7T) 2 E B 2
B(EM)IN NEBRERENME
EHAUMBETFAEEZRITRE -

WA - EATNEIMER

P E E2023FE3A3MB I EE AR
ANEENBRARIERERBRAT
(ME =) E e 1l 720174 KX20194
THABRBREEREZEBEA A48
¥4 /97,280,000 T B9 7] #2 A% 2= i 62
#1 /400,786,666 /% &F % E 1£0.01%8 7T
MET@EE BRKNBASEEMESS
LB R EENGBE L FHE
1,018,000/ L% » 281,959,000/ L E
ATAREE A o
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For the year ended 31 March 2024 & £2024%#3/31H 1t F &

Deemed disposal of partial interest in a
subsidiary

During the year ended 31 March 2023, Eminence allotted
a total of 793,680,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each
to certain placees, such placing of shares resulted in a
deemed disposal of partial interest held by the Group. The
difference between the proceeds from placing of shares of
HK$59,180,000 and the attributable non-controlling interest
of HK$1,050,632,000 and re-attribution of translative reserve
of HK$4,351,000, which amounted to HK$995,803,000, was
charged to accumulated profits.

During the year ended 31 March 2024, Eminence further
allotted a total of 50,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01
each to certain placees, such placing of shares resulted in a
deemed disposal of partial interest held by the Group. The
difference between the proceeds from placing of shares of
HK$24,750,000 and the attributable non-controlling interest
of HK$779,966,000 and re-attribution of translative reserve
of HK$2,102,000, which amounted to HK$757,318,000, was
charged to accumulated profits.

RAFHER BN BARZE 0
i

RE E2023FE3A3NBILEE » &M
&= T &AL A B2 % 4 793,680,000
SREECBILHERR  ZER
MR EERRIELNEARAEBEBMFS
D@ o KE A SR #959,180,000
78 TC B FT 15 3K TE B FE A5 3E 1 IR =
#91,050,632,0007 JT & B ¥ 57 B [E
N #B4,351,0008 T2 MM ESE A
995,803,000/ T B 8 25 & # 0
|§§—_\\ °

RE Z2024F3A3NBIEFE > & 1U@E
A T ABL A — 2 e 8 5 $£50,000,000
BEHBREmECOVE THERE 2%
RO ESBGEIELERNEB M
ooz o 2k B B S IR 19 #924,750,000
PETCHYFTS ROE L R (L FE IR AR i Y
779,966,000 ;T X E¥ & B IE K E
2,102,000/ 7T 2 [E B9 %= %8 /757,318,000
B EBRFDRAE -
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For the year ended 31 March 2024 & 22024 #3/31H 1F F &

2024 2023
20244 20234
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FE T
Listed investments, at fair value: EHRE B AFE:
— Equity securities listed in Hong —REBREIINETZBRA
Kong and overseas (note (i) BE (KAL) 148,161 126,726
Unlisted investments, at fair value: EEMRE EHAFE:
— Unlisted securities (note (i) — I ETEE A A2 ) 6,264 6,264
— Investment in limited partnership — R BEBRE R (K i)
(note (iii)) 42,732 28,230
— Life insurance policies (note (iv)) — ANERE (M iZv) - 14,436
— Film right investment (note (v)) — BEMIERE (Wi W) 14,697 15,504
211,854 191,160
2024 2023
20244 20234
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FE T
Analysed as: RV
— Current assets — mEEE 205,590 142,230
— Non-current assets —ERBEE 6,264 48,930

211,854 191,160
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For the year ended 31 March 2024 & £2024%#3/31H 1t F &

The Group's financial assets at FVTPL that are denominated
in currencies other than the functional currencies of the
relevant group entities are set out below:

United States dollars (“US$") =)
RMB AR
Notes:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

The fair values of the listed equity securities were determined
based on the quoted market bid prices available on the Stock
Exchange or an overseas recognised stock exchange.

In March 2023, the Group invested a minority stake of an
unlisted investment holding company which holds an entity
with subsidiaries engaged in beverage business in the PRC at
a consideration of US$800,000 (equivalent to HK$6,264,000)
(2023: US$800,000 (equivalent to HK$6,264,000)).

The amount at 31 March 2024 represented HK$42,732,000
(2023: HK$28,230,000) for interest in a limited partnership (the
“Limited Partnership”) as a limited partner.

The interest in the Limited Partnership is recognised as
follows:

AEEBNHBEEEERDEEE AN
ERFEZRATEFABREZZEZH

BEHNWOT
2024 2023
20245 20234
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FE T
52,589 55,428
14,697 15,504

B A -

(i)

(i)

IR AZES 2 XA FEDRERR
s BIRABEFERDHIR 2T
BHEETE -

2023437 - A& B LA {E800,000
= Jt (#8 % 76,264,000/8 7T) (2023
£ : 800,000% JT (48 %5 746,264,000/
7)) WE—MIELMBEERA A
WAOHKRE  RAREE RES
RAEBREREENRNBRAMN

B

i3

o

N2024%3A31H - BRAE ([BR
AERIVIEABEREAEEAZEZA
42,732,0007 7T (20234 : 28,230,000
BIL) o

BEREBZEABRNT

HK$'000

FET

At 1 April 2022 R2022F 4818 27087
Fair value gain recognised in profit or loss REZBRAZAFEK S 971
Exchange adjustments 5 172
At 31 March 2023 #2023 3A31H 28,230
Addition NE 15,178
Fair value loss recognised in profit or loss REBEZERAZAFEERE (712)
Exchange adjustments P 5, 3 28 36
At 31 March 2024 20244%3HA31H 42,732



Notes: (Continued)

(iv)

In prior years, each of Goldchamp International Limited
("Goldchamp”), a subsidiary of the Company, and Eminence
entered into life insurance policies with insurance companies
to insure Ms. Lui Yuk Chu, a director of the Company, and Mr.
Koon Wing Yee, former general manager of the Company.
Under the policies, Goldchamp and Eminence were the
beneficiaries and policy holders and the total insured sum is
US$2,000,000 (equivalent to HK$15,480,000). Goldchamp
and Eminence were required to pay upfront deposits of
US$2,000,000 (equivalent to HK$15,480,000) including a
premium charge at inception of the policies amounting to
US$400,000 (equivalent to HK$3,096,000). Goldchamp and
Eminence could terminate the policies at any time and receive
cash back based on the cash value of the policies at the date
of withdrawal, which was determined by the upfront payment
of US$2,000,000 plus accumulated interest earned and minus
the accumulated insurance charge and policy expense charge.
Goldchamp's insurance policies were pledged to secure
banking facilities granted to Goldchamp.

During the year ended 31 March 2024, Goldchamp and
Eminence terminated the life insurance policies and received
cash of US$1,847,000 (equivalent to HK$14,465,000).

In prior years, the Group entered into an agreement with
a film production house for a total investment cost of
RMB13,600,000 (equivalent to HK$15,504,000). The film
right investment represented the 20% interest of film
production which entitled the Group to predetermined
percentage of income to be generated from the film based
on the Group's investment portion as specified in respective
film right investment agreement. As at 31 March 2024, the
fair value of the film right investment which amounted to
HK$14,697,000 (2023: HK$15,504,000) is measured with
using the discounted cash flow method.

2023/244F ¥

For the year ended 31 March 2024 & 22024 #3/31H 1F F &

Brat o (&)

(iv)

RBEFE ARAZHEBARMTS
EERERAR(HEENDRSLEHH
RBRBIFIIASRE  UWEER
RBEBEFEEIHR R ETRARA FIA
KIBEKELE - REZFRE
HtErRBWUATZARREREA
T #8215 1% 58 /52,000,0003 T (# &
715,480,000/ Jt) o t & R & 1 A
=+ 78 £ & £2,000,000% T (0 &
715,480,000 7o) - B R H LR
B A Yt 2R #400,000% JT (48
£43,096,000%8 70) & K& & 1L A]
RAEREEKIEZRERBERR
BFZSEREZRESEARRERS -
It 75 4R # 38 £ 2,000,000 T &
Bz 2 F ERNREFRE R
REEAAYMET HEMNRE
CIEERIEAIEERHEITREN
BER -

H E2024%3A318 IFEF E - it 8
EELgIEASBSRE S REIR S
1,847,000 7T (A8 % #14,465,0007%8
JL) e

RBAEFE AEEE-—HELR
ERRIFIY—fOthiE BREK
A A A R %13,600,0007T (4 & B
15,504,000/ JT) © T W & & 1h
B RE20%MERD FRAEEE
BIZEREBEECRERERZESP
AR ELD  FEERA DG AR
BEBEERANETEDL - R
20244%E3F31B T EMERE 2
AN F {H 514,697,000/ 7T (20234 :
15,504,000/ 7t) * Ty IR A BRI IR &

TR SRR RS -
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For the year ended 31 March 2024 & £2024%#3/31H 1t F &

Listed investments, at fair value:

Debt securities listed in Hong Kong
or overseas with fixed interests
ranging from 2.5% t0 9.5% (2023:
6.5% to 9.5%) per annum and
maturity dates ranging from 11
July 2025 to 31 January 2031
(2023: 11 April 2022 to 11 July

2025) (note) (H1az)
Analysed as: paR)iw =
Current assets MEEE
Non-current assets ERBEE

As at 31 March 2024 and 2023, debt instruments at FVTOCI
are stated at fair values which were determined based on the
quoted market closing prices available on the Stock Exchange
or overseas recognised stock exchanges.

Debt instruments at FVTOCI are listed bonds with the credit
loss allowance measured on 12m ECL basis when the credit
risk on financial instruments has not increased significantly
since initial recognition. For those credit-impaired bonds,
credit loss allowance is measured using lifetime ECL. The
Group assessed the ECL for debt instruments at FVTOCI by
reference to credit rating of the bond investment by rating
agencies, macroeconomic factors affecting the respective
industry for each issuer, corporate historical default and loss
rate and exposure of default of each bond investment.

Wk E  EAFE:
REBLFINET 2 ET
BE - BTFMENTF
F2.5%ZE9.5% (20234 :
6.5% Z9.5%)
2025 7H11H £ 203141
A31H (20234 : 20224
AB1MB £2025%F7A118)

MBS

2024 2023
20245 20234
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FE T
413 1,095

313 624

100 471

413 1,095

MR20244F 20234 3A318 » I A F A
FAEMmEERE BB TAZAF
B8R - IR IBEERZ kIR T F
ERXPMZTBBTEET °

ECMTIAZEERRSVIRERNA
R EABEEEINE - IR AFEFAR
2 MU s 2 BT Bi%1218 A 18 5
EEFBEEGECEBEREZ
IHES - RS EEREESFME
EEEFEREFERERBHMNEY
EEFEHE AEELZXETFLHBE
HESBREZEEIR FEZHT
ABSBTEZRELERZ  EFE
PEODRLNBARULEEAREE
YR FHEAFESAEMEZE
WHzEEIE2EHEEEE -
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For the year ended 31 March 2024 & 22024 #3/31H 1F F &

Reversal of credit loss allowance of HK$1,775,000 (2023: H E2024F3A31BIEFE + 1,775,000
credit loss allowance of HK$5,378,000) was recognised in BLIZEEBEREGERDOREBR AR
profit or loss during the year ended 31 March 2024. (20234 : {5 E /&5 18 # 5,378,000
BIT) °
Details of impairment assessment are set out in note 38. BB ER 2 IEE SR 5238 »
All debt instruments at FVTOCI are denominated in US$, a RFEHRR MEERAFETAEM
currency other than the functional currencies of the relevant FHRE2EBETANABEEEE R
group entities, at the end of the reporting period. e E BB AN EB ETTFIE ©
2024 2023
2024%F 20234
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FE T
Unlisted debt instruments in Hong Kong & & FmEHK LA
Fixed-rate unsecured promissory TEF) K IEER A N B

note (the “Promissory Note") (IE A E® DA )

(note) 23,490 23,490
Fixed-rate secured note EMNEERER — 12,800
Other unsecured notes HEMIEERER 2,095 2,095
Less: Impairment allowance R B B (1,054) (1,771)

24,531 36,614
Analysed as: DA
Current assets MENVE E 1,955 —
Non-current assets EREEE 22,576 36,614
24,531 36,614
Note: In May 2021, the Group and Lion Best Global Limited Bi 7 1820214957 » 7N & [E £ Lion Best

(the “issuer”), an independent third party incorporated in Global Limited ([ 2 77 A D(— @ %

the British Virgin Islands, entered into a promissory note REERREESEMAINE

agreement with principal amount of US$3,000,000 which FZFFUARRLEBERE A2

carried interest at 8% per annum and will be fully repayable %8 /3,000,000% JT © F f| X &8

on the maturity date of 25 September 2025. The issuer is [E - I # 7 %) Hl 520259 9A25H

operating in hotel business. At 31 March 2024, the carrying EEEE  BITAGCEBIEEK -

amount of the Promissory Note (net of impairment allowance) MR2024F3A31H » & X EE Z K

was HK$22,576,000 (2023: HK$22,576,000). T & (F0 % 8 1B # %) /&22,576,000

76 7T (20234 : 22,576,000 7T) °
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For the year ended 31 March 2024 & £2024%#3/31H 1t F &

The Promissory Note and the secured and unsecured notes
were measured at amortised cost since the Group's business
model to hold these debt instruments is to hold for collection
of contractual cash flows, and the cash flows represented
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding. The Group assesses the ECL with
reference to the internal credit rating of the issuer assigned
by the Group.

Reversal of credit loss allowance of HK$717,000 (2023:
HK$119,000) was recognised in profit or loss during the year
ended 31 March 2024.

Details of impairment assessment are set out in note 38.

Fixed-rate loans receivable EREWER
Variable-rate loans receivable TR EWE K
Less: Impairment allowance R E R
Analysed as: DA
Current assets MENE E
Non-current assets FEREBEE
Secured FHEA
Unsecured 4 3 1

HRAEEFAERSEB LA ZER
BAERUBREORSREMNFTA
BMEAAZEUAREREFEERRER
REBHKAGE BERESAREEAR
REBERREERAESHEZMRK - K
SE2ZHEMBEANETAZARE
EAFEEREEES -

H 22024F3A3MHIEFEEDRIER
BREEBEBEEREA717,000E T
(20234 : 119,000/ 7T) °

BB BT (4 S BB B RE38 -

2024 2023
20245 20234
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FE T
194,486 298,671
1,171 2,136
195,657 300,807
(24,385) (110,914)
171,272 189,893
58,918 159,272
112,354 30,621
171,272 189,893
115,263 120,638
56,009 69,255

171,272 189,893



No aged analysis is disclosed, as in the opinion of the
directors of the Company, the aged analysis does not give
additional value in view of the nature of business of loan
financing.

At 31 March 2024, the range of interest rate on the Group's
fixed-rate loans receivable is 0% to 16% (2023: 0% to 16%)
per annum and the range of interest rate on the Group's
variable-rate loans receivable is prime rate less 1% (2023:
prime rate less 1%) per annum.

Impairment assessment

Before granting loans to outsiders, the Group assesses the
potential borrower's credit quality and defines credit limits
granted to each borrower. The credit limits attributed to the
borrowers are reviewed by the management regularly. The
management closely monitors the credit quality of loans
receivable. Except for those credit-impaired loans receivable,
there are no loans receivable which are past due at the end
of the reporting period.

Details of impairment assessment are set out in note 38.

2023/244F ¥

For the year ended 31 March 2024 & 22024 #3/31H 1F F &

MEFBEREIT  BEARAEEFR
BORERBEXBHEEMS KK
DT R EEIMEE -

M2024F3H31H  AEE 2 E B EU
BERBFMENT0%E16% (20234 :
0% E16%) R AL B 2 )F B REIWERK
BFEMEAEREEFZER1% (20234 :
BEBEFER1%)

BB YA

E&ﬁ% X T INRE R - ANEE TG

ERAZEELEREREERTE
1F%AZ@E$°”@FEW 2
MTERAZEERE BEEEEZE
REKEREEEER - REEREN
EWE RN RBERRBERAL 2
JE W E TR o

B (B R 15 5F B B MY FE38 -
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The movement of impairment allowance for loans receivable

is as follows:

At 1 April 2022
Changes due to loans receivable
recognised as at 1 April 2022
— Repayments (note (i)
— Net remeasurement of ECL
(note (ii))
New loans granted (note (iii))

At 31 March 2023

Changes due to loans receivable
recognised as at 1 April 2023
— Repayments (note (i)
— Written off (note (iv))
— Net remeasurement of ECL

(note (ii))
New loans granted (note (i)

At 31 March 2024

Notes:

1R2022F4A1H
A2022FAR1HC HER JE
Ug & FRFT B Ay &
—EBEH )
— B EFESE
B & 18 (K7 2 (i)
B ¥ E (W 72 i)

7202343 H31H
R2023F 4R 1HE R E
U & 3K P B ey 2
—BE K 220)
— W8 (A7 2 0v)
— B EFEEE
B & 18 (K7 i)
B E (W a2 i)

M2024F3A31H

EKRERZ REBEEESHWT

Lifetime ECL

— credit-
12m ECL impaired Total

2 {38 &

WEBEE

1218 A A HA BE —
FEEFR FERE wem
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FE T FAE T
3,692 95,760 99,352
(153) (4,848) (5,001)
270 16,000 16,270
293 — 293
4,002 106,912 110,914
(1,943) (2,760) (4,703)
— (83,854) (83,854)
1,082 — 1,082
946 — 946
4,087 20,298 24,385

Hiat -

(i)

(i)

(i)

(iv)

The reversal of impairment loss of HK$4,703,000 (2023:
HK$5,001,000) was related to loans receivable with gross
carrying amount of HK$45,024,000 (2023: HK$52,524,000)
which has been fully repaid during the year.

The remeasurement of ECL of HK$1,082,000 (2023:
HK$16,270,000) was related to loans receivable with gross
carrying amount of HK$171,929,000 (2023: HK$292,807,000).

The impairment loss of HK$946,000 (2023: HK$293,000)
was related to loans receivable with gross carrying amount
of HK$23,728,000 (2023: HK$8,000,000) which are newly
granted during the year.

The written off of HK$83,854,000 was related to loans
receivable with gross carrying amount of HK$83,854,000.

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

S5 1B &5 18 ¢ 71 2 4,703,00078 7T (2023
15,001,000/ ) HE R AF [E &
(818 2 R4 (E 545,024,000/8 7T
(20234 : 52,524,000 7T) 7 fE W &
REH -

EHFTEEEEEFE 21,082,000
7 7T (20234 : 16,270,000 7T ) £ B
T 48 18 /45171,929,00058 7T (20234 ¢
292,807,000 L) 2 EWE KB -

A (B E5 18 2946,0005% T (20234 -
293,000 L) ERAFEHEL 2
BE M #2 {8 /523,728,000 7T (2023
4 :8,000,000 L) 2 EWE H A
-

i 38 283,854,000 JT £ BR ™ 42 (&
£83,854,0008 T2 EWEZER



COST OR REVALUED AMOUNT
At 1 April 2022

XA 2K E B
R2022F471H

Additions =1

Impairment loss BIEEE

Disposal &

Exchange adjustments b X 3 &

Loss on revaluation EHEBE

At 31 March 2023 and R2023%F3A31H &
31 March 2024 202493 A31H

Notes:

(i)

(ii)

During the year ended 31 March 2023, the crypto assets
trading platform went into bankruptcy and the Group fully
impaired the remaining crypto assets.

There were no transfers into or out of Level 3 during the year
ended 31 March 2023.

As at 31 March 2024 and 2023, the Group has a trading right,
which is stated at cost, with carrying value of HK$500,000
that confers eligibility of Constance Capital Limited
(“Constance Capital”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, to trade on the Stock Exchange for the purpose
of securities dealing and broking. The trading right has no
foreseeable limit to the period that Constance Capital can
use to generate net cash flows. As a result, the trading right
is considered by management of the Company as having
an indefinite useful life because it is expected to contribute
to net cash inflows indefinitely. The trading right will not be
amortised until its useful life is determined to be finite. It will
be tested for impairment annually and whenever there is an
indication that it may be impaired. At 31 March 2024 and
2023, no impairment loss has been recognised in respect
of Constance Capital’s trading right as amount involved is
insignificant.

2023/244F ¥
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Crypto Trading
assets right Total
& g%

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FETT FETT FET
(note i) (note ii)

(K1 7%1) (K &2 i)

6,563 500 7,063
2,839 — 2,839
(3,207) — (3,207)
(401) — (401)

53 — 53
(5,847) — (5,847)
— 500 500

(i) EZE2023F3A3NBIEFE MBE
MEERHSTFEBRE A£E2E
BERGNEEEEE -

H £2023F3A318 It F E - FEIR
AFESELHBETAEAREL -

(i) 720244 K%202343H31H » K& H
%A DA B AN 51 8 /9 BR E{8500,00075
TZRGE  ZXPEFLEER
ERABI(LHEER] Kpalz—
ME2EMBAR) EEBRERAT#
TEE NETEFRIRERLE
ool EEAAFERHREHRZR
SENEERESREFE - ALt
KRBIEBERARIERERE
FAERAEPRENERBERRS
MEFHE RFETTHEHES
HEERATFHETAER WX 5H#
BREFREBEATERAERE
BRF 3 77 R0 B8 & o 702024 4F 2023
FIANH EARFERZEBEITE
K AEEAZR G LB RERS
BIWHER ©
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The Group's properties held for development for sale are
situated in Hong Kong.

At 31 March 2024, HK$1,213,900,000 (2023: HK$2,595,506,000)
of properties held for development for sale are expected to be
completed within twelve months after the end of the reporting
period, while the rest are expected to be completed more than
twelve months after the end of the reporting period.

As at 31 March 2024 and 2023, the Group performed
assessment of net realisable value on its properties held
for development for sale with reference to valuations made
by independent qualified professional property valuers not
connected with the Group. The valuations were arrived at
by using the residual method. As at 31 March 2024, there
was a decrease in the estimated net realisable value of the
properties held for development for sale, a net write-down
of HK$84,162,000 was recognised in profit or loss due
to the volatile property market in 2024 (2023: write-back
for approximately HK$11,832,000 due to the recovery of
property market from Covid-19 pandemic in 2023).

Analysis of leasehold lands component:

As at 31 March 2024 MA2024F3831H
Carrying amount REE
As at 31 March 2023 M2023F3H31H

Carrying amount REE

AEEZBEHERRDETDURE

B o

72024%3H31H * 1,213,900,000/8 7T
(20234 : 2,595,506,00058 JT) 2 ¥ 1E
EREVEREERRERR2E T+ =
BERAATEK BT EREERME
AIFEEARN R EBIR+ B A 2 & 5ERK °

20244 20234 3A31H » AEE
BIELERRMEET 2 EEFE
A2 ERASEELSBERBE B
EEREEYEMBMITZMEME - %
ZHEDNREBEFAKMBEESD - B1E
HEZERYERN IR F G EN2024F
SH31B B FT T &+ B 7R20245F 5 #
EMHEE  BaAC BRI FE
84,162,000/ JT (20234 : B 7220234
EHETSE20198 R FERKIBH
18 ¥ - B E#911,832,00058 It °

BA LB DA

HK$'000

FET

2,911,716

4,260,954



Operating cash outflows KER S RN
Additions NE

Transfer to properties held for sale
(Write-down) write-back (4 80 ) 8 [3

The carrying amount of leasehold lands is measured at cost
less any accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses. The residual values are determined as the estimated
disposal value of the leasehold land component. No
depreciation charge is made on the leasehold lands taking
into account the estimated residual values as at 31 March
2024 and 2023.

All properties held for development for sale have been
pledged to secure banking facilities granted to the Group in
both years.

BEERFLEDE
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2024 2023
20244 20234
HK$°000 HK$'000
FETT FET
(106,978) (242,197)
369,811 148,221
(2,203,109) —
(84,162) 11,832

A L35 2 AR T E DA AR & (F
MRFFIEMEMEAERBELTE - F
HEERETABO T WIS ZHETE
B EBE - £ E 520249 KX2023%F3A
JINBZHETEE S REBHL AR
WEEH -

B 4F B - 2 B T R R
ENECHEAUREEFAEEL R
TRE -

2024 2023
2024%F 20234
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FET
Lease receivables & U FRE 905 1,015
Prepayments SEENE QL] 2,048 26,996
Interest receivable JE IR B 877 774
Escrow deposits for properties BIEHNEWHEAELRS
held for sale 7109 4,456
Staff loans (note i) BTERH ) 9,000 9,000
Accounts receivable from margin RE DB E EWRF (A i)
financing (note ii) 17,151 8,725
Amounts due from joint ventures JEU A & N B A (M i)
(note iil) 1,850 1,921
Other receivables and deposits HEiERRIERIZS 19,910 13,343

58,850

66,230
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Notes:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

During the year ended 31 March 2023, the Group entered
into several loan agreements with certain staff. Pursuant to
the loan agreements, the staff loans are unsecured with fixed
interest rate at 2% per annum and repayable on demand.

The Group provides margin financing to certain individuals for
securities transactions secured by the individuals securities
held as collateral. Securities are assigned with specific
margin ratios for calculation margin values. Additional funds
or collateral are required if the outstanding amounts of
accounts receivable from margin financing exceed the eligible
margin value of the securities deposited. No aging analysis is
disclosed as in the opinion of the directors of the Company,
the aging analysis does not give additional value in view of the
nature of margin financing.

The amounts due from joint ventures are unsecured,
interest-free and repayable on demand.

The Group did not grant any credit period to its tenants
in property investment segment. The aged analysis of
lease receivables, based on invoice date, at the end of the
reporting period is as follows:

0-60 days 0-60H
61-90 days 61-90H
91-120 days 91-120H

Details of impairment assessment of trade and other
receivables are set out in note 38.

No credit loss allowance has been recognised on the trade
and other receivables as the directors of the Company
consider that the amount is immaterial.

o

(i) REZE2023F3A3NBILEFE A%
EHEEFETAIVHEOERM & -
RIBEERGE  BEIERBEIER -
BEEFME2%  RIZEREE -

(i) AEERABEAZSFELSERRAD
EHEXZFAETEARERE R
B-BHRroRBERENRESL X
NetERrEeE WRAREBLME
MEWER 2 REESEBBMF
ErmatrELEBE NF2HE
SIMEBE X ERR - BRARAE
ERR ERRITERENLE
R IS RHERIINEE Bt
ERERER W -

i) EMAEATREAMER B8 -
KRB REE -

AEEREGTOEREDHMOHEP
TRAEESR HEREFERRSEH
AREBEHZARZREDFTWOT

2024 2023
20244 20234
HK$°000 HK$'000
FAETT FE T
905 761

= 109

= 145

905 1,015

EHREMERFERETEHFEH
R FE38 -

HRAARRZEEFRREBAFTEKX
B L E 5 N B W R ERE
EEBEFELEE -



The deposits and bank balances carry interest at prevailing
market rates range from 0.001% to 5.1% (2023: 0.001% to
3.7%) per annum.

At the end of the reporting period, included in the bank
balances and cash are the following amounts denominated in
currencies other than the functional currency of the relevant
entities to which it relates.

2023/244F ¥

For the year ended 31 March 2024 & 22024 #3/31H 1F F &

GEREBITEKBZRITMBER X
f0.001% £5.1% (20234 : 0.001% =
3.7%) o

RBEMR RIOTEHKRREEFT
JINEERERNEBERNIIEE
BAINNERIBEZ SR -

2024 2023

20244 20234

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET

US$ ETT 1,926 6,719

SGD N T 963 4,695
Trade and other payables Bk HMEMRKIE

2024 2023

20244 2023

HK$000 HK$'000

FET FET

Trade payables B 5 3R 46,062 29,622

Retention payable (note) B RIES (B E) 53,851 39,149

Rental deposits received and rental B eEes RERES

received in advance 13,251 11,648

Interest payable FEAS T B 12,327 7195

Other taxes payable ot & B IR 2,767 9,832

Accruals and other payables FERTE B & H b e 308 23,733 21,474

151,991 118,920

Note: Retention payable is withheld from subcontractors and will be

released by the Group within twelve months upon completion

of their works.

Byt

ENREZDHEETIRES E
e AEBEHARTETHAR

TTEARER -
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Trade and other payables (Continued)

The aged analysis of trade payables determined based on
invoice date at the end of the reporting period is as follows.
The average credit period on purchases of goods is 30 days.

0-60 days 0-60H

Contract liabilities

The Group receives deposits from customers when they
sign the sale and purchase agreement of sales of properties.
The deposits from customers are recognised as contract
liabilities until the customers obtain control of the properties.
At 31 March 2024, the contract liabilities amounted to
HK$35,340,000 (2023: HK$29,085,000 and 1 April 2022:
HK$16,534,000). The contract liabilities brought forward
from prior year were fully recognised as revenue during the
year. Contract liabilities are expected to be settled within
the Group’s normal operating cycle when control of the
completed properties are transferred to the customer.

The amount is unsecured, interest-free, repayable on demand
and non-trade in nature.

BEERHEMEMNRE )
RBEMRREZOHBEEZEDE
NREERANOT - BEZ2FHE
S8 A/308 -

2024 2023
20245 20234
HK$'000 HK$'000
FAETT FETT
46,062 29,622

BHAE

AEEHEEXFFIHEHEMEEE D
FREEEREFPZES BFPFESER
BAENBE BEERPIEWEIED
o M2024F3A31MB AW BEA
35,340,000 7T (20234 : 29,085,000
7B 7T K 52022 4 A18 116,634,000/
) FFEHEAEHNARBERATFE
BHERAEET - AHEEEHR
EERMENZESHEEREZZRPER
AEBEMEFTEEFBRANGN -

ZHRBARERN 28 REREER
RIFEHZME -
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2024 2023
20245 20234
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Carrying amount repayable as EEZBZRAMBENT
follows (based on the scheduled (REHINARE R H
repayment dates set out in the loan EEEERR)
agreements):
— within one year ——FRA 2,323,047 1,615,464
— within a period of more than — BB —FEITEB
one year but not exceeding EEOESIID
two years 1,115,397 884,750
— within a period of more than — FBBAMFETER
two years but not exceeding AERNRRA
five years 100,408 876,325
— within a period of more than —ERFAENRER
five years 133,009 152,638
3,671,861 3,529,177
Less: Amount due within one year BoBIRARBEEZ—FA
shown under current liabilities | HE & 5 (2,323,047) (1,615,464)
Amount due after one year shown BATRERBDEEZ—F&
under non-current liabilities EE g 58 1,348,814 1,913,713
At 31 March 2024, the Group's secured bank borrowings M2024F3H31H - AEEEEMIRT
carry interest ranging from the Hong Kong Inter-Bank Offered BEZFINEREERTAERE(E
Rate (“HIBOR") plus 1.0% to 1.825%, the Secured Overnight BERITRI ZE R E D) MN1.0% =1.825%
Financing Rate (“SOFR") plus 0.8% to 1.05% (2023: HIBOR EERBEMEMNE(BERBER
plus 1.0% to 1.825%, London Inter-Bank Offered Rate &R *E])HN0.8% E=1.05% (20234 : &
("LIBOR") plus 0.8% to 1.0%) per annum, with effective BIRITRIZE IR B IN1.0% E1.825% * i
interest ranging from 4.375% to 6.785% (2023: 4.21% to FRITRZEFRE ((RBERTRAZERE D
5.86%) per annum. The loans are secured by certain assets hn0.8% E1.0%) 5t & - EEF M EN
as set out in note 30. The proceeds were mainly used to TF4.375% £6.785% (2023%F : 4.21% &=
finance acquisition of investment properties, development of 586%)° ZEERTINETEEIESR
properties and acquisition of financial products. WA EHAMIFE30 - FIIERIBEETEA

FHERBREME BRMWENUR
BETHMEM®-



Easyknit International Holdings Limited  2023/24 Annual Report

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR R R M

For the year ended 31 March 2024 & Z£20244#3531H 1- £ &

The Group's secured bank borrowings that are denominated
in currencies other than the functional currencies of the
relevant group entities are set out below:

HK$ BT
uss ETT
Deferred tax assets EERIEE E
Deferred tax liabilities EER T EE

210

AEENEBEEEERY

Be 51 A O

E¥IIE2AERRTEESHRIIMT

2024
20245
HK$’000
FET

4,614
23,047

2024
20245
HK$’000
FET

1,030

1,030

2023
20234
HK$'000
FET

4,372
21,530

2023
20234
HK$'000
FET

16,862
(24,537)

(7675)



The followings are the major deferred tax (assets) liabilities
recognised and movements thereon during the current and
prior years:
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For the year ended 31 March 2024 & 22024 #3/31H 1F F &

TXBRFARBEFEBRANER
EEHRBE(EE)BEREEZH:

Accelerated
ECL tax Revaluation

allowance depreciation  Taxlosses of properties Total

BHEE  MERE
BEEE wE  HEBE  NEREH @i
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$ 000
FET FET FET FET FET
At 1 April 2022 202254718 (12,570) 1,485 (2,474) 23,955 10,396
(Credit) charge to profit or loss PR (RS Mk (2.218) 308 (1,393 2,191 (1,112)
Exchange adjustments EAHE — — — (1,609) (1,609)
At 31 March 2023 2023F3A318 (14,788) 1,793 (3,867) 24,537 7675
Charge (credit) to profit or loss REEMEHES) 13,758 133 1,941 (23,470) (7638)
Exchange adjustments S — — — (1,067) (1,067)
At 31 March 2024 #202453A318 (1,030) 1,926 (1,926) = (1,030)

At 31 March 2024, the Group has unused tax losses of
HK$698,995,000 (2023: HK$446,719,000) available for
offset against future profits. A deferred tax asset had
been recognised in respect of HK$11,672,000 (2023:
HK$23,438,000) of such losses as at 31 March 2024.
No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect
of the remaining tax losses of HK$687,323,000 (2023:
HK$423,281,000) due to the unpredictability of future profits
streams. The tax losses can be carried forward indefinitely.

At 31 March 2024, the Group has deductible temporary
differences of HK$113,727,000 (2023: HK$94,173,000). A
deferred tax has been recognised in respect of HK$6,242,000
(2023: HK$89,627,000) of such temporary differences as at
31 March 2024. No deferred tax asset has been recognised
in relation to the remaining deductible temporary difference
of HK$107,485,000 (2023: HK$4,546,000) as it is not
probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences can be utilised.

MR2024F3A31H  AEB B R AM
T8 &5 18 73698,995,00078 JT (20234 :
446,719,000/ 7T) + A A A4 88 R 2ROR
A o ERA2024F3A3MB 2 EE 18
11,672,0007 7T (20234 : 23,438,000
TEEREBELEHREEE - HREX
ARt AR BARA WAL EERHT
687,323,000 7T (20234 : 423,281,000
BB IEBBEAREEMIBEE -
HIEBEERRALSE -

M2024F3H31H « AN & B W 7] H08
& B 2 %8 45113,727,0007%8 7 (20234 :
94,173,000/ 7T) ° 720245 3H31H -
EMZEHREEEE F.26,242,000%
7T (20234 : 89,627,000/& JT) #E R IE
W TE o M 4E BL 82 107,485,000 T
(20234 : 4,546,0007% 7T) 2 A 1 35 k&
NEERRAELCHREELEE  AAER
i v A 7] B 0k A3 R 45 0 AT 40 R0ER B
EREAPHCHEBEE -



2023/24 Annual Report

For the year ended 31 March 2024 & £2024%#3/31H 1t F &

Under the EIT Law of PRC, withholding tax is imposed
on dividends declared in respect of profits earned by PRC
subsidiaries from 1 January 2008 onwards. At 31 March
2024, deferred taxation has not been provided for in the
consolidated financial statements in respect of temporary
differences attributable to accumulated profits of the
PRC subsidiaries amounting to RMB17,121,000 (2023:

RMB58,794,000) as the amount involved is insignificant.

Authorised:

At 1 April 2022, 31 March 2023 and

31 March 2024

Issued and fully paid:

At 1 April 2022, 31 March 2023 and

31 March 2024

During the year ended 31 March 2024, the Company

repurchased its own shares on the Stock Exchange as

follows:

Month of repurchase

For the year ended 31 March 2024

April 2023
July 2023

BIEF B ZEMBHE - B2008F1
B1R#E - B WE Q" B E & f 7
TRk Z R B EBMIBIR - 2024
FIAMHB - BHR P ER2BITAE
AN AGEET BRI LR E
MY B N R 2 AT & B FE AL B BF 1 2
A R #17,121,0007T (20234F : A R &
58,794,0007T) 5T {2 B EFL 18 -

Nominal value Number of
per share shares Amount
SREE RAEE ¢ 8
HKS HK$000
BT FHET
ETE
12022 4A18 ~ 2023%F
3A31H K2024%F3A31H 0.1 10,000,000,000 1,000,000
BEETRER:
#2022F 4818 « 20235
3A31H &2024F3831H 0.1 73,988,403 7399
B E2024F3A3NBLEFE  ARER
R PTEBERMONT :
Price per share Aggregate
Number of BRER consideration
shares Highest Lowest paid
E A6 SREE B& BE BHAKE
HK$ HK$ HK$000
BT BT FET
Bt E22024F3H31H
IFFE
2023%F 4R 1,346,000 37 3.46 4,675
2023%7H 380,000 4.72 — 1,793
1,726,000 6,468



At the end of the reporting period, the following assets of
the Group were pledged to banks to secure credit facilities
granted to the Group:

Leasehold properties ROk 7S
Investment properties "EME

2023/244F ¥

For the year ended 31 March 2024 & 22024 #3/31H 1F F &

RBEHR AKEERTFRITIER
EETAGEEEREZEEN

Listed equity securities in Hong Kong ~ &F/& K842 F IR A E 5

and overseas

Life insurance policies ASRE
Properties held for development for sale #5{E &% B Y %
Properties held for sale FELEWE

At 31 March 2024, 7,500,000 shares (after capital
reorganisation) (2023: 300,000,000 (before capital
reorganisation)) of Eminence with fair value of HK$1,643,000
(2023: HK$11,400,000) held by a subsidiary of the Group is
pledged to a bank.

In addition, rentals in respect of the above investment
properties and future sale proceeds and rentals in respect
of the above properties held for development for sale and
properties held for sale are also pledged to banks.

2024 2023
20245 20234
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FE T
185,120 190,924
2,067,143 2,151,841
13,304 20,703

= 13,626
3,021,999 4,770,716
1,870,759 703,439
7,158,325 7.851,249

MR2024F3A318 - AEB —HMHEQ
7] #F 57,500,0000% (3% A = 48 1% )(2023
4 :300,000,0000% (J& 2~ &= 48 A1) A F
B A1,643,0007% 7T (20234 : 11,400,000
B ZzmURHERIEFRT -

N ERREY R Z2HE R B
FHEZRMERFIFLENMEZR
HIHEMG KA RE S IFEMTIRT
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The Group as lessor AEBERHEA
2024 2023
20245 20234
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FAE T

Property rental income earned during R ERNRE 2 W EH & W A

the year 43,101 47857
Less: Outgoings B (6,242) (6,339)
Net rental income HEW A FE 36,859 41,518
All of the properties held for rental purposes have committed FrERELRHEBENNYERHRERR
lessees for 1 to 3 years (2023: 1 to 3 years) from the end of EETEAE1E3F (2023F 1 1234F)
the reporting period without termination options granted to WG THERIEEERE -
tenants.

Undiscounted lease payments receivable on leases are as KRB HERWHEENRBOT

follows:

2024 2023
20244 20234
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FET
Within one year —F R 30,755 35,430
In the second year EF-FN 12,017 22,477
In the third year EF=ZFRK 4,200 2,766

46,972 60,673



Capital expenditure contracted for but ~ DEJ LB KRG E
HFREBECERNAI IR

not provided in the consolidated

financial statements in respect of

— interest in Limited Partnership
(note)

Note: The amount at 31 March 2024 represented US$564,000
(equivalent to HK$4,418,000) (2023: US$2,500,000
(equivalent to HK$19,635,000)) for subscription for interest
in the Limited Partnership as a limited partner. The purpose
of the Limited Partnership is primarily achieving capital
appreciation and participation through investments in equity
and equity-related securities in Asia-Pacific and Europe and
portfolio funds with a similar investment focus. The business
of the Limited Partnership will be conducted and managed
by one single general partner (the “"General Partner”)
who will act as agent of the Limited Partnership while the
investment committee of the Limited Partnership (comprising
individuals who are not connected with the Group) shall
decide and approve all investment and divestment decisions
of the Limited Partnership with reference to the investment
objective. The limited partners of the Limited Partnership,
including the Group, shall take no part in the operation of the
Limited Partnership on the management or conduct of the
business and affairs except with the written consent of the
General Partner. Details of this transaction are set out in the
Company's announcements dated 27 March 2019 and 10 May
2019.

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefits scheme (the “"MPF
Scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance. Under the MPF Scheme, the
employees are required to contribute 5% of their monthly
salaries or up to a maximum of HK$1,500 and they can
choose to make additional contributions. The employer’s
monthly contributions are calculated at 5% of the employee’s
monthly salaries or up to a maximum of HK$1,500 (the
“mandatory contributions”). The employees are entitled to
100% of the employer’'s mandatory contributions upon their
retirement at the age of 65, death or total incapacity.

—BREBES (M 2)
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UREESES

2024 2023
20245 20234
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FE T
4,418 19,635

Hiat - 2024 3A3MA SR IAERAEEBA
FOREEREENEZNSEE
£564,0003% 7t (16 & 74,418,000/
7€) (20234 : 2,500,000 7T (M E K
19,635,000 7C)) - BR A ¥ W B
MNEBABBRBERET KR KEM
R R B EREE SR AEE AU
REBHNREHAESD  WE
BEREE BRABNEKER
BE-TRABA(EBERBADK
ERER BEIEABERAEBHR
BA MERGENKREZES (A
MAEBEMERENEAARK S
SBEEEREAERILEBRSE
PR ERBEREK - AR
AENERABABERAEE)T
CEHEEBAEHREESLE 28
ERAENLE HEZTBRAEEZA
EMRERIN - ZXZHFBHRN
A7 HEA201993 278 %2019
F5A10HR A ©

REBREEBRHMEQESFEE
Bl ZERATHFEHEATES RN
BREE (a2t El]) - RaES
EIT  BREEARESAFSEING%
&% A1,600870 EEWAIEEE
HEMER - EXEFAHRRAERES
2EAT S HEMHAS%H & ZA1,500
B (s K] - 8 8 K655 R
KB LT R TRERITHENE
AZHEERSEHERZ100% -
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Employees of the subsidiaries in the PRC are members of
the state-sponsored pension scheme operated by the PRC
government. The subsidiaries are required to contribute a
certain percentage of their payroll to the pension scheme
to fund the benefits. The only obligation of the Group with
respect to the pension scheme is to make the required
contributions.

There were no forfeited contributions utilised to offset
employers’ contributions for both years. The employers’
contributions which have been dealt with in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
were as follows:

Employers’ contributions recognised in = R8P HER 2 B T H &

profit or loss

At 31 March 2024 and 2023, there were no forfeited
contributions available to reduce the contributions payable in
the future years.

On 5 July 2012, a share option scheme (the “2012 El
Scheme”) was approved by the shareholders of the
Company. The 2012 ElI Scheme was expired on 4 July
2022. At 31 March 2024, 146,000 (2023: 146,000) share
options were held by directors of the Company who are also
substantial shareholder of the Company and 146,000 (2023:
219,000) share options were held by employees of the
Company who are associates of the substantial shareholders
of the Company. During the year ended 31 March 2024,
73,000 share options held by employees of the Company
lapsed. The share options can be exercised on or before 29
August 2031 with an exercise price of HK$3.99.

No share options were granted under the 2012 El Scheme or
exercised during the years ended 31 March 2024 and 2023.

RAEzHMBRARZERERTEBRA
RYZBFRENRKRTFTEKE - K
BRrAARFETASLAEKS
APEIER ABNZERMN - AKHE
ZEEEASRERSFEELARTE

ZH

P 18 45 2 20 OR A 2 M3 SRR A 1
BERF ERGEREZLREMEE
WeasRPREEZRBEHRDOT:

2024 2023
20244 20234
HK$°000 HK$'000
FAETT FE T
967 1,080

R20244F N 2023F3H318 » WRE R
W 3R AT B 1ERR R 2R F S 2 BT 4

o
A °

20126 758 AN A R AR L A& —THEE
B M 51 &1 (120124F 7k 25 B0 B B8 A% 4 &t
&) o 20124 ok & B R B8 AR i 5T 8 R
2022F7H4BEE o 1R2024F3H318 -
146,00017 (20234 : 146,00017) &5 A% ##
HTNBAARIEERRENARAES
# A iM146,00017 (20234 : 219,000
MERENLRBARAR X Z R B
BEALIHWARBREREE - #H £2024
FIANBLFE  HARFEEREA
#973,00017 f % #E 2k Rk - B AR 4 T R0
2031 8H29H sk 2 Bl T AT f# » 1718
B /53998 7T °

H E2024F N 2023F3A31HIEFE
BEARE2012F Kk BB I E
ROBERS AR AT (E -



The table below details changes in the Group's liabilities
arising from financing activities, including both cash and
non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities
are those for which cash flows were, or future cash flows
will be, classified in the Group's consolidated statement of
cash flows from financing activities.

At 1 April 2022
Bank borrowings raised

Repayment of bank borrowings
Repayment of lease liabilities
Payment of loan arrangement fee

Interest paid

Advance from a non-controlling

shareholder

Non-cash changes:

Interest expense on bank borrowings
Interest expense on lease liabilities

Exchange adjustments

At 31 March 2023
Bank borrowings raised

Repayment of bank borrowings
Repayment of lease liabilities
Payment of loan arrangement fee

Interest paid

Advance from a non-controlling

shareholder

Non-cash changes:

Interest expense on bank borrowings
Interest expense on lease liabilities

Exchange adjustments

At 31 March 2024

7202264718
EXRIER
EBERAEE
EEHEaR
INERLHER
BRAE
—fFEREEDY

£9289):
BRI HERS
AEREZHBHY
FEI"

M2023%F3A318
E£R7ER
EERAEE
ERAEER
INERZHER
BFE
—fEnREREY

FRLE
T AT
REAEZHERE
EX8E

R2024E3A318

Lease
liabilities

RERR
HK$ 000
TET

720

ﬁé)

(16)

168

16

184

2023/244F ¥

For the year ended 31 March 2024 & 22024 #3/31H 1F F &

TRAAGEEKREMEZH BB
2% ERASMIFASEY - KA
REFDZABNEEREAES
IRKBRERERENBRAEEZ
RARTRERCKEREETHZHR

X =
éE‘/MLE °

Amount due
Secured to a non-
Interest bank  controlling
payable borrowings shareholder Total
JEft—1u
BER FERRR
EMFE  BTER RAE L

HKS000  HK$000  HKS0OO  HK$©000
TET TET TAT TET

6,479 3,662,704 159,114 3,729,415

- 670,504 - 670,504
- (696,260) — (696,260)
- - - (398)
- (8,179) - (8,179)
(144,099) — — (144121)
— — 52,580 52,580

(137620) 3,528,769 211,694 3,603,541

144,815 - - 144,815
- - - 2
— 408 - 408

7195 3,529,177 211,694 3,748,786

- 649,364 - 649,364
- (505,968) - (505,968)
- - - (536)
- (500) - (500)
(189,489) - = (189,505)
- - 837 837

(182,294) 3,672,073 212,531 3,702,478
194,621 - — 194,621

- = - 16
- (212) - (212)

12327 3,671,861 212,531 3,896,903
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(a) Compensation of key management (a) EEEBAEZHM
personnel
The remuneration of directors and other members of EEREMFIEEERERERTF
key management during the year was as follows: A2 :
2024 2023
2024%F 20234
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FEor
Short-term employee benefits HAEERT
Salaries and other benefits HFoeRkHEMET 34,818 42,099
Retirement benefits scheme R KR F T B K
contributions 234 335
35,052 42,434
The Group has been providing accommodation to Ms. AEBERBEMRMEEESRL T
Lui Yuk Chu for use by her and her family members ERBERBEZREXKEER -
including residential units and car parking spaces WRBEEEZEEA(BEEH®RZLH
provided to Mr. Koon Chun Ting, a son of Ms. Lui Yuk RINBARGWERARE=E)
Chu and a director of subsidiaries of the Company, and MEAMRZIREZEEFEE
Ms. Koon Ho Yan Candy free of rental and charges for NUEEMN TREFZERAE
as long as they are employed by the Group. Details of WEEEHEERLER - B#
the arrangement are set out in note 9(a)(ii). It HER FF 1B B B BT FE9(a) ) ©
The remuneration of directors and key executives are EERTFEHNTAB MRS
recommended by the remuneration committee and MEESZBRENALTZERER
approved by the board of directors of the Company, MEBEER YHARAES
respectively, having regard to the performance of GHEE o

individuals and market trends.



(b)

(c)

(d)

In January 2011, the Company and Eminence entered
into employment agreements with Mr. Koon Wing
Yee to act as general manager of the Company and
Eminence. The employment agreements, which
constitute connected transactions, commenced on 21
February 2011 but may be terminated by either party
at any time by three months’ notice. The monthly
salary has been adjusted a few times to HK$325,000
for the Company with effect from 1 April 2023 (2023:
HK$300,000 for the Company with effect from 1 April
2022) and HK$475,000 for Eminence with effect from
1 April 2023 (2023: HK$450,000 for Eminence with
effect from 1 April 2022). The remuneration of Mr. Koon
Wing Yee as general manager of the Company and
Eminence during the year was HK$4,000,000 (2023:
HK$9,750,000) and an incentive bonus of nil was paid
to Mr. Koon during the year (2023: HK$5,280,000).
The incentive bonus was determined with reference
to his duties and responsibilities and the Group's
performance and profitability. The remuneration and
bonus were included in the “compensation of key
management personnel” in (b) above. On 1 September
2023, Mr. Koon Wing Yee resigned as general manager
of the Company and Eminence and the employment
agreements were terminated.

Mr. Koon Wing Yee is the spouse of Ms. Lui Yuk Chu
who is a director of the Company. Ms. Lui Yuk Chu also
holds 13.51% (2023: 18.98%) equity interest of the
Company through an entity wholly-owned by her at 31
March 2024.

During the year, the Group received rental income
totalling HK$528,000 (2023: HK$528,000) from certain
close relatives of Ms. Lui Yuk Chu and Ms. Koon Ho
Yan Candy.

During the year, the Group paid HK$2,730,000 (2023:
HK$1,890,000) to Wing Yee Football Team Company
Limited, a company controlled by Mr. Koon Chun Ting,
which is recognised in profit or loss as “advertising
expense”.

2023/244F ¥

For the year ended 31 March 2024 & 22024 #3/31H 1F F &

(b)

(c)

(d)

R2011F1A  ARFIEEILEE
KESLENLERAHZE  BA
EAAREI REIUZ BEIE - Z
ERH®E BREERS  H
20M&2R21B8 %k BaimE
FEA—FAREENEBGET=
EARABMMALL - AFEAEHL
R ZE325,0008 T (FEARRME)
E2023F4H18 4 %% (20234 :
300,000 T (ARAME) * B
2022F 4 F1H # 4 %0 &475,000
BT (st =L §) 82023444
1H 4 % (20234 : 450,000 T
(=i s) B820229F4A1H
BEB) - RAFE BXkEL
SEAARRR RS ILAKEZ
B 4 %4,000,00078 7T (20234 :
9,750,000/ JT) * K& F A I £ M)
B A X4 AT 41 (20234 ¢
5,280,000 JT) ° & MIEAL Ty &
EEBERETURAERE
BERBFENETE - M RE
AEBREEANLEODZIZZER
ANBZH IR - 72023F9AH1
H BXEEEFETARTES
I BE1E - BREBEDKLE -

EREBRABEERLLZRE
HAERARAES - EXL LI
R2024%3A31HE B —BEE 2
EMAE BRI ELRLAANIZ51%
(20234 : 18.98%) A% A FE 25 o

RER AEBWREREH]RZ L
MEAMZEtBETOERZ2ES
I A A& #£528,0005 7T (20234 :
528,000/ JT) °

RER - NEBEF 2,730,000
7L (20234 : 1,890,000/ JT) T 7k
ETHBEERAR(—HEBEER
EEEEH ZARDREZER
BIESEME]-
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(e) During the year, the Group received service charge
of HK$414,000 (2023: nil) from a joint venture for
rendering of administrative services.

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to stakeholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balances. The Group’s
overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debts,
which includes secured bank borrowings disclosed in note 27
and amount due to a non-controlling shareholder, net of cash
and cash equivalents and equity attributable to owners of
the Company, comprising issued share capital, accumulated
profits and reserves.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure on
a regular basis. As part of this review, the directors consider
the cost of capital and the risks associated with the capital.
Based on recommendations of the directors, the Group will
balance its overall capital structure through the payment of
dividends, new share issues and raising or repayment of
bank borrowings.

Constance Capital (see note 21) is regulated by the Hong
Kong Securities and Futures Commission and is required
to comply with the financial resources requirements
according to the Hong Kong Securities and Futures (Financial
Resources) Rules (the “SF(FR)R"). Management closely
monitors, on a daily basis, Constance Capital’s liquid capital
level to ensure compliance with the minimum liquid capital
requirement under the SF(FR)R. Constance Capital has no
non-compliance of the capital requirement imposed by the
SF(FR)R during the year.

(e) MER KEBEMEHTHRBSE
WEA & N &) BR1% E414,000% 7T
(20234 : 4) o

RERAEEBETERIHEBREL
2OAKBEHEEAETER BB
EEEMIAESRERRETFEMR
BEREFRGRSOE - AEEZ2EE

AEENEARBERSERFEES
BEBRERMI272AEARITEE
MM —fIEERBRRAKA  FRE
EBReEBYRARTBREEES
EFBREEEITRA Y R E A &
e

ARAREFERRIERNRE - ER
B —%n EEEEEAKAR
EAMBEBERR REEFNES
AEEHEBIRMNRE - BITHBMD
REEHEERTEE  AFEHER
BARRE -

AHEER(RME2DDXBEZ SRR
HEEBERZBREEERAEST
REEEZELZRPERHER) SR
(FEHxEk#E(WRER KRz M
BRERENR ERESHEINERL
HMERZRBESKFABRBRERK S
HErLHE(MBER R Z&RER
HESER -RFALHEEALED
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a.

Categories of financial instruments a. TRIAEZEH
2024
20244
HK$'000
FET
Financial assets SREE
Amortised cost 5 R
— Trade and other receivables — B9 R HaEWFRIE 37,698
— Debt instruments at — BB ENTFEZ
amortised cost (R = 24,531
— Loans receivable — B E R 171,272
— Time deposits over three —=BANEZ
months E B 17 K 32,583
— Cash and cash equivalents —BeRREEEY 307,435
573,519
FVTPL BRAFEFABTE
— Financial assets at FVTPL — B AFEFAERZZ
TREE 211,854
FVTOCI R FERTA A
EET &
— Debt instruments at FVTOCI —EBRAFEEGAEM
rPEHBKECEBIA 413
Financial liabilities cRAE
Amortised cost B 5H PR
— Trade and other payables — B9 R HAMEMFIE 122,273
— Amount due to a non- — JEN — (I R RR R
controlling shareholder KIE 212,531
— Secured bank borrowings — BEBRITEE 3,671,861
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4,006,665

2023
20234
HK$'000
FET

27504

36,614
189,893

398,894

652,905

191,160

1,095

87282

211,694
3,629,177

3,828,153
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Financial risk management objectives and
policies

The Group's major financial instruments include
financial assets at FVTPL, debt instruments at
FVTOCI, debt instruments at amortised cost, trade
and other receivables, loans receivable, cash and cash
equivalents, time deposits over three months, trade
and other payables, amount due to a non-controlling
shareholder and secured bank borrowings. Details of
these financial instruments are disclosed in respective
notes. The risks associated with these financial
instruments and the policies on how to mitigate these
risks are set out below. The management manages and
monitors these exposures to ensure that appropriate
measures are implemented on a timely and effective
manner.

Market risk
(i) Interest rate risk

The Group's primary cash flow interest rate
risk relates to its secured bank borrowings
and variable-rate loans receivable. The interest
rates and terms of repayment of the secured
bank borrowings of the Group are disclosed in
note 27. The Group is also exposed to fair value
interest rate risk in relation to certain financial
assets at FVTPL, fixed-rate loans receivable, debt
instruments at amortised cost, debt instruments
at FVTOCI and lease liabilities. The Group has
not used any derivative contracts to hedge its
exposure to such interest rate risk, however, the
management monitors interest rate exposure
and will consider other necessary action when
significant interest rate exposure is anticipated.

The Group's exposure to interest rate risk on
financial liabilities is detailed in the liquidity risk
management section of this note. The Group's
cash flow interest rate risk is mainly concentrated
on the fluctuation of HIBOR and SOFR (2023:
HIBOR and LIBOR) arising from secured bank
borrowings.

MR EERRERBR

AEBEZIZeMIABRER
ARFEFABEENEZREE
BAFEFAEGEZERSE Z
BEITAE REBEKAFEZ
BHETAE BEZREMERFE -
BUEER BRekAeFEY -
ZEAREZEBMER BHR
H AR RIE - A — L IR
BERFRERBEEMBTEER -
ZEERMIAZHEBCRERN
R ER - MREFERTAY
RzZBBARBEZERRZ
BRI WMT - BEEEE R
RERZERRIAERERR
B REBUEE i

% a2
(i) FFE g

AEBEBEZZEER
EFEE R EE DK TR
TEERZFEERKRERE
o ALEEERFETE
B R E R R 5 3O &
R E27 e REBE AR
HEFTEAFEFABDS
JeRMEE TEREHBE
HRBEANARNTECE
BITE BRAFEFAE
theErEBEZ2EBEIAR
HEABEHEBENRATER
RE K- ANEBWKFEH
ERTEGHE R E BT
EE A BEEE
RFKE I EEE R
HESKRAERRKRNIBR
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EBRERAWFZRBE
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BEEACZEERTRE
FEREERBRERREF
F(2023F : BEBRITRAZE
FENRBBERITRERS)
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Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(1)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

Total interest revenue/income from financial
assets that are measured at amortised cost or at
FVTOCI is as follows:

B M 2=

Interest revenue
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b. B¥RMEEEERBEK®)

w5 E B ()
(i) 7 EmE 5 (&)

Financial assets at HEEKATTEZ
amortised cost B E
Other income H Uk A
Financial assets at BREEKATTEZ
amortised cost EMEE
Debt instruments at FVTOCI AT EETAHAM
EEREZER
TA

MBI A B8R

Total interest income

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been
determined based on the exposure to interest
rates for non-derivative instruments as referred
to above at the end of the reporting period
and the stipulated change taking place at the
beginning of the financial year and held constant
throughout the reporting period. A 100 basis
points (2023: 100 basis points) increase or
decrease is used when reporting interest risk
internally to key management personnel and
represents management’s assessment of the
reasonably possible change in interest rates. If
interest rate had been 100 basis points (2023:
100 basis points) higher or lower for its variables
rate borrowings and loans receivable and all other
variables were held constant, the Group's loss for
the year ended 31 March 2024 would increase or
decrease by HK$30,650,000 (2023: profit would
decrease or increase by HK$29,451,000).

WEH K AR AT EE
AEBEEREAEZ S
MEE T B ME A
mEmT

2024 2023
20245 20234
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FAE T
13,061 13,727
8,799 5,836
130 233
21,990 19,796
B E D HT

LTS EEDIDER £
M EBMRIEMETLA 2
xRk THR&EFBET
ERBRFERBEHER
FTREHEZTUANRNEME
WEHRNFEHRFSEM
E T - 1001E % % 25 (2023
& 1 1001E = % ) 18 0 =k
BMAOTALBIEREEE
BABERMEER &
EEERMNERAESRE
BATERT - WEIZEE
HEEREFRZFESH
3 K A 10018 £ & 25 (2023
F100E X EB) M ATA
EMEARFFIE K&
® & Z=2024%3A31H
IEF[E 2 6518 1 18 o0 sk
430,650,000/ £ (2023
Fom F o R A sk 8o
29,451,000/ 7T) °
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b. Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(1)

(ir)

Interest rate risk (Continued)
Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

The bank balances are excluded from the
sensitivity analysis as the management of the
Group considers that the interest rate fluctuation
is not significant.

In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analyses
are unrepresentative of the inherent interest rate
risk as the year end exposure does not reflect the
exposure during the year.

Currency risk

The carrying amounts of the group entities’
foreign currency denominated monetary assets

B 35 LBy B ERAR R BUR ()

5 B ()
(i) 7 E @ (&

(ii)

and liabilities at the end of the reporting period
are as follows:
Liabilities
8fE
2024 2023
2024%F 20234
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
US$ against HK$ ETLABTT 16,040 —
SGD against HK$ ¥ T KT 4,614 4,372
US$ against SGD X TN T 7,007 21,530
RMB against HK$ ARER BT — —
Sensitivity analysis

The Group is mainly exposed to the exchange rate
risk on US$ against SGD for the foreign currency
denominated monetary assets/liabilities.

R E AT ()

RITEHKRTERERRE
DPMARAEEEEER
BMNRZKHITERX o

EEERR ZHEED
A7 6 BE R B E X
B o B KA B T BE R BR
FARR -

B m b

RI|ERKR AN FE
ZEBEERBZEBEER

BEZEMENT:
Assets
BE
2024 2023
20245 20234
HK$000 HK$'000
FETT FE T
54,515 43,802
963 4,695
413 1,095
14,697 —
B E DT

AEERINENEBEZER
EE/ABEZEXRRE
BREREXRTTHLHMETT



Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(ii)

Currency risk (Continued)
Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

Under the pegged exchange rate system, the
financial impact on exchange difference between
HK$ and US$ will be immaterial, and therefore
no sensitivity analysis has been prepared. No
sensitivity analysis for the currency risk of SGD
against HK$ and US$ against SGD is prepared
as the directors of the Company consider the
net impact of such foreign currency risk is
insignificant.

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity
to a 5% increase and decrease in RMB against
HK$. Sensitivity rate of 5% is used when
reporting foreign currency risk internally to
key management personnel and represents
management’'s assessment of the reasonably
possible change in foreign exchange rates. The
sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding
foreign currency denominated monetary items
and adjusts their translation at the end of the
reporting period for a 5% change in foreign
currency rates. A positive number below indicates
a decrease in post-tax loss or an increase in
post-tax profit where RMB strengthen 5% against
HK$. For a 5% weakening of RMB against HK$,
there would be an equal and opposite impact on
the post-tax loss or profit.

Decrease in post-tax loss or
increase in post-tax profit
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b. Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Currency risk (Continued)
Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis
reflects the exposure at the year end, but not the
exposure during the year.

The Group currently does not have a foreign
currency hedging policy to eliminate the currency
exposures. However, the management monitors
the related foreign currency exposure closely and
will consider hedging significant foreign currency
exposures should the need arise.

Other price risk

The Group is exposed to other price risk
through its investments in listed equity and
debt securities. The management manages
this exposure by maintaining a portfolio of
investments with different risks. The Group's
price risk is mainly concentrated on listed equity
instruments quoted in the Stock Exchange of
issuers engaged in operation of and investment
in food and beverage brands and banking and
finance industry sector. In addition, the Group
has appointed a special team to monitor the price
risk and will consider hedging the risk exposure
should the need arise.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been
determined based on the exposure to equity price
risk at the end of the reporting period.

If the prices of the listed equity instruments had
been 10% (2023: 10%) higher/lower, post-tax
loss for the year ended 31 March 2024 would
decrease/increase by HK$12,761,000 (2023:
post-tax profit would increase/decrease by
HK$10,582,000) as a result of the changes in fair
value of listed equity instruments.
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Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)
(ii) ~ Other price risk (Continued)
Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

In the managements’ opinion, the financial
impact on price risk of debt securities as at 31
March 2024 and 2023 would be immaterial,
and therefore no sensitivity analysis has been
prepared.

Credit risk and impairment assessment

As at 31 March 2024 and 2023, the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk which will cause a financial loss
to the Group due to failure to discharge an obligation
by the counterparties are primarily attributable to
lease receivables, loans receivable, other receivables,
time deposits over three months, bank balances, debt
instruments at amortised cost and debt instruments
at FVTOCI. The Group does not hold any collateral
or other credit enhancements to cover its credit risk
associated with its financial assets, except that the
credit risk associated with loans receivable and margin
receivables are mitigated because they are secured
over marketable securities or properties.

At the end of reporting period, the historical observed
default rates are reassessed and changes in the
forward-looking information including forecast of
unemployment rate index and other relevant factors are
considered.

Except for financial assets at FVTPL, the Group
performed impairment assessment for financial assets
under ECL model. Information about the Group's credit
risk management, maximum credit risk exposures and
the related impairment assessment, if applicable, are
summarised as below:
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b. Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment

(Continued)

The Group’s internal credit risk grading assessment
comprises the following categories:

Internal credit
rating

ABEEFTR
Low risk

15 B

Medium risk

R B2

High risk

= [ B

Loss

& 18

Write-off

Description

i

The counterparty has a low risk of default
and does not have any past-due amounts

RHZHUFHENRBREE - BAEEMR
B #3008

Debtor frequently repays after due date

BEHAZEEREMAKER

There have been significant increase in
credit risk since initial recognition through
information developed internally or external
resources

FHBAF I E RGO ERATAE
B R b8 )6 R A KB ZE LN

There is evidence indicating the asset is
credit-impaired

ERBBRRARDTERBAE

There is evidence indicating that the debtor
is in severe financial difficulty and the
Group has no realistic prospect of recovery
EEBETEGARARENBREER
REBABR/EERIKD AL

b. B¥EREEEERBEE)

1= B 3 B2 K 6l 1B AT 1 (4)

REBHAEEE R BT ARG

HBEFBEATER
Financial assets
other than
Trade and lease trade and lease
receivables receivables
EZRHEEREK
BEZRHEE MBSz
FE W K1 TREE
Lifetime ECL — not 12m ECL
credit-impaired
EREBHANES 12EAEHEE
1: EEBEE—IFE BEE
ERE
Lifetime ECL — not 12m ECL
credit-impaired
EREBHNTESR 12EAEHEE
EEEE—IFE EiE

ERE

Lifetime ECL — not
credit-impaired

B {38 HA 1Y 38 1
FEBR—FE
ERE

Lifetime ECL —
credit-impaired

# & 8 B 1) 78 HR
EEBE—FE
AR

Amount is written
off

MHBRE R

Lifetime ECL — not
credit-impaired

B8 B & 38 11
FEEBR—3FE
R E

Lifetime ECL —
credit-impaired
& B B 1) 78 HR
EEFE—FE
AR

Amount is written
off
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Financial risk management objectives and b. HMEREBEERZERBX®)
policies (Continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment EEEERBEFEE)
(Continued)
The table below details the credit risk exposures of TRFAVWAEEBEETHEBE
the Group's financial assets, which are subject to ECL EBEBETAzemEEMMAR
assessment: ZEER R
External credit  Internal credit Gross carrying
2024 Notes  rating rating 12m or lifetime ECL Loss rate range amount
2045 g BBEEFR AYEENE nEASREESNEEGEER FEZEE BREE
HK$000
77

Debt instruments at FVTOCI
RATERARM2AUEZBRIE

Investments in listed bonds 18 CtoCafi), i)  N/A Lifetime ECL — credit-impaired 100% 26,608
RERLHES CECafi, i)  THEA ERRBNENEERE-FENE 100%
Financial assets at amortised cost
REHHATEZSREE
Loans receivahle 2 N/A Low risk 12m ECL 2% to 6% 175,359
EHER TER Bk NEARBEEER 2%Z6%
N/A Loss Lifetime ECL — credit-impaired 100% 20,298
TER i BRABNRAEERR - FERE 100%
Time deposits over three months A Al to Prime-1 N/A 12m ECL N/A 32,583
SERAEZ R BER MZPrime1  FER NEAEAEEER TR
Cash and cash equivalents Vi A1t Prime-1 N/A 12m ECL N/A 307435
RERREEEN MZPrimed  THEA NEARBEEER TER
Debt instruments at amortised cost 19 NA Low risk 12m ECL 5% to 6% 25,585
REENAEZEHIE TER Rk NEARBEEER 5%26%
Lease receivables Z3 N/A (i Lifetime ECL — not credit impaired N/A 905
RERMGE TER ERABNENEERE - FEENE TER
Other receivables Z3 N/A (ii 12m ECL N/A 37698

EfEWGE TER EARAREER FER
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b. Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment

(Continued)
External credit Internal credit
2023 Notes — rating rating
NBE fE MBEETR ABEETR
Debt instruments at FVTOCI
ROTEFALM2AUEZERIE
Investments in listed bonds 8 CtoCali), i) N/A
RARLlS CZCall, i TER
Financial assets at amortised cost
REERATECERER
Loans receivale 2 N/A Lowrisk
ERER MER &R
N/A Loss
TR B
Cash and cash equivalents A Al to Prime-1 N/A
BeREEEY A1Z Prime-1 B
Debt instruments at amortised cost 19 N/A Low risk
REERAHEZERIA Sl gl
Lease receivables 23 N/A (i
RERYGE MER
Other receivables 23 N/A i
EtERGE Sl
Notes:

(i)

(i)

(iif)

For the purpose of ECL assessment, the Group
estimates with reference to external credit rating and
forward-looking information such as forward-looking
macroeconomic information that is available without
undue cost or effort.

For the purpose of internal credit impairment
assessment, the Group considers if there is any past
due record or other relevant information available
without undue cost or effort to assess whether credit
risk has increased significantly since initial recognition.

The amounts stated in the above table represents
the initial purchase cost. For the purpose of ECL
assessment, the Group considers the gross principal
amount and the related contractual interests of the
debt instruments. As at 31 March 2024, the gross
principal amount of these debt instruments amounted
to HK$27,145,000 (2023: HK$28,920,000).

b. BXREREEEERBE®)

1= B 3 B2 K 6l 1B AT 1 (4)

Gross carrying
12m or lifetime ECL Loss rate range amount
NERZEERANENEEES BREHE 45EE

HK$ 000
AT
Lifetime ECL — credit-mpaired 100% 29,065
BAERNERERFRE—EENE 100%
T2mECL 2% t06% 193,89
NEARSEEEE 2%Z6%
Lifetime ECL — credit-impaired 100% 106,912
BRESNRACEFRE—FERE 100%
T2mECL N/A 398,804
NEREHEEES TER
12m ECL 5% 10 6% 38,385
NEREEEERR 5%%6%
Lifetime ECL — not credit impaired N/A 1015
LEENNEERERE- TR
FRERE
12m ECL N/A 27504
NEREREEESR TR

Byt

i #EBEEBHEFETS

7

SE2EIBEEFRMAT
BANLBIVERALBE
B 2 B BE 1B KL ) a0 Bl BE 1

LERBEEER -

(i) HALEEREFETS A
SEEEREEEMNBREEER
AR EAEE TN B ER AR
LHEE 2 H A A8 B B B AT
HEERBREVRERARE
BRIE LT -

(i) LtROSBEVAMBEERAE -
RIEHEEERTEAME &
E@EERBEREITANAS AR
MHBEM A LT - 1KR20245F
3A3IR  %EBHKIANLTS
4A%E 527145,00078 7T (20234 -
28,920,000 7T) °



Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(Continued)

Debt instruments at FVTOC/

The Group assesses the credit risk of investment in
debt securities at the reporting date. The Group's debt
instruments at FVTOCI mainly comprise listed bonds
that are graded by credit-rating agencies as per globally
understood definitions and certain bonds without
external credit rating are assessed by internal credit
ratings.
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FF A o
Lifetime
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EEEHN
EHEEER
—E8RE
HK$'000
FET
At 1 April 2022 720224 4H18 22,592
Changes due to debt instruments at FVTOCI R2022F4A1BEERIEAF
recognised as at 1 April 2022 Bt AHMEERE 2ED
TEMRBNES
— Net remeasurement of ECL — EFrEEREERE
R 5,378
At 31 March 2023 720234 3H318 27,970
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recognised as at 1 April 2023 Bt AHMEERE Z2ER
TERBNES
— Net remeasurement of ECL — EFEEHREEEE
FER (1,775)

At 31 March 2024

R2024F3H31H
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Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(Continued)

Loans receivable

The Group had concentration of credit risk in relation
to the gross carrying amount of loans receivable
amounting to HK$195,657,000 at 31 March 2024
(2023: HK$300,807,000) with 53% (2023: 39%) of the
balances secured by marketable securities with fair
values of HK$30,000,000 (2023: HK$35,670,000) or
properties with fair values of HK$96,345,000 (2023:
HK$98,245,000). The Group is not permitted to sell
or repledge the collaterals, if any, in the absence
of default by the borrower. Except for the amount
of loan receivable with collateral decreased due to
loan repayment, there have not been any significant
changes in the quality of the collateral held for the
loans receivable. In addition, the gross carrying amount
of unsecured loans receivable amounting to nil (2023:
HK$57,309,000) are with personal guarantees. The
largest borrower of the Group by itself and together
with the other four largest borrowers of the Group
accounted for approximately 21% and 67% respectively
(2023: 26% and 52% respectively) of the Group's loans
receivable at 31 March 2024.

The Group seeks to maintain strict control over its
outstanding loans receivable to minimise credit risk.
The management has a credit policy in place and
the exposures to the credit risk are monitored on an
ongoing basis. Impairment allowances on outstanding
loans receivable are determined by an evaluation of
financial background, financial condition and historical
settlement records, including past due rates and default
rates, of the borrowers and relevant information from
public domain at the end of each reporting period.
The borrowers are assigned different grading under
internal credit ratings to calculate the ECL, taking
into consideration of the estimates of expected cash
shortfalls which are driven by estimates of possibility
of default and the amount and timing of cash flows that
are expected from foreclosure on the collaterals (if any)
less the costs of obtaining and selling the collaterals.
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Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(Continued)

Loans receivable (Continued)

Included in the gross amount of loans receivable
as at 31 March 2023, HK$83,854,000 were net of
accumulated impairment allowances of HK$83,854,000
due from a group of borrowers including an individual
(the “"Borrower"”) with gross amount of HK$32,397,000
and other individuals (with personal guarantee from
that Borrower) with gross amount of HK$51,457,000.
In prior years, the management assessed, taking into
account the relevant information from public domain,
such balances became credit-impaired. Since then, the
management has taken various actions (including legal
actions) against the Borrower to recover the balances.

During the year ended 31 March 2023, there was a
negotiation between the Borrower and the Group
on settlements which consisted of (i) a change in
the pledged asset on a loan of HK$16,000,000 and
(ii) the Borrower’'s commitment on pursuing the
repayment of certain other borrowers’ credit-impaired
loans. During the year ended 31 March 2023,
HK$6,799,000 was received. As the pledged asset
had been multiple-mortgaged, an impairment loss of
HK$16,000,000 was provided.

During the year ended 31 March 2024, the
management reassessed and considered the Group
has no realistic prospect to recover the credit-impaired
debts and hence the balance of HK$83,854,000 was
written off.
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Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(Continued)

Debt instruments at amortised cost

The Group assesses the credit risk of debt instruments
at amortised cost at the reporting date. The Group’s
debt instrument at amortised cost comprise the
Promissory Note and the secured and unsecured
notes without external credit rating, which has been
assessed by internal credit rating. During the year
ended 31 March 2024, a reversal of impairment loss
on debt instruments at amortised cost amounting to
HK$717,000 with gross amount of HK$12,800,000
(2023: impairment loss of HK$119,000 with gross
amount of HK$14,895,000) was recognised in the profit
or loss.

B 35 LBy B ERAR R BUR ()
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12m ECL
1218 A A H
FEEE
HK$'000
T T
At 1 April 2022 20226 4A18 1,890
Changes due to financial assets recognised BN R EER2022F4H1H
as at 1 April 2022 R EE
— Impairment allowance reversed — R E B R E (119)
At 31 March 2023 202343 831H 1,771
Changes due to financial assets recognised AR SR EER2023F4A1H
as at 1 April 2023 HER 2 & B
— Impairment allowance reversed — BEEHEEE (717)

At 31 March 2024 R2024F3831H 1,054



Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(Continued)

Lease receivables and other receivables

No allowance for impairment was made since the
directors of the Company consider that the probability
of default is minimal after assessing the counterparties’
financial background and creditability.

Staff loans

No allowance for impairment was made since the
directors of the Company consider that the amount
involved is insignificant.

Time deposits over three months and bank
deposits and bank balances

No allowance for impairment was made since the
directors of the Company consider that the probability
of default is negligible as such amounts are receivable
from or placed in banks with good reputation.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash
equivalents deemed adequate by the management
to finance the Group’s operations. The management
also monitors the utilisation of borrowings and ensures
compliance with loan covenants.

At 31 March 2024, the Group has available unutilised
bank loan facilities of HK$1,413,128,000.
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b. Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its financial liabilities. For
non-derivative financial liabilities, the table has been
drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of
financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which
the Group can be required to pay. The table includes
both interest and principal cash flows.

Liquidity risk tables
Weighted
average  Ondemand
effective  orless than
interest rate 3 months
nEyy  REOAE
ERRE  DM3fEA
% HK$ 000
BAf AL
2024 W%
Trade and other payables EARABERNFA N/A
@R 68422
Amount due to a non-controlling ER-fEBRER N/A
shareholder FB TER 212531
Secured bank borrowings EERBOEE 642 1385480
Lease liabilties AEBE 245 3
1,666,506
2023 WRE
Trade and other payables BAREMENE N/A
TR 48,133
Amount due to a non-controling Ef-fFERER N/A
shareholder A 1R 211,694
Secured bank borrowings ERRRAREE 472 877267
Lease liabilties HERE 245 105

1137199

3 months to
1year

IFAEIE
HK$ 000
FET

53,851

1,080,605
116

1,134,572

39149

861,155
315

900,619
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REBEZEE(E)

TEFIAKREZERHEEZ
a2 MR- ST E
TWMBEMS  ZRDEAKHE
ARERNFANERIHENS
MEERNRABRERAEINR - K
NEERERENTBRAS -

LB B % B K
Total Carrying
1to Over undiscounted amounts
5 years Syears  cashflows  at31March

AfRREE  A%NE
185¢ BE5F REER AR
HK$000 HK$000 HKS 000 HK$000
AT 2 FEL 2

- - 122213 122213
- - 212,531 212,531
1,328,428 211,407 4,005,920 3,671,861
- - 189 184

1,328,428 21,407 4,340,913 4,006,849

- - 87282 87282

- - 211,694 211,694
1818914 186,949 3,744,285 3,529,177
315 - 735 720

1819229 186,949 4,043,996 3828873



c. Fair value

(i)

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets
that are measured at fair value on a
recurring basis

Some of the Group’'s financial assets are
measured at fair value at the end of the reporting
period. The Board has delegated the valuation
work to the management to determine the
appropriate valuation techniques and inputs for
fair value measurements.

In estimating the fair value, the Group uses
market-observable data to the extent it is
available. Where Level 1 inputs are not available,
the Group engages third party qualified valuers to
perform the valuation. The management works
closely with the qualified external valuers to
establish the appropriate valuation techniques and
inputs to the model. The management reports the
findings to the directors of the Company regularly
to explain the cause of fluctuations in the fair
value.

The following table gives information about
how the fair values of these financial assets are
determined (in particular, the valuation techniques
and key inputs used).
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c. AVE

(i)

REAEEEELEAT
OE EEY ] FY T
EZAFE

AEBEHFDEREENR
THMREAFEFE-E
ZeCEREEIFZESR
BEEE NEEEE AT
Bt E 2B ERMME A
B -

EHFAAFER A%HE
BUREATSAERH
B-MEBIEGE —&&H
ABE AEEZREE=
TR ERGEMETHE -
EEERAERIIEBMEE
MMEZAE ABIHEE
WA ERM R R B AE -
EEEEHRARAES
BERAEER UEER
FEEKBZRA -

TR AR WA EE &
FemEERAFELEHE
2R ZEEREAERE
BEBRA)ZEH -

Fair value  Valuation techniques and  Significant unobservable
Financial assets Fair value at 31 March  hierarchy  key inputs inputs
tREE ATEERIA3A NLESE HEFERTERA EXTTEERA
2024 2023
2024F  2023%
HK$'000  HK$000
TET T
Financial assets at FVTPL
BRATEGABEZERER
— Listed equity securities 148,161 126,726  Level 1 Quoted bid prices in an N/A
active market
—FTRAEF B REETHABR2LEE TER
— Investment in 42,732 28230 Level 3 Net asset value quoted from  Net asset value of the
Limited Partnership fund manager underlying investments
—RABREH 3 ERUBFRBCEERE HERACEERE
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c. Fair value (Continued) c. AFE®)

(i)  Fair value of the Group’s financial assets (i) RELEMEERLZLF
that are measured at fair value on a EFfEZFEFLHE
recurring basis (Continued) EZRFEE)

Fair value  Valuation techniques and Significant unobservable
Financial assets Fair value at 31 March  hierarchy  key inputs inputs
tREE AFER3A3A NTESE HEFERIERA EXTUBEERA
2024 2023
20245 2023%F
HK$'000  HK$000
Tz FET
— Film right investment 14,697 15,504 Level 3 Discounted cash flows —  Discount rate of 4.35% (2023:
future cash flows are 4.35%)
estimated
—BYMERE F3 RRRELRE— AR FHXR435% (2023F -
BeRE 4.35%)
— Life insurance policies - 14,436 Level 2 Quoted asset value provided N/A
by a financial institution
—A\BRE F2 PREBRECMBEE TEA
BfE
— Unlisted securities 6,264 N/A Level3 Market comparable Market multiple of 3.0
approach and discount for lack of
marketability of 30%
—fEmES TER F34 o5 BT A TEEHASIRRZTE
mALHTERI%
N/A 6,264 Level 2 Based on recent transaction  N/A
price
TEA F2 ERAHRRER TER
Debt instruments at FVTOCI
RATEGARMEZAKGEZE
BIA
— Listed debt securities 413 1,095  Level 1 Quoted bid prices in an N/A
active market
—FHEEES F1R REBTSABME TER

E—ERANTREEERE
MEEREZRERE Z
NFEFEBRATEK R

A slight increase in the discount rate used in
isolation would result in a slight decrease in
the fair value measurement of the film right
investment, and vice versa.

THERES  AFEY
B RZIA RS
AT EBIE - &2 IR -

The higher the market multiple, the higher the fair
value, and vice versa. The higher the discount, the
lower the fair value, and vice versa.
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D¥EE
(i) F3RAFEE LR

c. Fair value (Continued) c.

(ii) Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value

(iii)

measurements
Principal Investment
protected Investment inLimited  Filmright Unlisted
deposits funds Partnership investment  securities Total
REER  EB¥ME
REED  REES &% RE FLmEF &t
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
FET FET FET FET FET FET
At 1 April 2022 7202264818 27171 7339 27087 15,756 - 773563
Additions NE — - — 789 - 789
Purchases BE 553,516 — — — - 553,516
Interest received REEE) (551) (161) — - - (712)
Realised fair value gain recognised ~ RIBHEANTER
in profit or loss AFEYE 551 - - - - 551
Unrealised fair value loss recognised  REHERHAEE
in profit or loss ATEESR — (6,601) 971 — - (5,630)
Settlements & (578,549) — — — - (578,549)
Exchange adjustments SR (2,138) (577) 172 (1,041) — (3,584)
At31 March 2023 202353318 - - 28,230 15,504 - 43,734
Additions nE - - 15,178 - - 15,178
Transferinto level 3due tochange  RFEEHEEFEA
of valuation technique ERE - - - - 6,264 6,264
Unrealised fair value loss recognised  1ME 2 A M) K 2
in profit or loss ATEESR - - (712) = = (712)
Exchange adjustments i 5 A - - 36 (807) - (M)
At 31 March 2024 #2024%3R318 - - 42,732 14,697 6,264 63,693

Except for the unlisted securities which were
measured by recent transaction price at the
end of preceding report period, there were no
transfers between Levels 1, 2 and 3 in both years.

Fair value of financial assets and financial

Bri £ — 3R & H R AR
REEFTENIELTESFR
Sh R EFE - B4
P2 K B3 2 M
#% o

(iii) It ERIFAEE B ER

liabilities that are not measured at fair ANEEHEBEZEHEE
value on a recurring basis RemEREZAFEE

The fair values of other financial assets and
financial liabilities are determined in accordance
with generally accepted pricing models based
on discounted cash flow analysis. The directors
of the Company consider that the carrying
amounts of financial assets and financial
liabilities recognised in the consolidated financial
statements approximate to their fair values.

HthEREELRSRAR
ARFPERREBEFRRESRT
DMBB—RERZEE
BABE ARBAEER
RREAMBRR]ERZ
TREENRERAERE
BEEAQXFERE -
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20244 2 2023F3A318H » KAF =+

Particulars of the Company's principal subsidiaries as at 31

March 2024 and 2023 are as follows:

Place of
incorporation/
establishment

Nominal value
of issued share/

EMBABZHBOT:

Proportion of nominal
value of issued share
capital/registered
capital attributable to

Name of subsidiaries and operation registered capital the Group Principal activities
AEBELSET
FMA&L BT/ RA /A
) PNEEE R RS 5 ZMRAEE [ERER ] TEEH
2024 2023
20245 2023
Directly held by the Company:
ARFEERA:
Ace Winner Investment Limited ~ Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 100% 100% Investment in securities
EBRBEBRRA EN T®EBIET BERE
Amazing Universe Limited BVI/Hong Kong Ordinary US$1 100% 100% Property investment
RERZMSE/BF TBRIZET MERE
Arrowfield Investments Limited ~ BVI/Hong Kong Ordinary US$1 100% 100% Investment in securities
EERAES/FF TARET EARE
Charming Flash Limited BVI/Hong Kong Ordinary US$1 100% 100% Loan financing
RERAME /B8 TBRIZET EXREE
Coconut King Limited BVI/Hong Kong Ordinary US$1 100% 100% Investment in securities
RERAES/F8 TARET EARE
Flourishing Day Limited BVI/Hong Kong Ordinary US$1 100% 100% Loan financing
ERABERAA RERAMEE /B8 TBRRIET EREE
Fortunate Master Limited BVI/Hong Kong Ordinary US$1 100% 100% Investment holding
EERAHES/ B BBRIET REER
Gold Winner Investment Limited ~ Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 100% 100% Investment in securities
FEREBRAA £ TERIET EHERE
Great Sail Global Limited BVI/Hong Kong Ordinary US$1 100% 100% Loan financing
BRRHKERAF KERTHE /B8 TARET BERRE



Name of subsidiaries

WEAREM

Quick Access Enterprise Limited

Winsor Miles Limited

Indlirectly held by the Company:

ALREFERE

Asia Million Investment Limited
BEREBBRA

Capital Well (H.K.) Limited
ENER)BRAA

Chancemore Limited

City China International Limited
HWABRERAR

Clever Wise Holdings Limited
BRERERAA

Constance Capital Limited

hEERERADT

Daily Leader Limited

Place of

incorporation/
establishment
and operation

AL,
R RAEE 3

BVI/Hong Kong
EBELHE/BE

BVI/Hong Kong
RERUES/BF

Hong Kong
BE

Hong Kong
£

BVI/Hong Kong
EBREABE/BE

Hong Kong
EE

BVI/Hong Kong
RBRAHS /%

Hong Kong

B

BVI/Hong Kong
EERAHE /B8

Nominal value
of issued share/
registered capital

BRT/
SMRAEE

Ordinary US$1
ERRIET

Ordinary US$1
T®BIET

Ordinary HK$1
TEBIET

Ordinary HK$1

LRBET

Ordinary US$1
TEBIET

Ordinary HK$1
TERIET

Ordinary US$1
LT@ERIET

Ordinary
HK$46,000,000
TER

46,000,000/ 7T

Ordinary US$1
T@EBIET
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Proportion of nominal
value of issued share
capital/registered
capital attributable to

the Group
AEBEEDRT
RA /MR AK
[EREN 4]

2024 2023
2024 20235

100% 100%

100% 100%
26.59% 51.60%
26.59% 51.60%
26.59% 51.60%
26.59% 51.60%
26.59% 51.60%

100% 100%
26.59% 51.60%

Principal activities

EEE 3

Loan financing
ERRE

Investment holding
REER

Property investment

NERE

Property investment

MEHE

Property investment

NERE

Loan financing
EXEE

Property investment

NERE

Investment in securities

BHENE

Property development

NEER
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Proportion of nominal

Place of value of issued share
incorporation/ Nominal value capital/registered
establishment of issued share/ capital attributable to
Name of subsidiaries and operation registered capital the Group Principal activities
AEBELSET
EmEL/ BT/ BA /2 RBRA
WEARERE RIREEHE dMRAEE [ERER ] TEEH
2024 2023

20245 20234

Day Glory Investment Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 26.59% 51.60% Property investment
HEREERAA EiE TERIET MERE
Easyknit Properties Management  Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10,000 100% 100% Property management
Limited
XEMEERBRATF B 38 1%10,0007% 7T NEER
Eminence Bermuda/ Ordinary HK$0.01 26.59% 51.60% Investment holding
Hong Kong
Sy BRE/BE LiER0.018 T REER
Excellent East Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 26.59% 51.60% Property investment
BEBRAA BB TERIET MERE
Everjet Investment Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10,000 100% 100% Property development
KR EBR AR E LiE%10,000% 7T NEER
Fanju Investments Limited BVI/Hong Kong Ordinary US$1 26.59% 51.60% Investment in securities
and others
REBREBBRRA RERAMEE/BF TBRIET ERRABRE
Gainever Corporation Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 26.59% 51.60% Investment in securities
and others
KEBRRRA £ LRk2ET EARAMKRE
Giant East Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 26.59% 51.60% Property investment
BRERAA BE TRRIET MERE
Global Chance Holdings Limited ~ BVI/Hong Kong Ordinary US$1 100% 100% Property development

BRABERERAF RBEAEE/BE BRBRIXT NEER



Name of subsidiaries

WEAREM

Glory Link Investment Limited

AERERRRA

Goldchamp International Limited

tEERAERAR

Golden Top Properties Limited

BIEEXERAR

Golden Star Investment Limited

EHEREBERAT

Good Merit Management Limited

EREEARRA

Goodco Development Limited

EXERBRAA

Grandcorp Development Limited

BRERBRLA

Great East Investment Limited

KEREBRRA

Grow Well Profits Limited

Happy Light Investments Limited

RAEREERAA

Place of

incorporation/
establishment
and operation

AL,
R RAEE 3

Hong Kong
BB

Hong Kong
BB

Hong Kong
EE

Hong Kong
BB

Hong Kong
BE

BVI/Hong Kong
RBRAHE /B

Hong Kong
Bk

Hong Kong
£

BVI/Singapore
EBEIES/
ik

BVI/Hong Kong
RBRIES /A%

Nominal value
of issued share/
registered capital

BRT/
SMRAEE

Ordinary HK$1

Ordinary HK$10,000
T3 1%10,0007% T

Ordinary HK$2
TER2E T

Ordinary HK$1
T@EBIET

Ordinary HK$1
TaRIET

Ordinary US$1
TRERIET

Ordinary HK$1
LREBRIET

Ordinary US$1
TRERIET

Ordinary US$1

Ordinary US$1
ERRIET
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Proportion of nominal
value of issued share
capital/registered
capital attributable to

the Group
AEBELSET
BRA /A
RN
2024 2023
20245 2023
26.59% 51.60%
26.59% 51.60%
26.59% 51.60%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
26.59% 51.60%
100% 100%

Principal activities

EEE 3

Investment in securities
and others

EEREBRE

Property investment

NERE

Property investment

NEHE

Property management

nEER

Property holding
MELK

Investment holding
RERR

Property investment

NERE

Property development

NEER

Property investment
and investment in
securities and others

NEREREBEFR
Hig &

Property development

NEER



Name of subsidiaries

WEARER

Janson Properties Limited

EBEXBERAA

Land Bloom Holdings Limited

REZRARAT

Main Lucky Enterprises Limited

Rt EERRA

Mark Profit Development Limited

SRERARDNT

Nice Able Holdings Limited

On Channel International Limited

ZREERAERAF

Ovation Motion Picture Enterprise

Limited
EEREVLEXARAA

Pacific Land Investment Limited

BLRREBERAF

Pacific Way Investment Limited

BREREBRRDA

2023/24 Annual Report

For the year ended 31 March 2024 & £2024%#3/31H 1t F &

Place of

incorporation/
establishment
and operation

AL
RYRAEE 3

Hong Kong
EiE

BVI/Hong Kong
KBRS /BE

Hong Kong
EE

Hong Kong

BE

BVI/Hong Kong
RERABES /B

Hong Kong
BB

Hong Kong
BA

Hong Kong
B

Hong Kong
BE

Nominal value
of issued share/
registered capital

oRI/
SMRAEE

Ordinary HK$2
TER2E T

Ordinary US$1
T@EBIET

Ordinary HK$1
TaERIET

Ordinary HK$2

EER2ET

Ordinary US$1
TRRIET

Ordinary HK$1
TRRIET

Ordinary HK$1
EERIBT

Ordinary HK$1
TRRET

Ordinary HK$1
EERIBT

Proportion of nominal
value of issued share
capital/registered
capital attributable to

the Group
AEBEEEDRT
RA/ MR AK
& Lkl

2024 2023
2024 20235
26.59% 51.60%
26.59% 51.60%
26.59% 51.60%

100% 100%

26.59% 51.60%

26.59%

51.60%

100% 100%

100% 100%

100% 100%

Principal activities

TERH

Property investment

MEEE

Investment holding
REZK

Property development

NEEE

Property investment
and investment in
securities

NEREREFRE

Property development

NEER

Property investment

NERE

Entertainment and film
right investment
REDEYRERE

Property development
MELE

Property development

MERR
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Proportion of nominal

Place of
incorporation/
establishment

Nominal value
of issued share/

value of issued share
capital/registered

capital attributable to

Name of subsidiaries and operation registered capital the Group Principal activities
AEBELSET
FMA&L, BT/ BRA /A
WELREH RS it B ZMBRAEE RN TEEH
2024 2023
20245 2023
Planetic International Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 100% 100% Loan financing
£ TEkET ERRE
Real Supreme Limited Anguilla/Hong Kong  Ordinary US$1 26.59% 51.60% Property development
REN/BE ERBRIET NEERE
Richstar Development Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 100% 100% Property development
EEERARAT BB TERIET NEER
Silver Prosper Holdings Limited ~ Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 26.59% 51.60% Property development
BREEEBRRA E TERIET MEER
Success Active Limited BVI/Hong Kong Ordinary US$1 100% 100% Property development
RERAME/B8 TBRIET MEER
Success Mark Investments Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 26.59% 51.60% Property development
Limited
JER&ZEBR AT E LT@EBRIET MEERE
Top Channel Enterprises Limited ~ Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 26.59% 51.60% Property investment
RERERERAA BB TRRIET MERE
Top Lead Investment Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 26.59% 51.60% Property development
HEREBRRA B LTRBRET mEERE
Total Expect Limited BVI/Hong Kong Ordinary US$1 100% 100% Property development
RERAHEE /B8 TBRIET MEEE
Treasure Arts International Group  BVI/Hong Kong Ordinary US$1 26.59% 51.60% Property development
Limited
BEEEREEERAA RERABEE /B8 TARIET MERE



Name of subsidiaries

WEARER

Trump Elegant Investment Limited

IERERRRA

Wealth Plan Development Limited
REZEERARA

Well Honest Investment Limited

EBREBRRAF

Wellmake Investments Limited

BLRAARDA

Well Smart Development Limited

BARERERRA

Widetop Investment Limited
RERERRRA

XEBEEM BRAR
(Easyknit Enterprises (Huzhou)
Co., Ltd.) (“Enterprises
Huzhou")**

XEEBEECRMNBERAA
(THMEE]) *

2023/24 Annual Report

For the year ended 31 March 2024 & £2024%#3/31H 1t F &

Place of

incorporation/
establishment
and operation

AL
RYRAEE 3

Hong Kong
£

Hong Kong
B

Hong Kong
EE

Hong Kong

Hong Kong
it

Hong Kong
BB

PRC

Nominal value
of issued share/
registered capital

oRI/
SMRAEE

Ordinary HK$10,000
38 1:10,0008 T

Ordinary HK$1
LT@EBIET

Ordinary HK$1
TERIET

Ordinary HK$9,998
(Non-voting
deferred shares
HK$2*)

LEMR9,998E T

(BERREELTR

28T

Ordinary HK$100
L@EM1008 T

Ordinary HK$1
TERIET

Registered
US$25,544,206

HREBEA
25,544,206 7T

Proportion of nominal
value of issued share
capital/registered
capital attributable to

the Group
AEBEEEDRT
RA/ MR AK
& Lkl
2024 2023
2024 20235
100% 100%
26.59% 51.60%
26.59% 51.60%
26.59% 51.60%
80% 80%
100% 100%
26.59% 51.60%

Principal activities

TERH

Property development

NEEE

Property development

NEER

Property investment

MEHE

Property investment

MEEE

Property development

NEER

Property development

NEER

Property investment

NERE



* The non-voting deferred shares of Wellmake Investments
Limited carry no rights to receive notice of, attend or vote at
any general meeting and have very limited rights to participate
in a distribution of profits and, on liquidation, to the repayment
of the amount paid up on the shares.

** Enterprises Huzhou is a wholly foreign owned enterprise
established in the PRC, to be operated for 50 years up to 14
December 2054.

At 31 March 2024, the Group had 26.59% equity interest
in the issued share capital of Eminence. Eminence and its
subsidiaries (“Eminence Group”) have been accounted for
as subsidiaries of the Group in the consolidated financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2024
as the management of the Company considered that the
Group had control over Eminence Group. Details of the
assessment are set out in note 4.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company, which,
in the opinion of the directors of the Company, principally
affected the results of the year or constituted a substantial
portion of the assets of the Group. To give details of other
subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors of the
Company result in particulars of excessive length.
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* REREBRARCEREREL
BEERDEMBRRAGZEBE -
HEIARAGLERE BEAKER
BRENEDREN R - RERE
EROEHRNZEE -

> CHINEEAE —BERPBEMNXZZI
BERELE KEHAOF BE=
205412 8148 -

R2024%3A31H » AEE R 5L 3
TR AN 526.59% B B #E - & 10 &
ENBEAR(BLEEDRALEERE
E2024F3ANB UL FENZATH
WEFINEAAEENMBRR  BA
ARBEEERA AKEYHELE
EHmEEGE - T EFBEHNHES -

A EFNRFAIIRZANAB M ERTF
REARREZZER TBXEF
NZEBEIBRAEEEEZ T EH
Do MARREZTZERRR EH#
HiMBRARAZFBEEEERN BRI
= o
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At the end of the reporting period, the Company has other
subsidiaries that are not material to the Group. Majority
of these subsidiaries operate in Hong Kong. The principal
activities of these subsidiaries are summarised as follows:

Principal activities Principal place of business
FTEEK TEEEMB

Investment holding Hong Kong

REERK BB

Inactive Hong Kong

JEIA BB B

Inactive PRC

SEE BB &

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at
31 March 2024 or 31 March 2023, except for the convertible
notes issued by Eminence to the Group.

RBERR  ARAHEEMEAE
@ﬁETEEﬁZW% B o BEM
BRAIAKIMOINBEBLE - LEWEB

NAZEBEBHBEMT :
Number of subsidiaries
MEAREE
2024 2023
2024 20234
50 48
32 28
2 2
84 78

BelmAE®EETOANRRKEIE
AN - 84 BT B R R 72024 F3A31H 8%
2023F3A3NBETEMEBRFEH o



The table below shows details of non-wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company that has material non-controlling

interest:
Place of Proportion of ownership
incorporation and interests and voting rights
principal place of held by non-controlling
Name of subsidiary business interests
MBI BER  FERERFSEEEREER
HEARER TEEENY REELA
2024 2023
2024% 2023%
Eminence Bermuda/ 73.41% 48.40%
Hong Kong
Al BRE/ER

Summarised financial information in respect of the Group's
subsidiary that has material non-controlling interests is set
out below. The summarised financial information below
represents amounts before intragroup eliminations.

Eminence and its subsidiaries

Income
Expenses

(Loss) profit for the year

Total comprehensive (expense) income
for the year

WA
F 32

REZ(BEE) &N

AREE2HE(FHX)
Wi

(Loss) profit allocated to non-

2023/244F ¥

For the year ended 31 March 2024 & 22024 #3/31H 1F F &

TRITHBEERFZERESE AR
AIEREMBARE

Accumulated non-controlling

controlling interests interests
FRRERDME
(B#R)&ER CHESY §

2024 2023 2024 2023
2024% 2023% 2024% 2023%
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
Tz TET TET TET
(155,242) 17157 2,196,842 1,642,297

BREERGEEBRERZAKENBA
AIMBERBBERIMT o LN
ERMEDEEARR ZHEEHEZ

S EE o
AR M EAT
Year-ended Year-ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
5 £2024F E E20234F
3A3MHLLEE SA3BLFE
HK$000 HK$'000
FETT FET
85,5622 182,678
(298,671) (119,106)
(213,149) 63,5672
(212,720) 29,404
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Eminence and its subsidiaries (Continued)

Non-current assets

Current assets

Current liabilities

Non-current liabilities

Total equity

Net cash outflow from operating activities

Net cash inflow from investing activities

Net cash inflow from financing activities

Net cash (outflow) inflow

At 31 March
2024
H2024F
3A31H
HK$'000
FET
ERBEE 1,333,908
REEE 4,074,899
mEEaE (1,277,260)
EmEBEE (1,084,351)
L R 3,047,196
Year-ended
31 March 2024
B E20245F
3A31BLEE
HK$°000
FET
rKERKEEHZH RN
R (388,985)
REREFHZH SR
R 243,781
REMEEHZHE SR
R 102,297
B (rb)RAFEEE (42,907)

Bk HK B AT (#)

At 31 March
2023
20234
3A31H
HK$'000
FE T

1,438,126

4,186,141

(867920)

(1,521,181)

3,235,166

Year-ended

31 March 2023

#H 220235

3A3IHIEFE

HK$'000
FET

(115,152)

193,396

191,787

270,031



On 23 January 2024, Eminence entered into a conditional
placing agreement pursuant to which a total of 235,000,000
placing shares will be placed by the placing agent to not
less than six (6) placees at the placing price of HK$0.18
per placing share, representing approximately 69.5% of
the issued share capital of Eminence as enlarged by the
allotment and issue of the placing shares. The net proceeds
from the placing, after deduction of the placing commission
and other related costs and expenses of the placing,
amounted to HK$41,700,000 will be used for repayment of
the Group’s bank borrowings and general working capital of
the Group.

On the same date, Eminence also entered into a deed of
amendment with Goodco pursuant to which the conversion
price of the convertible notes issued by Eminence with
principal amount of HK$209,000,000 will be adjusted from
HK$3.70 to HK$0.18 per conversion share and an early
redemption provision is altered to give Eminence and Goodco
the right to redeem the convertible notes at any time, in
whole or in part. The placing of shares has been approved in
the special general meeting of Eminence on 21 March 2024
and the conditions precedent under the deed of amendment
have been fulfilled on 17 April 2024. Accordingly, the placing
of shares and amendment of terms of the convertible notes
are completed on 17 April 2024.
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For the year ended 31 March 2024 & 22024 #3/31H 1F F &

202418238 © &I B K HFE
EHE Bl BEEREBBERATIR
6) % # B2 A B2 & & $£235,000,000
BEERD REEASREESR M
0188 T HEEEREITREERMD
i K8 =L B BT A 4969.5% ©
it & F7 15 7% I8 7% %541,700,00078 7T (30
BRECE e & E S EAHE M HER K
AERZE)BEANEERNEBRIT
BERLAEEN —REEES -

REAR - SILIREESEI ISR 2
Bt & 1ILE TR % © % 4209,000,000
W TT 2 ] A R 2 %meﬁ{ﬁaatﬂxﬁ
%ﬁﬂxfnwo,%fcsﬂ 20188 T

K B 2R A BB B 5 ET%%‘M&%
%ﬁiﬁﬂvﬁaﬁiuﬂiﬁﬁ AR R 2
MR o B 15 B & B R2024F3A21H
BOazmUBRERER RS LB I
MASRT RIBTE TR %o R G142 102024
FAR17REER - At - BHORER
AR ZEBIER 2EET 2 R20245F4
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For the year ended 31 March 2024 & £2024%#3/31H 1t F &

Subsequent to end of the reporting period, the shareholding
in Eminence held by the Group will drop from 26.59% to
8.11% upon the completion of placing of shares. Although
the Group may convert the convertible notes into shares
in Eminence and obtain additional shareholding to exercise
control over Eminence, the early redemption provision gives
the right to Eminence to redeem the convertible notes at any
time, in whole or in part and hence the Group is not able to
maintain the practical ability to direct the relevant activities of
Eminence Group unilaterally. Meanwhile, the management
of the Group considered the Group has significant influence
over Eminence as a director of the Company has the power
to participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of
Eminence. Accordingly, Eminence will no longer a subsidiary
but an associate of the Group and the financial information of
Eminence Group will be accounted for using equity method
of accounting by the Group subsequent to the end of the
reporting period.

The difference between the fair value of the equity
interest retained in Eminence Group based on share price
of Eminence at the date of deemed disposal and the net
assets disposed of Eminence Group net of non-controlling
interests, adjusted by release of cumulated exchange
differences in respect of Eminence Group to profit or loss
and reclassification of equity component of convertible
notes issued by Eminence and the fair value through other
comprehensive income reserve will be recorded in profit or
loss as loss on deemed disposal of subsidiaries. Meanwhile,
the excess of the Group's share of the net fair value of
Eminence Group's identifiable assets and liabilities over the
deemed cost of the investment will be recorded in profit
or loss as gain on bargain purchase at date of deemed
acquisition of an associate. The management is in progress
to quantity the impact to profit or loss.

RBEBHRE  XEEFEz2m LUK
8 1A B A7 Bt & 5T X 18 F126.59% T~ [%
E281M% c BEASEAZTHRERE
EBaEinas LRSI ES 58 INR
LA = 1L 17 (50 4% 6 4 - (B4 AT BB B 1
SRR, T LU RE A ] BE B B B &2 B ok
DABMBRER - Bt AEBEEXLH
BERENEF A LEENIER
EBERIETR - AR ARARE K
—HREETHARL2ESLNBREE
RE - MAEBETIEERBANERY
HESEAFEh - At RBEER
%v%m%TﬁimﬁsmW%ﬁﬁ

E—EEE R A WEAREBBE
m%Agﬁi%EmEEMW%ﬁﬂ
ABREHE

RESWUWNREIELERBMOBRNER
RhEmsUEEFEEGIRIFE
PergE &) PR BN & LR B g
MAFEEAESUEENRFTER
ERENERSREF D EAS LHE
THABRERENED D HER)
Hi AR 2EKREFENRAFEZ
FMHZ8H BRERBELERB QA
WEBBEAER - BN AEEEG
SUEEAZNEERABNHRFE
FEBLBERERENES Bk
REFENE-—HBEEARAHZEE
Wkt AEE BEEEREEL

HEZHWZE -
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For the year ended 31 March 2024 & 22024 #3/31H 1F F &

2024 2023
20244 20234
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FE T
Non-current assets EmBEE
Interests in subsidiaries B B A~ A HE 7 34,162 34,162
Amounts due from subsidiaries JiE B BB A | F I8 2,374,552 1,985,498
2,408,714 2,019,660
Current assets mEEE
Other receivables H fth & W 5118 168 168
Cash and cash equivalents RekREeEEY 2,138 30,139
2,306 30,307
Current liabilities mBAaE
Other payables H fth fE 5 5118 1,180 1,423
Amounts due to subsidiaries NI ENG e 1,067,385 703,423
1,068,565 704,846
Net current liabilities mBAaEFEE (1,066,259) (674,539)
Net assets BEFE 1,342,455 1,345,121
Capital and reserves BEARRGEE
Share capital fi% < 7,399 7399
Reserves (note) &t (e at) 1,335,056 1,337722
Total equity = B 1,342,455 1,345,121
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For the year ended 31 March 2024 & £20244%3/31H I &

Note:

Movements of the Company's reserves during the current and prior

year are as follows:

Share

premium

B R E

HK$'000

FET

At 1 April 2022 #2022F 4818 202,272
Profit and total comprehensive A% [ i F &

income for the year THNEBE —

At 31 March 2023 M2023F3A31H 202,272
Loss and total comprehensive A% [ £ It

expense for the year FERAXESE -

At 31 March 2024 R2024F3A31H 202,272

Capital
reserve
RA B
HK$000
FET

196,565

196,565

196,565

254

S

ARRAZEERAEARBEFE LS

m

Contributed
surplus
O3-S
HK$'000
FET

220,937

220,937

220,937

Share
option
reserve
BRERE
HK$'000
FAET

581

581

581

Accumulated
profits
EHpil

HK$ 000
FET

644,023

73,344

717,367

(2,666)

714,701

Total
i
HK$000
FET

1,264,378

73,344

1,337,722

(2,666)

1,335,056
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Year ended 31 March
HZE3ANBLEE

2020 2021 2022 2023 2024
20204 20214 20224 20234 20245
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$°000
TETT FET TET TET FET

Revenue EER 63,633 323,382 350,784 102,674 227114
(Loss) profit before taxation BB AT (B 18) % F (298,936) 18,961 1,027.243 26,509 (349,243)
Taxation B8 877 2,968 (17.743) 3,434 (59,316)
(Loss) profit for the year AEE(EE)&EF (298,059) 21,929 1,009,500 29,943 (408,559)

(Loss) profit for the year attributable &5 A F & (&5 18)

to: A
— owners of the Company — ARAEAA (297755) 22,308 979,437 13,280 (253,235)
— non-controlling interests — FERER (304) (379) 30,063 16,663 (155,324)

(298,059) 21,929 1,009,500 29,943 (408,559)

At 31 March
M3A31H

2020 2021 2022 2023 2024
20204 20214 20224 20234 2024 F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FE T FET FET

Total assets BEERE 4,858,129 4,903,606 8,919,158 9,188,964 8,739,039
Total liabilities BELEE (1,622,308) (1,673,161) (3,981,641) (4,196,579) (4,136,948)
Net assets BEEFE 3,235,821 3,230,445  4,937517 4,992,385 4,602,091
Equity attributable to owners N/NSIE PPN X

of the Company = 3,236,270 3,231,273 4177706 3,451,803 2,407,053
Non-controlling interests FEE PR 2 (449) (828) 759,811 1,540,582 2,195,038

Bk

o

Total equity Banisn 3,235,821 3,230,445 4937517 4,992,385 4,602,091
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As at 31 March 2024 #2024 35315

Approximate
gross floor/

Location Purpose saleable area Lease term
MOEE
i 1k k=S ERAEE HAFH
(sq. ft.)
(FAR)
1. Block A on Seventh Floor and Industrial 11,874  Medium

Car Parking Space No. L11,
No. 481 Castle Peak Road,
Cheung Sha Wan,

Kowloon
NERDES B8R I 5
T8 2 AR R L115R B L

2. Block B1 and portion of Block B Industrial 6,992 Medium

on Seventh Floor,
No. 481 Castle Peak Road,
Cheung Sha Wan, Kowloon

NEERDEFILEAIBIN I + 85
+EZBIELBEIRY
3. Shops 1, 2, 3 on Ground Floor Commercial 13,544 Medium

together with showcase on
Ground Floor, First Floor
and Second Floor of Fa Yuen Plaza,
No. 19 Fa Yuen Street,
Mong Kok, Kowloon
BEEATEEE195% [HES A5
TEBEES T
12 3WEAER
MTEE - — 1R

4. Ground Floor, No. 50 Yun Ping Road, Commercial 905 Long
Causeway Bay, Hong Kong
&5 IR E B FES0 T [EES 5

5. Shops A and B on Ground Floor Commercial 4,297 Medium

and Shop C on First Floor, One Victory,

Nos. 1, 1A and 3 Victory Avenue,

Ho Man Tin, Kowloon

JUBE A X H B A8 15% - 1A5R EES3 B
M3 TARBH K —1ECH



Location

3 3k

6. Car Parking Space No. 407,
4/F, Capital Centre, No. 151
Gloucester Road, Wanchai
EF & LT 815158
B AP 407 5 B T

7 Ground Floor
No. 148 Johnston Road
Wanchai
Hong Kong
BB ETHETRB148% T

8. Ground Floor
No. 6 Cannon Road
Causeway Bay
Hong Kong
BABWMBRESBEEHRMT

9. Sixth Floor
Nos. 650-652
Castle Peak Road, and
No. 18A Wing Hong Street

Kowloon
LBE & 1L 650 £ 65257
Kok EEH18AR6HE

10. Second Floor
Nos. 790, 792 and 794
Cheung Sha Wan Road
Kowloon
hEEDEE
790 - 792 279457 21%

11. Roof
No. 20 Wing Hong Street
Kowloon

NEEKFEH20HE X E

Purpose

Rz

Commercial

EES

Commercial

EES

Commercial

EES

Industrial

I%

Industrial

I%

Industrial

I%

2023/244F ¥

As at 31 March 2024 1$2024F3531H

Approximate
gross floor/
saleable area
WAgmE
BEAER

(sqg. ft.)
(FAR)

N/A

-
(&t
3

578

472

8,608

2,981

2,910

Lease term

HAOFH

Medium

& &

Long

£ H

Long

£ H

Medium

5

Medium

 H

Medium

 H



As at 31 March 2024 #2024 35315
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Location Purpose
i it AR
12. Fifth Floor Industrial
No. 20 Wing Hong Street
Kowloon
NLBE K R 72057518 S
13. Units 1 and 2 on Seventh Floor Residential
Block D and Car Parking Space
No. 46 on Lower Ground Floor
Shatin Heights
No. 8003 Tai Po Road
Shatin, N.T.
¥R B K 8800358 =3
WHEBEDETEIR2E K
1K JE 3 T 55 465% B {7
14. Third Floor Residential
No. 161 Wong Nai Chung Road
Hong Kong
BB EEBEIGIR =& F =
15. Easy Tower, No. 609 Industrial/
Tai Nan West Street commercial
Cheung Sha Wan
Kowloon
NEER D E KM AEH6095% IR /A%
K& ES
16. 15 Ardmore Park #18-02 Residential

Singapore 259959

=

x=

Approximate
gross floor/
saleable area
WAgmE
BEAEE
(sqg. ft.)
(FAR)

3,402

2,086

781

74,458

2,885

Lease term

HAOFH

Medium

& &

Medium

&

Medium

T

Medium

T

Freehold

%7



Location

3 3k

17 Lots Nos. 1278, 1279 and 1280 in D.D.

124 Yuen Long

New Territories

Hong Kong

BB AITTED.D.1245R
261278 ~ 1279128055 b B

18. Unit A on 8th Floor and Roof of
Tower 1 and Carparking Space
No. 3, Ayton No. 18, Inverness
Road, Kowloon
NEEXETE
18R EE —ESEAZTERAR
35k E L

Purpose

Rz

Land with attached
structure

B+

Residential

2023/244F ¥

As at 31 March 2024 1$2024F3531H

Approximate
gross floor/
saleable area
WAgmE
BEAER
(sqg. ft.)
(FAR)

27,879

1,798

Lease term

HAOFH

Medium

&

Medium

 Hj
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As at 31 March 2024 #2024 35315

Location

it 3t

Nos. 470, 472, 474, 476, 478
Chatham Road North, Kowloon

FLEER R & 14705 - 4725 -
47455 - 476% - 4785

Nos. 646, 648, 648A

Castle Peak Road

Kowloon

N E 1L 1E646 « 648 648AT

Nos. 1B-1E Davis Street and

Nos. 93 and 95 Catchick Street
Kennedy Town

Hong Kong
BEERRUMMEZTHIBEIET
A R FE 793%% R955%

No. 121 King Lam Street
Cheung Sha Wan
Kowloon

ERVDEBRME 2150

Nos. 11, 13 and 15
Matheson Street
Causeway Bay
Hong Kong

BEFAEE N EHNR - 135 K165

Approximate

Purpose gross site area

itk B R EE

(sq. ft)

(FHR)

Residential 4,685
=

Industrial 9,206
I%

Residential 7122
F=E

Industrial 5,483
T%

Commercial 2,857
BE

Lease term

BAFH

Long

=

Medium

h

Long

=

Medium

o

Long

=

Stage of
completion

5% FX P BR

Under development
(expected to be
completed in late
2024)

ERP

(78 B 12024 F
RET)

Under development
(expected to be
completed in 2026)
ERP

(78 B 7122026
KT)

Under development
(expected to be
completed in 2026)

R
(FEH #2026 F
%®T)

Completed in May
2024

ER2024E57 %
T

Completed in
February 2024

BR20245F2 8%
T
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